T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

Major Applications

Planning

Committee

Date: THURSDAY, 5 MARCH 2015

Time: 7.00 PM, OR UPON THE
RISING OF THE NORTH
PLANNING COMMITTEE,
WHICHEVER IS THE
LATER.

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 -
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH
STREET, UXBRIDGE UBS8
1UW

Meeting Members of the Public and

Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This agenda and associated
reports can be made available
in other languages, in braille,
large print or on audio tape on
request. Please contact us for
further information.

This Agenda is available online at:

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Eddie Lavery (Chairman)

lan Edwards (Vice-Chairman)
Peter Curling

Jazz Dhillon

Janet Duncan (Labour Lead)
Carol Melvin

John Morgan

Brian Stead

David Yarrow

Published: Tuesday 3 March 2015

Contact: Ainsley Gilbert

Tel: 01895 250692

Fax: 01895 277373
democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=325&MId=2019

Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Travel and parking

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station,
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a
short walk away. Limited parking is available at
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and
how to book a parking space, please contact
Democratic Services

Please enter from the Council’s main reception
where you will be directed to the Committee
Room.

Accessibility
An Induction Loop System is available for use in

the various meeting rooms. Please contact us for
further information.

Reporting and filming of meetings

Residents and the media are welcomed to report the proceedings of the public parts of this
meeting. Any individual or organisation wishing to film proceedings will be permitted,
subject to 48 hours advance notice and compliance with the Council’s protocol on such
matters. The Officer Contact shown on the front of this agenda should be contacted first
for further information.

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.

In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make
their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.

Recording of meetings - This is not allowed, either
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones and BlackBerries before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more borough residents can speak at a
Planning Committee in support of or against an
application. Petitions must be submitted in writing
to the Council in advance of the meeting. Where
there is a petition opposing a planning application
there is also the right for the applicant or their
agent to address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with by
the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at the
beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s), the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant
followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

1
2
3

Apologies for Absence
Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

To sign and receive the minutes of the meetings held on 21 January 1-12
2015 and 10 February 2015

Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

To confirm that the items marked in Part 1 will be considered in public
and those items marked in Part 2 will be heard in private

PART | - Members, Public and Press

ltems are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the
Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Major Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | 88-94 Long Lane, Ickenham | Demolition of 5 existing 13-70

Ickenham dwellinghouses and

52129/APP/2014/2996 redevelopment of the site fora 85 | 168-187

unit Class C2 care home for the
elderly of 1.5 to 2.5 storeys in
height with associated landscaping
and car parking (40 spaces in
total), stopping up of existing
vehicular accesses on Long Lane
and construction of new vehicular
access onto Long Lane.

Recommendation: Approval




Major Applications without a Petition

Address

Ward

Description & Recommendation

Page

Hayes and Harlington,
Station Road, Hayes
10057/APP/2014/4338

Botwell

Application under Schedule 7 of
the Crossrail Act 2008 for the
approval of Plans and
Specifications associated with the
erection of a new station building,
external lift shaft, footbridge with
lift shafts, extension of platforms
2/3 and 4/5 with canopy
modifications, new waiting room to
Platform 4/5 and associated
lighting.

Recommendation: Approval

71-84

188-109

Pronto Industrial
Estate and 585 - 591
Uxbridge Road, Hayes
4404/APP/2014/2506

Botwell

Change of use of B1(c) floorspace
to provide 12 additional residential
units and associated ancillary
works. (Amendment to planning
permission ref:
4404/APP/2011/2079, dated 30-
03-2012 (Application to replace
extant planning permission ref:
4404/APP/2008/3558, dated 23-
03-2009); Redevelopment of site
to provide replacement Class
B1(c) light industrial space and 34
two-bedroom and 9 one-bedroom
flats with associated car parking,
landscaping and amenity space).

Recommendation: Approval

85-104

210-217

1 Nobel Drive,
Harlington
46214/APP/2014/2827

Heathrow
Villages

Conversion and extension of
existing office building to form a
200 bedroom hotel with
banqueting suite, conference
facilities, and rooftop restaurant,
including a seven-storey extension
to rear, a three storey addition at
roof level, and single-storey side
extension, together with the
creation of a new vehicle access,
and alterations to car parking and
landscaping.

Recommendation: Approval

105 -
148

218-248




10| West Drayton Garden | West Reserved matters (appearance 149 -
Village, Porters Way, | Drayton and landscaping) in compliance 166
West Drayton with conditions 2 and 3 for Phase
5107/APP/2014/4304 5 (Block A) (82 residential units) of | 249-276
planning permission ref:
5107/APP/2009/2348, dated
01/10/2010, for the proposed
mixed used redevelopment of the
Former NATS Site.
Recommendation: Approval
Plans for Major Applications Planning Committee
12 Plans Pack - 5th March 2015 167 -

276




Agenda ltem 3
Minutes %%@

MAJOR APPLICATIONS PLANNING COMMITTEE

21 January 2015 HILI DON

LONDON

Meeting held at Council Chamber - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:

Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman), lan Edwards (Vice-Chairman), Jazz Dhillon,
Janet Duncan (Labour Lead), Carol Melvin, John Oswell, Brian Stead, Alan Chapman
and David Yarrow

Also Present:
Clir Brian Crowe and Clir John Riley (Item 6)

LBH Officers Present:

Matthew Duigan, Planning Service Manager, Syed Shah, Highway Engineer,
Adrien Waite, Major Applications Manager, Nicole Cameron, Legal Advisor
Danielle Watson, Democratic Services Officer.

121. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda ltem 1)

Apologies for absence were received from Clir Peter Curling and Clir John Morgan with
Clir John Oswell and ClIr Alan Chapman substituting.

122. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda Item 2)

None.

123. | MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Iltem
3)

None.

124. | TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED
INPUBLIC AND THOSE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 2 WILL BE HEARD IN PRIVATE
(Agenda Item 4)

It was confirmed that all items would be considered in Part 1 public.

125. | GAELIC ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION, WEST END ROAD, RUISLIP
24373/APP/2014/1946 (Agenda Item 5)

Extension of car park from 92 to 136 spaces, including 8 disability and 7 electric
bays; additional vehicular exit and new pedestrian gate to West End Road; 30
cycle parking stands; taxi point; pedestrian circulation routes; realignment and
reconstruction of grass playing pitch; new irrigation (groundwater abstraction
borehole), drainage and storm water attenuation works; erection of partially
roofed (three bays) single tier stand for spectator seating with ancillary

Page 1



accommodation below including changing rooms for players and officials, gym,
medical facilities and toilets; pedestrian only access path along northern
boundary; a low level standing terrace, with covered area for disabled spectators
and a camera stand; new southern perimeter access track; floodlit artificial-
surfaced training/warm-up area with demountable enclosure to enable use as
part of overflow car parking area (186 spaces); 15 metres high ball catch netting
at each end of the pitch and retractable netting 7 metres high to the northern
boundary; enclosures within the site comprising fencing, turnstiles and gates;
replacement scoreboard; and, associated works including landscaping.

Officers introduced the report and referred members to the addendum sheet that had
been circulated.

The application related to the Gaelic Athletic Association (GAA) Grounds on West End
Road in Ruislip. Members noted that the ground had a longstanding use as a sports
and recreation ground and had been used as a training ground by Queen’s Park
Rangers Football Club until the mid 1970’s. Since this time the grounds had been used
by the GAA and was the home of Gaelic sports (Gaelic football and hurling) in London.

The current application sought the redevelopment of the sports ground in order to
substantially improve the existing facilities, which were considerably outdated and did
not meet modern expectations or requirements in terms of player or spectator comfort
or safety.

Members noted that the main issues in this case were considered to be the principle of
the development within the Green Belt, impacts on neighbour amenity and traffic
impacts. In principle there was support for the enhancement of facilities at the site
which would support sport, culture, wellbeing and health objectives. Overall, officers
considered that the proposal fully complied with Green Belt policies and was
acceptable in principle. This was a view shared by the Greater London Authority.

In relation to the impact of the proposals on neighbouring amenity, neighbours had
expressed concerns about loss of light, increased noise, loss of privacy and the impact
of floodlighting.

In relation to loss of light the main structures were proposed to be separated from the
residential properties by a sufficient distance to avoid loss of light or dominance. With
respect to noise this had been considered in the context that the site was currently a
sports ground utilised for competitive sporting events, and that the proposals were
intended to enhance the facilities. Members noted that the ground capacity and
number of matches would not be increased. It was acknowledged that the enhanced
facilities may result in some increase in attendance at smaller games.

Members were informed that whilst the existing and proposed use of the ground would
inevitably cause a degree of noise on match days, the Council's Environmental
Protection Unit considered the proposals acceptable and it was not considered a
refusal on noise grounds could be substantiated.

The floodlights have been carefully designed to avoid light spill and would be subject to

rage 2




conditions controlling their use, in these circumstances it was not considered that the
floodlights would cause unacceptable impacts on neighbour amenity.

In relation to privacy, Members noted that the main stand was over 100m from the
residential properties meaning there would be no unacceptable impacts when
considered against Policy. Members questioned the boundary treatment condition as it
read as if the responsibility lay with the householder rather than the developer. Officers
suggested that the condition could be amended and updated to address Members
concerns. Members also questioned the height of the fences as there was concern
that spectators would be able to see over residents' fences if they were on the stand,
additional concerns regarding litter were also raised. Officers informed Members that
the stands would be used only during larger games and that the final details of the
fences could be secured by condition.

Impacts on residential amenity and the operation of the public highway were
considered to be appropriately addressed within the application such that they would
not have unacceptable impacts. Members asked for clarity about the positioning of the
pedestrian access and asked whether residents objecting to the scheme were
mistaken. Officers informed Members that there was no pedestrian access against the
rear of the resident's properties.

A verbal change to the addendum was made and corrected, which should read 282 car
parking spaces not 382. In relation to parking, Members were aware that the facility
had existing parking arrangements, however, the training ground could be used as an
overflow car park.

Members questioned condition 20 regarding the PA system, which did not give details
of when the system would be in use. Officer informed Members that hours of use
would be included to address Members concerns.

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote
was unanimously agreed.

Resolved - That the application be approved, subject to the conditions and
informatives set out in the officer's report and addendum sheet circulated at the
meeting.

126.

15 KING EDWARDS ROAD, RUISLIP  43419/APP/2014/3879 (Agenda Item 6)

Erection of two detached houses with dormers and integral garages, new
crossovers and associated external works (involving demolition of the existing
house).

Officers introduced the report and referred members to the addendum sheet that had
been circulated.

Page 3




The application related to 15 King Edwards Road, Ruislip which sought the demolition
of the existing house and the erection of two new detached houses. The site was
located within the developed area in a street characterised by detached houses in plots
of varying size.

The application would serve to improve the utilisation of land and increase the amount
of housing provided at the site in accordance with adopted planning policy. Officers
explained that the design and layout was considered acceptable and that the proposal
would fit appropriately within the context of the surrounding street.

The development would provide appropriate living conditions for its future occupiers
and would avoid any unacceptable impacts on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers.
Further the proposal was served by adequate parking, was acceptable in highways
terms, and would provide appropriate levels of accessibility.

Officers informed Members that Ruislip Conservation Panel had made comments
which were not included in the addendum, however, no new issues had been raised.

A local Ward Councillor spoke regarding the proposals and made the following
comments:
e Ward Councillors had concerns.
The Council's Conservation Officers views had not been challenged.
The proposed site was cramped.
The officers' presentation did not give a full view of the property.
There were parking issues in Monarch's \Way which would be exasperated.
The demolition of the existing building could not be justified.
Every conservation area had a boundary.
The proposal would not enhance the area.
The existing property added character to the area.

The Chairman highlighted that there was objection made by the local residents'
association and no petition had been received. Members appreciated when Ward
Councillors attended meetings to put their views across, however, Members were
mindful that there were no grounds to refuse the proposal and that such as decision
would be overturned at appeal.

Members questioned whether a condition could be added that would prevent the
garage being converted into additional living spaces. Officers agreed that a condition
could be added to alleviate Members concerns.

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote
was unanimously agreed.

Resolved - That the application be approved, subject to the conditions and
informatives set out in the officer's report and addendum sheet circulated at the
meeting.

127.

COMET STORE, WILLOW TREE LANE, HAYES  56751/APP/20174/3915 (Agenda
Item 7)

Variation of condition 19 (Restriction on Sale of Goods) of planning permission

Page 4




198/APP/2001/69 dated 24/04/2001 in order to enable the sale of additional goods
from Unit 2, Willow Tree Land Retail Park (S73 Application).

Officers introduced the report and referred members to the addendum sheet that had
been circulated.

The application related to the vacant comet store at Willow Tree Lane and sought to
amend the types of goods which could be sold at the premises to facilitate its
occupation by B&M Ltd.

Officers considered that in this case given the limited extension to the range of goods
the proposal would not result in any unacceptable impacts on other centres. Further the
proposal would bring back into use a vacant retail unit which would serve to create jobs
and benefit the economy overall.

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote
was unanimously agreed.

Resolved - That the application be approved, subject to the conditions and
informatives set out in the officer's report and addendum sheet circulated at the
meeting.

The meeting, which commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 6.50 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Danielle Watson on Democratic Services Officer: 01895
277488. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and
Members of the Public.

Page 5




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Minutes &%ﬁ

MAJOR APPLICATIONS PLANNING COMMITTEE

10 February 2015 TILL

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

NORWARS

INGDON

LONDON

Committee Members Present:

Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman), lan Edwards (Vice-Chairman), Peter Curling,
Jazz Dhillon, Janet Duncan (Labour Lead), Carol Melvin, John Morgan, Brian Stead
and David Yarrow

LBH Officers Present:

Matthew Duigan, Planning Service Manager, Syed Shah, Highway Engineer,
Adrien Waite, Major Applications Manager, Nicole Cameron, Legal Advisor
Danielle Watson, Democratic Services Officer.

128. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda ltem 1)

None.

129. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda Item 2)

Clir. Peter Curling declared a pecuniary interest in item 7 as he was an employee of
Brunel University and left the room during the consideration thereof.

130. | TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 9
DECEMBER 2014 AND 6 JANUARY 2015 (Agenda Iltem 3)

The minutes of the meetings held on 9 December 2014 and 6 January 2015 were
agreed as a correct record.

131. | MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Iltem
4)

None.

132. | TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN
PUBLIC AND THOSE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 2 WILL BE HEARD IN PRIVATE
(Agenda Item 5)

It was confirmed that all items would be considered in Part 1 public.

133. | EC HOUSE, SWALLOWFIELD WAY, HAYES - 38065/APP/2015/206 (Agenda ltem
6)

Section 73 application seeking a variation to condition 2 (approved plans) of
planning permission ref. 38065/APP/2014/2143 (Re-development of the site to
provide 5 industrial units (Use Class B1(c), B2 and B8) with associated parking,

Page 7




servicing and landscaping (Involving demolition and refurbishment of existing
units) dated 2/12/14) to remove the 2 metre gap between units 2 and 3 by
extending either or both units.

Officers introduced the report and referred members to the addendum sheet that had
been circulated.

The application related to EC House on Swallowfield Way and sought a minor material
amendment to a previously granted planning consent. The amendment in effect
sought to fill in the gap between two buildings. The amendment was not considered to
result in any unacceptable material planning impacts. Members noted that there would
be no neighbouring impact.

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote
was unanimously agreed.

Resolved - That the application be approved, subject to the conditions and
informatives set out in the officer's report and addendum sheet circulated at the
meeting.

134.

BRUNEL UNIVERSITY, KINGSTON LANE, HILLINGDON - 532/APP/2014/4036
(Agenda Item 7)

Variation of condition 7 (to extend opening hours until 22:00 Monday to
Saturday) of planning permission ref: 532/APP/2001/1858 dated 15/10/2002:
Provision of replacement sports pitches (including new synthetic playing
surfaces), erection of floodlighting, boundary fences and storage building,
together with associated parking and access improvements (Site 3). (S73
application).

Officers introduced the report and referred members to the addendum sheet that had
been circulated.

The application related to Site 3 at Brunel University, the site of the sports pitches and
sought the variation of a condition relating to the hours of use of floodlighting.
Members noted that the floodlighting was originally given consent in 2002 and this
application permitted the existing floodlights on site and floodlights on the cemetery
pitch. The floodlights on the cemetery pitch had to date not been installed, but the
permission was valid and the applicant was now intending to complete this aspect of
the works.

The application also sought the extended hours of operation for the floodlighting.
Members noted that it was also extremely relevant that the Council previously granted
a temporary variation of the condition to enable the use of the flooding on the site until
22:00 Monday to Saturday for a temporary period of 18 months. The purpose of this
temporary consent was to ascertain whether the extended hours of operation would
have adverse impacts on the amenity of nearby residents.

Members noted that there were no complaints received in respect of the floodlighting
during this temporary period which was extremely relevant when considering this
matter; however, it was relevant that only the floodlights currently on the site had been
subject to a trial period and that the floodlights on the cemetery pitch had no such trial.

Officers explained that in this case the main reasons for the conditions existence

Page 8




related to the protection of residential amenity and therefore this was the sole
consideration. Members noted that 6 letters of objection had been received raising
concerns relating to light and noise nuisance, however, in respect of the existing
floodlights they had been operated at the requested hours for an 18 month trial period,
during which no complaints regarding either light or noise nuisance have been received
by the Council.

The lack of complaints during the trial period did provide strong evidence that the use
of the existing floodlights for the extended hours did not result in unacceptable impacts
on the amenity of nearby residents and weighed strongly in favour of the grant of
permanent permission in relation to these floodlights.

Members noted that in respect of the lighting for the cemetery pitches this had not been
the subject of any such trial period. As such, there was less evidence to demonstrate
that extended operation of lights in this location would not cause adverse impacts. It
was therefore considered that only a temporary period, to allow for a trial, should be
granted in respect of these particular floodlights.

Officers informed Members that no alterations would be made to the parking
arrangements and clarified that the application referenced variations of the original
application, simply restating what permission was originally granted for.

Members questioned whether residents of Robinwood Grove were happy with the
proposals as they had previously raised concerns which were the reason for the
floodlights to be restricted for use past 9pm. Officers informed Members that no
complaints had been received from residents of Robinwood Grove.

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote
was unanimously agreed.

Resolved - That the application be approved, subject to the conditions and
informatives set out in the officer's report and addendum sheet circulated at the
meeting.

135.

SILVERDALE HOUSE, PUMP LANE, HAYES - 49670/APP/2014/3854 (Agenda ltem
8)

Demolition of Silverdale House and the erection of a new industrial unit, use
class B1(c), B2 and B8, at the Provident Industrial Estate, Pump Lane, Hayes.

Officers introduced the report and referred members to the addendum sheet that had
been circulated.

The application related to Silverdale House on Pump Lane, which was a dilapidated
industrial building located within a designated Industrial and Business Area and a
Strategic Industrial Location. The application sought permission for the demolition of
the existing industrial building and its replacement with a new purpose building
industrial building to modern standards.

Members noted that also relevant to this consideration was the fact that a similar
proposal for 3 industrial units was granted consent. The schemes were not identical
and there had been changes to planning policy in the intervening period, however, the
relationships were similar and the main development plan and intent of relevant
policies remained the same.

Page 9




Members noted that the separation from the nearest residential property was 26.5m
which compared favourably to the previous consent which was 21.8m. The principle of
the proposed industrial development was acceptable within an industrial and business
area and the proposal would enhance the appearance of the area. Additionally, in
respect to impacts on residential occupiers, the proposal would be adequately
separated such as to avoid impacts by way of dominance or loss of outlook and would
have no windows which would cause loss of privacy.

In respect of noise the proposal would have a service yard on the Pump Lane frontage
and a condition would secure appropriate boundary treatment to mitigate noise to
acceptable levels. Subject to conditions it was considered the proposal would
therefore reduce noise impacts when compared to a continued use of the existing site.
Members requested that an additional condition be added to landscaping to physically
prevent access.

Members questioned the ratio of parking numbers and officer clarified that there were
17 proposed parking spaces, 5 of which were electric charging points and 2 for
disabled parking.

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote
was unanimously agreed.

Resolved - That the application be approved, subject to the conditions and
informatives set out in the officer's report and addendum sheet circulated at the
meeting.

136.

SILVERDALE HOUSE, PUMP LANE, HAYES - 49670/APP/2014/3855 (Agenda ltem
9)

Redevelopment of the site to provide 6 industrial units (Use Classes B1(c), B2
and B8) and the provision of associated landscaping, parking and service space
(involving demolition of existing building).

Officers introduced the report and referred members to the addendum sheet that had
been circulated.

The application sought permission for the demolition of the existing industrial building
and its replacement with 6 industrial units to modern standards. This application was
similar to the previous heard by Members although there would be 6 industrial units
instead of the 1.

Members noted the changes in comparison to the previously heard application and
requested that the 2 fire doors be conditioned to ensure that they were shut at all times
unless required for the use they were intended.

Officers also made a verbal change to the addendum as there was an existing
vehicular crossover which needed to be stopped up.

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote
was unanimously agreed.

Resolved - That the application be approved, subject to the conditions and

Page 10




informatives set out in the officer's report and addendum sheet circulated at the
meeting.

137. | BUILDING B5, 4 ROUNDWOOD AVENUE, STOCKLEY PARK -
37205/APP/2014/3056 (Agenda Item 10)

Extensions, refurbishment, and alterations, including recladding, to existing
office building, together with associated works, including landscaping and
alterations to car parking.

Officers introduced the report and outlined details of the application.

Members noted that the Committee had previously resolved to grant consent for
permission subject to condition and a legal agreement. The legal agreement included
a requirement that the original Stockley Park travel plan be amended and a £20,000
bond.

Having further considered this matter, the original Stockley Park travel plan, which
related to other units, was outside of the applicants control and therefore the original
requirement was overly onerous. Further, the level of bond was higher than had been
agreed on other developments in Stockley Park.

Members questioned how these travel plans were monitored; officers informed
Members that some of the travel plans were monitored by TfL to see if the business in
question was achieving what was laid out in their travel plan. It was also noted that
these bonds could be taken away from businesses who did not comply with their travel
plan.

The recommendation for the Heads of Term to be amended was moved, seconded and
on being put to the vote was unanimously agreed.

Resolved - That the Travel Plan Head of Terms be amended.

The meeting, which commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 6.31 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Danielle Watson on Democratic Services Officer: 01895
277488. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and
Members of the Public.

Page 11




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 88-94 LONG LANE ICKENHAM

Development: Demolition of 5 existing dwellinghouses and redevelopment of the site for a 8¢
unit Class C2 care home for the elderly of 1.5 to 2.5 storeys in height with
associated landscaping and car parking (40 spaces in total), stopping up of
existing vehicular accesses on Long Lane and construction of new vehicular
access onto Long Lane.

LBH Ref Nos: 52129/APP/2014/2996

Drawing Nos: Interim Travel Plan
Planning Statement
AA4378/100¢
AA4378/2001
AA4378/2004 rev. ¢
AA4378/2011
AA4378/202C
AL4378/001 Rev. B
AL4378/002 Rev. B
Acoustic report
Arboricultural Report
Care Home Needs Assessment
Construction Method Statement
Design and Access Statement
Ecological Assessment
Economic Benefits Statement
Energy Report
Heritage Statement
Statement of Community Engagement
Townscape and Visual Assessment
Air Quality Assessment
Transport Statement (as amended by 4 x A4 autotrack diagrams, accident
data and trip generation calculations received on 13/1/15)
Letter from Carterwood, dated 20/8/14
Landscape Design
Agent's covering email dated 21/10/14
2595.08B
Agent's covering email dated 11/9/14
AA4378/2006 rev.
AA4378/2007 rev.
AA4378/2008 rev.
AA4378/2015 rev.
AA4378/2016 rev.
AA4378/2005 rev.
AA4378/2017 rev.
AA4378/2018 rev.
AA4378/2019 rev.
Un-numbered Plan Diagram of Roof Pitches

ST TS MmMmMYSYSOmm

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



Date Plans Received: 20/08/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 20/01/2015
15/09/2014 20/08/2014
21/10/2014
14/02/2015
13/01/2015
11/09/2014
09/10/2014

Date Application Valid:

1. SUMMARY

This application is for the demolition of 5 detached houses within the Ickenham Village
Conservation Area to allow the re-development of the site for a 85 suite Class C2 care
home for the frail elderly. The building would mainly comprise of a part two, part three
storey block, but by concealing the upper floors with the roof space, it would appear as a
one and a half to two and a half storeys high and would have an 'H' shaped layout with an
extended rear wing which would extend along much of the depth of the site. Vehicular
access would be provided on the northern side of the site, adjoining the Douay Martyrs
School with a total of 40 car parking spaces being provided.

The proposed care home would involve the take up of much more garden land than the
existing houses, but having regard to adjoining and surrounding sites which contain large
buildings with in-depth footprints, the overall quality of the scheme, and the impacts of the
scheme in terms of the character of the area, landscaping and tree impacts, and the
considerations advised by the London Plan such as biodiversity, flood risk and climate
change, it is considered that a reason for refusal could not be justified in relation to the
loss of gardens.

The loss of 5 Class C3 houses is strictly contrary to policy H3 of the saved UDP but the
GLA advise that the application should be considered in terms of the more up to date
policies in the NPPF and London Plan which advise that Class C2 accommodation should
be included as part of the Borough's overall housing provision and therefore results in a
net increase of 80 units on this site. The Council's Adult Social Care do query the need for
the facility within the borough, but the GLA advise that there is significant pan - London and
Hillingdon need for the facility and that this need for care home places is expected to
increase.

The Council's Urban Design/ Conservation Officer raises no objections to the demolition
of the houses, subject to their details being recorded, which would be controlled by
condition. The proposal has also formed the subject of pre-application discussions and
advice and the scheme has undergone various revisions. The conservation officer is fully
supportive of this scheme and considers it to be a high quality and well considered
proposal that would not harm the character or appearance of the Ickenham Village
Conservation Area.

The scheme would not harm the amenities of surrounding residential occupiers and fully
complies with Council guidance. Furthermore, the Highway Officer is satisfied that the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



proposed parking is sufficient to serve the development and the proposed access
arrangements would not prejudice highway safety. The Tree/ Landscape Officer also
considers that the scheme is acceptable in terms of its impact upon existing trees on site
and that the proposed landscaping scheme is of a high quality that would support the care
home residents and over time, improve the character of the area. Furthermore the
proposal has been assessed with respect to biodiversity impacts and the Council's
Sustainability Officer advises that the impact is acceptable and with enhancements that
could be controlled with conditions, could be improved. Flood impacts are also
acceptable.

The Mayor does not raise any in principle objections to the scheme in his Stage 1 report.

The application is recommended favourably, but further archaeological investigation is
required, the results of which needs to be referred to GLAAS and the application would
need to be referred back to the Mayor.

2, RECOMMENDATION
That subject to:-

1. The Mayor not directing the Council under Article 6 of the Town and Country
Planning (Mayor of London) Order 2008 to refuse the application, or under Article
7 of the Order that he is to act as the local planning authority for the purpose of
determining the application, and

2. The Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service (GLAAS) not objecting to
the application following further archaeological investigation,

delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to grant
planning permission, subject to any relevant amendments agreed by the Head of
Planning and Enforcement and also those requested by the Greater London
Authority and the following:

A) That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of the
Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and/ or other appropriate legislation to secure:

(i) Highways Works: the developer will required to enter into a S278/S38
agreement to secure highways works including the new access onto Long Lane
and ther stopping up/re-instatement as public footpath of the existing crossovers.
(ii) Travel Plan

(iii) Construction Training: A financial contribution is sought equal to Training
costs: £2500 per £1m build cost + Coordinator costs of£9600 or an in kind scheme
to be provided to this value.

(iv) Employment Training: An Employment Training Strategy to be submitted.

(v) Air Quality Monitoring: A financial contribution to the sum of £25.000.

(vi) Project Management & Monitoring Fee: 5% of total cash contributions.

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council’'s reasonable costs in the preparation of the S106 Agreement and any
abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed.

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and the
S$106 legal agreement has not been finalised before the 6th March 2015, or any
other period deemed appropriate that delegated authority be given to the Head of
Planning and Enforcement to refuse the application for the following reason:

'The applicant has failed to provide a commensurate package of planning benefits
to maximise the health and social benefits, namely highway improvements,
construction training, air quality monitoring and project management of the
scheme to the community. The proposal therefore conflicts with Policy R17 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).'

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers, subject to the
completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

F) Following the Council's Community Infrastructure Levy coming into force, the
applicant pay the required levy on the additional floorspace actually created.

G) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:-

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COMm4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers, AA4378/2005 rev. E,
AA4378/2006 rev. E, AA4378/2007 rev. E, AA4378/2008 rev. D, AA4378/2015 rev. A,
AA4378/2016 rev. A, AA4378/2017 rev. A, AA4378/2018 rev. A and AA4378/2019 rev. A
and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Noise mitigation measures on pages 19 & 20 of the Acoustic Report

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policies OE1 and OE3 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

4 RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

5 COM7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces,
including details of balconies, window reveals, eaves lines, roof hips and verges of the
new building have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with the
approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

6 RES8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including demonstration that 5% of all parking spaces are served
by electrical charging points)

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38 and
AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policies
5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (July 2011)

8 CcOM28 Visibility Splays - Pedestrian

The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x
2.4m pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both
directions and shall be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of
0.6m and 2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy AM7 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

9 NONSC Programme of Building Recording

No demolition shall take place until the applicant (or their heirs and successors in title) has
secured the implementation of a programme of building recording and reporting to English
Heritage Recording Level 1 in accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation which
has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the local planning authority in
writing. No development shall take place other that in accordance with the Written
Scheme of Investigation unless agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

Built heritage assets on this site will be affected by the development. The planning
authority wishes to secure building recording in line with NPPF, and publication of results,
in accordance with Section 12 of the NPPF.

10 NONSC Facilities for People with Disabilities

The care home use hereby approved shall not commence until the development has been
provided with a layout and facilities which meet the requirements set out in BS 8300:2009
(Code of Practice on Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of
disabled people), including:-

a. Accessible parking bays should be sited within 50m of the entrance. They should be a
minimum of 4.8m x 24m and marked and signed in accordance with BS
8300:2009+A1:2010.

b. Given the nature of the proposed development, at least one enlarged accessible parking
bay, 3m x 6m, should be provided.

c. In accordance with BS 8300:2009+A1:2010, clause 4.2.1.1, a setting down point and
parking space, 4.8m x 8m, for taxis, Dial-a-Ride and accessible minibus vehicles with tail
lifts, should be provided in close proximity to the main entrance.

d. A ratio of 1 'assisted bathroom' (or assisted showers provided this meets residents
needs) to 8 service users should be shown on plan, including details of the internal layout
and specifications should be provided. Reference to BS 8300:2009+A1:2010, clause 12.3.
Floor gully drainage should be provided in all bathrooms where showers are to be
provided.

e. A minimum of 10% of ensuite bathrooms should be designed to allow independent use
by wheelchair users. Reference to BS 8300:2009+A1:2010 should be made.

The layout and all facilities which form part of the scheme shall be retained and
maintained in good working order for so long as the building remains in use.

REASON

To ensure that the care home is accessible and welcoming to all sections of the
population, including older and disabled people in accordance with policy AM13 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and policies 3.1,
3.8 and 7.2 of the London Plan (2011).

11 NONSC Fire Excavation Plan

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved a comprehensive fire
emergency plan that demonstrates how disabled people will be safeguarded from fire and
enabled to evacuate the building shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



REASON

To ensure that adequate facilities are provided for people with disabilities in accordance
with policy AM13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2 of the London Plan (2011).

12 NONSC Privacy Scheme

Notwithstanding the details on the approved plans, details of additional measures to
protect the privacy of residential bedroom on the rear elevation and rear wing, which may
include privacy screens and/or angled windows shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of the units and thereafter
permanently retained.

REASON
To ensure adequate privacy in maintained, in accordance with Policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Pan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

13 NONSC Mechanical Plant Noise Level

The rating level of the noise emitted from the site by any chiller or refrigeration unit, Air
Conditioner or other mechanical plant shall be at least 5dB below the existing background
noise level. The noise levels shall be determined at the boundary of the nearest noise
sensitive premises. The measurements and assessment shall be made in accordance to
the latest British Standard 4142, 'Method for rating industrial noise affecting mixed
residential and industrial areas'.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

14 NONSC Scheme for the Control of Noise and Odour

No air extraction system shall be used on the premises until a scheme for the control of
noise and odour emanating from the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include such combination of measures as
may be approved by the LPA. Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented and
maintained in full compliance with the approved measures.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

15 NONSC Delivery Hours

There shall be no loading or unloading of vehicles, including delivery and the loading or
unloading of goods outside the hours of 08:00 and 20:00, Monday to Friday, and between
the hours of 08:00 and 14:00 on Saturdays. The site shall not be used for loading or
unloading of vehicles, including delivery and the loading or unloading of goods on Sundays
or Bank Holidays.

REASON

To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

16 NONSC External Lighting Scheme
No external lighting shall be installed on the land unless the details have first been

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



submitted to and approved in writing by the Council. Any installation of external lighting
shall only be carried out in accordance with the previously approved details.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties in accordance with policies BE13 and
OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

17 NONSC Details of Plant, Machinery and Fuel

Before the development is commenced details of any plant, machinery and fuel burnt, as
part of the energy provision and the location of the flue(s) for the development shall be
submitted to the LPA for approval. This shall include pollutant emission rates at the flue(s)
with or without mitigation technologies and needs to be considered as part of a wider air
quality assessment, as set out in the EPUK CHP Guidance 2012, if applicable. The use of
ultra low NOx emission gas CHPs and boilers is recommended. The development should
as a minimum be ‘air quality neutral' and demonstrably below the relevant building
emissions benchmarks.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring properties in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

18 NONSC Energy Assessment

Prior to the commencement of development a detailed energy assessment shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The assessment shall clearly set out the baseline energy performance of the
development, and the detailed measures to reduce CO2 emissions by 35% from a 2013
Part L baseline. The assessment shall provide detailed specifications of the measures
and technology set out in outline energy assessment. The assessment shall also include
full details (including specification and location on the site) of the low and zero carbon
technology preferred option. the information shall also include details of the type, location
and management of biomass material should biofuel dependent boilers or heating
systems be required.

Finally, the assessment must include appropriate measuring and monitoring proposals
and how the information will be submitted to the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate
CO2 reductions are being met.

The development must proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON

To ensure appropriate carbon savings are delivered in accordance with London Plan
Policy 5.2.

19 NONSC Contaminated Land

(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning
Guidance Document on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning Authority
(LPA). The scheme shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses
with any such requirement specifically and in writing:

(a) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and
provide information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and evaluate

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



all potential sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all other
identified receptors relevant to the site;

(b) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater
sampling, together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out by
a suitably qualified and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also clearly
identify all risks, limitations and recommendations for remedial measures to make the site
suitable for the proposed use; and

(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA
prior to commencement, along with details of a watching brief to address undiscovered
contamination.

(ii) If during development works contamination not addressed in the submitted remediation
scheme is identified, the updated watching brief shall be submitted and an addendum to
the remediation scheme shall be agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(iii) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a
comprehensive verification report shall be submitted to the Council's Environmental
Protection Unit before any part of the development is occupied or brought into use unless
the LPA dispenses with any such requirement specifically and in writing.

(iv) No contaminated soils or other materials shall be imported to the site. All imported
soils for landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination. Before any part of
the development is occupied, all imported soils shall be independently tested for chemical
contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. All soils used for gardens and/or landscaping purposes shall
be clean and free of contamination.

REASON

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable
risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

20 COM31 Secured by Design

The building(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association
of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No building shall be occupied until accreditation has
been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

21 NONSC Sustainable Water Management

Prior to commencement, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall clearly demonstrate how it, incorporates sustainable urban drainage in

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



accordance with the hierarchy set out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan and will:

i. provide information on all Suds features including the method employed to delay and
control the surface water discharged from the site and:

a. calculations showing storm period and intensity and volume of storage required to
control surface water and size of features to control that volume.

b. any overland flooding should be shown, with flow paths depths and velocities identified
as well as any hazards, ( safe access and egress must be demonstrated).

c. measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface
waters;

d. how they or temporary measures will be implemented to ensure no increase in flood
risk from commencement of construction.

ii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including
appropriate details of Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification,
remediation and timescales for the resolving of issues.

iii. provide details of the body legally responsible for the implementation of the
management and maintenance plan.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iii. incorporate water saving measures and equipment.

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (November 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk
Management of the London Plan (July 2011) and National Planning Policy Framework
(March 2012) and the Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014). To be handled as close
to its source as possible in compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable Drainage of the
London Plan (July 2011), and conserve water supplies in accordance with Policy 5.15
Water use and supplies of the London Plan (July 2011).

22 NONSC Scheme of Ecological Enhancement

Prior to the commencement of development an ecological enhancement scheme shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
clearly detail measures to promote and enhance wildlife opportunities within the
landscaping and the fabric of the buildings including measures such as habitat walls, bird
and bat boxes and nectar rich planting. The scheme shall aim to include an area of land
dedicated to wildlife habitat. The development must proceed in accordance with the
approved scheme.

REASON
To ensure the development contributes to ecological enhancement in accordance with
Policy EM7 (Local Plan) and Policy 7.28 of the London Plan.

23 NONSC Living Screens

Prior to commencement of development a scheme for the inclusion of living screens shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme
shall provide details of the types of living material to be used and the locations and

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



methods of maintenance where necessary. The development should proceed in
accordance with the approved plans.

REASON
To ensure the development contributes to a number of objectives in compliance with
Policy 5.11 of the London Plan and Policy EM1 of the Local Plan.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF10 NPPF - Meeting challenge of climate change flooding costal

NPPF11 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the natural environment

NPPF12 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

LPP 3.2 (2011) Improving health and addressing health inequalities

LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice

LPP 3.14 (2011) Existing Housing - Efficient use of stock

LPP 3.16 (2011) Protection and enhancement of social infrastructure

LPP 3.17 (2011) Health and social care facilities

LPP 4.12 (2011) Improving opportunities for all

LPP 5.2 (2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.6 (2011) Decentralised Energy in Development Proposals

LPP 5.7 (2011) Renewable energy

LPP 5.9 (2011) Overheating and cooling

LPP 5.10 (2011) Urban Greening

LPP 5.11 (2011) Green roofs and development site environs

LPP 5.12 (2011) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.15 (2011) Water use and supplies

LPP 6.3 (2011) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 6.5 (2011) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport
infrastructure

LPP 6.9 (2011) Cycling

LPP 6.10 (2011) Walking

LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking

LPP 7.1 (2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



LPP 7.2
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.5
LPP 7.6
LPP 7.8
LPP 7.13
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.15
LPP 7.19
LPP 7.21
EC2
EC5
BE4
BE13
BE18
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24

BE38

OE1

OE3

OES8

H3
H10

R17
AM2
AM7
AM9

AM13

(2011) An inclusive environment

(2011) Designing out crime

(2011) Local character

(2011) Public realm

(2011) Architecture

(2011) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2011) Safety, security and resilience to emergency

(2011) Improving air quality

(2011) Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes

(2011) Biodiversity and access to nature

(2011) Trees and woodland

Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments
Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats
New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

Proposals for hostels or other accommodation for people in need of
care

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation
leisure and community facilities

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(ii) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

SPD-NO Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006

SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted
July 2008

SPG-AQ Air Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted May 2002

SPG-CS Community Safety by Design, Supplementary Planning Guidance,

adopted July 2004

3 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Residents Services, Building Control, 3N/01 Civic
Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

4 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Councilgs Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

5 128 Food Hygiene
The Council's Commercial Premises Section should be consulted prior to the use of the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



premises so as to ensure compliance with the Food Safety Registration Regulations
1990, Hygiene (General) Regulations 1970, The Food Act 1984, The Health and Safety at
Work Act 1974 and any other relevant legislation. Contact: - Commercial Premises
Section, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Telephone 01895
250190).

6

The applicant is reminded of the duties set out in the Disability Discrimination Act 1995,
with regard to employment and service provision. Whilst an employer's duty to make
reasonable adjustment is owed to an individual employee or job applicant, the
responsibility of service providers is to disabled people at large, and the duty is
anticipatory. The failure to take reasonable steps at this stage to facilitate access will
therefore count against the service provider, if/when challenged by a disabled person. It is
therefore recommended that the applicant takes full advantage of the opportunity that this
development offers, to improve the accessibility of the premises to people with mobility
and sensory impairments.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The 0.9ha site is located on the north western side of Long Lane, some 40m to the north
east of its junction with Swakeleys Drive. The site comprises 5 detached residential
houses on large plots, 4 of which front Long Lane, albeit set well back from the road (Nos.
88 - 94) and have relatively narrow long rear gardens. A fifth house known as Dormy House
is a backland development which extends along the rear of the Long Lane properties and is
accessed, together with an adjoining property known as No. 7A, from Court Road via a
private single width access located between Nos. 5A and 7 Court Road. The five properties
are of mixed style and size, although they are all characterised by their mature gardens
which include a number of fine trees, some of which are clearly visible from surrounding
roads and contribute to the sylvan character of the area.

The site forms part of an established residential area to the north of the North Hillingdon
Local Centre which is served by Hillingdon Underground Station on the Metropolitan and
Piccadilly Underground lines, which Long Lane crosses, together with the A40 some 240m
to the south of the site. Immediately adjoining the site to the south and east is
predominantly two storey detached and semi-detached housing, with similar properties
also fronting the opposite side of Long Lane to the east. To the north, the site is adjoined by
the Douay Martyrs School, which contains a locally listed building.

The site is located on the south eastern side of the Ickenham Village Conservation Area of
which it forms a part, with the boundary in this vicinity running along the opposite side of
Long Lane. The curtilage of Dormy House is covered by TPO 438 with part of the adjoining
rear garden of No. 90 Long Lane also being covered by TPO 482a.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is for the demolition of the five detached houses on site to enable its re-
development as a mainly part two storey, part three storey 5,861 sq.m. registered Class
C2 care home for the frail elderly with associated access, parking and landscaping. The
care home would provide 85 bedrooms/suites and have a maximum capacity for 89
residents. The proposed care home would be set back from its boundaries and have an H-

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



shaped footprint with an extended wing in the north-western corner at the rear of the site.
The upper floor of the building would largely be contaioned within the roof space so that it
would appear on its primary frontage onto Long Lane as 1.5 to 2 storeys in height, rising to
2.5 storeys in the centre of the site, before reducing to 2 storeys on the north-western wing.

The central section of the building would contain mainly communal space over two floors,
including the building's main entrance on its northern elevation, restaurant, cafe, lounges,
library, activity spaces, cinema, hair salon and spa bathing and therapy space with the side
wings mainly containing residential accommodation. There would be a mix of unit types,
including 12 studio and 17 one-bedroom units on the ground floor, 13 studio and 17 one-
bedroom units on the first floor. The top floor within the central roof space of the building
would provide a 24 bed dementia wing, although it is likely that most residents would have
some degree of dementia. A small basement would be provided in the north eastern corner
of the building.

The design of the building incorporates articulated and varied elevations and traditional
hipped and gabled roofs. The scale and massing of the building responds to its context and
relationship with neighbouring properties, with the taller two and a half storey central wing
being sited towards the centre of the site. The bulk and mass of the roof is further broken
up with dormers of varied sizes and mixed design. The main roofs are steeply pitched,
reflecting the 'arts and craft' style prevalent within the surrounding area, with roof elements
nearer the ground at a lower pitch to create the traditional 'swept' character. The Long Lane
frontage is particularly important and here the building has been set back to replicate the
siting of the existing houses and designed to reflect that of a similar terraced block further
along Long Lane.

The building would be set within landscaped grounds, involving the retention of many
existing trees and new planting. A series of enclosed garden and courtyard areas around
the building would be created, mainly along the southern boundary which have been
designed to have their own character and individual recreation/activity space.

The new access road that would run along the northern side of the site to access the
parking/ servicing area adjacent to the main entrance (comprising 10 spaces, including 2
disabled spaces) and the larger car park at the rear (comprising 30 spaces, including 7
tandem spaces). The proposal involves the stopping up of the existing vehicular
crossovers on Long Lane and the construction of a new vehicular access along the
northern side of the site from Long Lane, adjoining the Douay Martyrs School.

The care home would provide a 24 hour operation with typically three shifts for care staff,
comprising a morning shift which would commence between 06:00 and 08:00, an
afternoon shift which would commence around mid-afternoon and a night shift
commencing between 20:00 and 23:00. Ancillary staff such as kitchen and housekeeping
personnel can also work outside normal hours with start and end times of around 07:00
and 14:00-15:00 respectively. Some administration as well as management staff would
work normal daytime hours of around 09:00-17:00.

The scheme has formed the subject of two previous pre-application enquiries with officers.
The application is supported by the following documents:-
Design and Access Statement:-

This provides a statement summary and describes the applicant, Signature Senior

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



Lifestyle Ltd. and its operating ethos. The site and its local context is described and a site
analysis is produced. The statement goes on to outline the development and reasoning
behind the design approach taken, including the results of meetings held with Council
officers and the public. The landscape proposals are described, including the design
principles adopted and the analysis that led to its design. Access considerations are then
discussed, together with sustainability and energy issues.

Planning Statement:

This provides an introduction to the proposals, describes the site and notes that there is no
relevant planning history. It goes on to describe the proposals and summarises the pre-
application discussions that have taken place with Council officers and the local
community. Relevant planning policy is described and the proposals and their impacts are
assessed against the development plan. The statement concludes by stating that the
scheme is acceptable in terms of the identified impacts and the relevant policies of the
development plan and in particular the loss of 5 dwellings as 85 Class C2 suites would be
provided as a replacement which the NPPG advises should be considered as a form of
housing. If this is not accepted, there remain compelling material considerations to grant
permission, namely there is a demonstrable need for the development, there would be an
associated continual release of family housing, the overal quantum of care home units
provided and the significant economic benefits of the scheme.

Heritage Statement:

This provides an introduction to the report and assesses the statutory constraints affecting
the site. The history of the site and its surroundings are described and the report then
provides an assessment of significance of the heritage assets present within the area (with
the exception of below ground archaeology). The proposed development is described and
the impacts of the development on the heritage assets identified as being of significance,
namely the Ickenham Village Conservation Area and the setting of the locally listed
buildings at the Douay Martyrs School which are then assessed. The report concludes that
through careful design, the proposed development will make a positive contribution to the
Ickenham Conservation Area and the setting of the nearby locally listed building and
therefore accords with national and local planning policy and legislation.

Townscape and Visual Assessment:

This provides an introduction to the study and outlines relevant national and local planning
policy. The site and its setting is described and the townscape character defined and a
photographic visual assessment presented. The development proposals are described and
their impact on the townscape character and the wider visual environment are assessed.
The report concludes that given the existing character of the townscape and the high
degree of visual containment on the site, restricting medium and longer distance views,
together with the design of the scheme which breaks up the building's massing, the
proposed care home building can be accommodated on site without resulting in any
unacceptable change to the overall character of the townscape and therefore complies
with policy.

Transport Statement:

This provides an introduction to the proposals and describes the existing transport network.
The existing site is described, results of a traffic survey are presented and accident
records analysed. Relevant national, strategic and local planning policy and guidance is

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



assessed and details of pre-application highway advice noted. The development proposals
are then described as they relate to highway matters. Results of the traffic appraisal are
presented, including predicted traffic generation using the TRICS database and
conclusions are presented.

Economic Benefits Assessment:

This provides an introduction to the study and defines the study area. Relevant national,
regional and local planning policies and guidance as it relates to housing is assessed. The
statement goes on to consider the socio economic context of the site, advising that the
study area has an ageing population which will continue to grow, the ready availability of the
local labour force would support the construction and operational phases of the
development, economic benefits of £12.5m over the anticipated construction phase and
£2m per annum during operational phase with some 90 full and part time employment
positions would accrue to the local economy, savings to the NHS of approximately £29,500
per annum and with a large proportion of residents aged 65+ within the study area living
within under occupied houses, the proposal offers the opportunity to downsize, freeing up
housing stock, potentially at a rate of approximately 30 houses per annum.

Arboricultural Report:

This provides the background to the report and describes its methodology. The report goes
on to assess the existing trees in terms of their quality and value, the impact of the
proposed development upon the trees in and around the site, methods of reducing the
impacts on retained trees, proposed tree protection measures and the proposed tree
planting strategy.

Landscape Design:

This document provides additional supporting information for the landscape strategy and
masterplan. There are sections on the design principles, site analysis, constraints and
opportunities, communal garden design, boundary treatments and provides an indicative
planting palette, plan and sections.

Ecological Assessment:

This provides the background to the study, describes the site and the survey and
evaluation methodology which includes a desktop study, initial habitat and faunal surveys,
including building surveys, tree inspections on and close to the site and limited further dusk
and dawn surveys. Results are presented and recommendations are made. The report
concludes that based on the evidence obtained from the detailed survey work and with the
implementation of the recommendations set out in the report, there is no ecological reason
to suggest that any ecological designations, habitats of nature conservation interest or any
protected species would be significantly harmed by the proposals and that a number of net
gains for biodiversity should be delivered by the proposed development.

Care Home Needs Assessment:

This provides an introduction to the study and assesses general population trends and
advises of the implications for dementia care. Recent legislative changes are assessed
and key issues for the care home sector are identified. The report goes on to consider the
type of accommodation proposed and how this would compare to the local market. The
methodology for assessing need for elderly care is described and results are presented.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 30



Acoustic Report:

This provides the background to the assessment, including an ambient noise level survey
carried out between 30/5/14 and 1/6/14. The site and methodology are described. Internal
and external noise criteria are assessed and results of the survey are presented and
discussed. Minimum construction attenuation values are established which mainly relate to
the glazing/ ventilation specifications and noise design criteria set for proposed external
plant. The report concludes by stating that providing the mitigation measues to the building
facade and noise criteria followed for the plant and equipment, the scheme would comply
with relevant standards and the NPPF allowing planning permission to be granted.

Energy Report:

The report sets out the background and the policy framework to the report and advises of
the measures that would be used and assesses the feasibility of a range of energy
technologies following the three stages of the London Plan energy hierarchy.
Recommendations are made, including the preferred option of a gas fired Combined Heat
and Power Unit and either a Ground Source Heat Pump or Biofuel/Dual Fuel Condensing
Boiler system.

Construction Method Statement:

This sets out the management approach to construction activities on site and details the
processes and procedures that will be followed.

Interim Travel Plan:
This provides possible measures to reduce reliance on the private car.
Air Quality Assessment:

The assessment sets out the background and scope of the study and reviews relevant
planning policy and air quality legislation and guidance. The report then assesses indicative
background pollution concentrations and models predicted pollution levels. The report
evaluates the potential impacts of the emissions from the two options being considered for
the proposed heating plant and development traffic on ambient air quality and assesses
future air quality in terms of whether this constrains the proposed development of the site.
The report concludes that the proposal will be compliant with all relavant national and local
planning policy and air quality legislation and that air quality considerations will not impact
on the development or occupation of the site.

Statement of Community Engagement:

This sets out Hillingdon's guidance for prospective developers on community involvement,
details the consultation undertaken by the applicant, including a public exhibition over 2
days at the Ickenham United Reform Church, feedback mechanisms, public comments
received and the applicant's response.

Letter from Carterwood dated 20/8/14:

This provides further clarification on the assessment of existing care home bedspaces.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



Comment on Relevant Planning History

There is no planning history on this site of relevance to the proposed development with the
only applications submitted relating to extensions and alterations of the existing houses.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.E7 (2012) Raising Skills

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.EM1 (2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation
PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

PT1.EM7 (2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

PT1.EM8 (2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

PT1.T1 (2012) Accessible Local Destinations

PT1.CI1 (2012) Community Infrastructure Provision

Part 2 Policies:

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF10 NPPF - Meeting challenge of climate change flooding costal
NPPF11 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the natural environment
NPPF12 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment
LPP 3.2 (2011) Improving health and addressing health inequalities
LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice

LPP 3.14 (2011) Existing Housing - Efficient use of stock

LPP 3.16 (2011) Protection and enhancement of social infrastructure

LPP 3.17 (2011) Health and social care facilities
LPP 4.12 (2011) Improving opportunities for all

LPP 5.2 (2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.6 (2011) Decentralised Energy in Development Proposals
LPP 5.7 (2011) Renewable energy

LPP 5.9 (2011) Overheating and cooling

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



LPP 5.10
LPP 5.11
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.15
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.5
LPP 6.9
LPP 6.10
LPP 6.13
LPP 7.1
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.5
LPP 7.6
LPP 7.8
LPP 7.13
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.15
LPP 7.19
LPP 7.21
EC2
EC5

BE4
BE13
BE18
BE19
BE20
BE21
BE22

BEZ23
BE24
BE38

OE1

OE3

(2011) Urban Greening

(2011) Green roofs and development site environs

(2011) Flood risk management

(2011) Sustainable drainage

(2011) Water use and supplies

(2011) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
(2011) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport infrastructure
(2011) Cycling

(2011) Walking

(2011) Parking

(2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities
(2011) An inclusive environment

(2011) Designing out crime

(2011) Local character

(2011) Public realm

(2011) Architecture

(2011) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2011) Safety, security and resilience to emergency

(2011) Improving air quality

(2011) Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes

(2011) Biodiversity and access to nature

(2011) Trees and woodland

Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments
Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats
New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



OE8

H3
H10
R17

AM2

AM7
AM9

AM13

AM14
AM15
HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

SPD-NO
SPD-PO
SPG-AQ
SPG-CS

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Loss and replacement of residential accommodation
Proposals for hostels or other accommodation for people in need of care

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(ii) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2008
Air Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted May 2002

Community Safety by Design, Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted July
2004

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- 9th October 2014
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees

58 neighbopuring properties have been consulted, the application has been advertised in the local
press on 24/9/14 and a site notice dated 18/9/14 has been displayed on site. A further 14 day
consultation period has also been undertaken on 18/2/15 to the revised plans and elevations
received on 20/1/15 and the revised access arrangements on Long Lane received on 14/2/15. To
date, 3 petitions, objecting to the proposals have been received, together with 17 individual

responses, 16 objecting to the proposals and 1 in general support.

First petition with 20 signatories states:-

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



'I object to the planning application reference 52129/APP/2014/2996 on the grounds of the visual
impairment of the overdevelopment of the site in a Conservation Area. Additionally the impact of the
highway in relation to safety, disturbance and noise.'

Second petition with 29 signatories states:-

'l object to the planning application reference 52129/APP/2014/2996 on grounds of visual impairment
of the over development of the site in a Conservation Area.

Additionallly the impact of the highway in relation to safety, disturbance and the noise.

It also seems like an act of vandalism to wilfully destroy five existing properties, which will totally alter
the outlook of our locality.'

Third petition with 37 signatories states:-

'We, the undersigned, fully support the Ickenham Residents' Association in their objective of
ensuring that the wishes of its members as well as the wishes of the people of Ickenham in general,
are heard by the London Borough of Hillingdon's North Planning Committee.'

Objection comments:-

Impact on Conservation Area/Character of Area

(i) A large building of this scale and use will be detrimental to the Conservation Area, out of keeping
with its character,

(i) Proposal does not respect the local context or street pattern and in particular, the scale and
proportions of surrounding buildings. This represents overdevelopment of the site and a huge
change to the local area with its excessive height, footprint and density, detrimental to the local
environment and contrary to policy which seeks good design and respect for the character of the
surroundings and regard to the spaces between buildings,

(iii) Proposal is unsuitable within the middle of a residential area - the area is currently characterised
by detached/semi-detached properties, not the very large building that is proposed, (iv) This is
another corporate residence being built that will reduce the sense of community in the area,

(v) Approval would only leave three family houses on this stretch of road,

(vi) The 5 houses that would be demolished could house around 25 people between them, whereas
the proposal could hold around 125 people with staff, visitors etc, a fivefold increase whereas there
is a need to avoid town cramming,

(vii) There will be a huge loss of green garden space to building,

(viii) Proposal will result in loss of trees and wildlife. There are protected trees at Nos. 90 and 96
Long Lane and Dormy House and extent of excavation with heavy excavation equipment could
impact on root system of these trees,

Impact on Residential Amenity

(ix) The size of the building will be overbearing with greater height and extent of building,

(x) A two/three storey building and planting of large trees along our rear boundary in Swakeleys Drive
which is only 40ft from our back door will block our sunlight, effect our garden shrubbery with falling
branches damaging fencing and mar the skyline, destroying the pleasant open outlook, a main
reason for buying the bungalow,

(xi) Adjoining residential properties will be overlooked by proposed building, particularly No. 2b
Swakeleys Drive and bathroom and rear bedrooms at No. 96 Long Lane, resulting in a loss of
privacy, contrary to policy,

(xii) Proposal will adversely affect view from No. 96 Long Lane,

(xiii) Proposal will affect quality of life for residents and right to quiet enjoyment of their properties and
gardens, contrary to Human Rights Act

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



(xiv) Residents already have a school, another care home and soon to have a Tesco by Hillingdon
Station to contend with. The noise and pollution are already at extreme levels,

(xv) Proposal will significantly change our outlook to that of a large commercial property with
reduced greenery,

(xvi) Proposal will result in light pollution from the property and its parking and service areas,
detrimental to ambiance of the area,

(xvii) There would be additional noise at all hours of the day and night, 7 days a week from staff,
delivery lorries, emergency vehicles, tradesmen, doctors, etc, particularly from the access and the
car park which is too close to garden boundaries in Court Road. Delivery/collection hours of parts,
materials and waste need to be acceptable,

(xviii) How will waste be handled, controlled and stored?

(xix) Construction work would involve much noise and mess, involving reversing heavy vehicles at
unsocial hours,

(xx) Tree planting on boundary will eventually damage foundations to our property,

Traffic Issues

(xxi) Proposed access directly opposite our property could exacerbate existing problems when
accessing and exiting our property due to impaired visibility through parked vehicles, speed of traffic
and traffic queuing, causing potential risk and disruption,

(xxii) This part of Long Lane is an accident 'hot-spot' with 2 recent accidents, one of which was fatal
and known near misses which LBH has already had to implement traffic calming. Traffic increase
will exacerbate this,

(xxiii) Increased vehicles accessing and exiting the site could cause a major risk to the school
children. At a minimum, the bus stop should be re-sited,

(xxiv) Long Lane and surrounding areas are already extremely busy and congested. With proposed
space for 40 vehicles, there will be a large increase in traffic and footfall along Long Lane which will
exacerbate congestion from early morning to late evening, particularly during commuter and school
rush hours,

(xxv) With up to 90 part time staff, there would be a lack of on-site parking particularly at staff
arrival/departure times, which will spill onto surrounding already heavily parked streets, causing
more congestion around the school and Long Lane, no matter how and when staff start/depart work
which will be prejudicial to road safety, particularly involving school children. Consideration should be
given to a residents parking scheme,

(xxvi) There will be no access from Court Road but developer may retain rights to use Court Road
access which could cause problems in the future,

Other

(xxvii) Demolition of 5 houses at a time when houses are in short supply will add to pressure to over-
develop other sites as unlikely that the care home will free up any existing local housing,

(xxviii) Proposal will exacerbate existing flooding and drainage problems - particularly in Court Road
which is lower than ther application site and is an area that easily floods, even after a small amount
of rainfall. Flooding could also be exacerbated with removal of mature trees,

(xxix) Air extraction system will dispel waste air into surrounding environment,

(xxx) There are already other care homes in the area (11 within a couple of miles) so this
development is purely commercial and of no benefit to the local area,

(xxxi) If scheme is built and fails, a large site would be left for potential uses that might be
undesirable,

(xxxii) Proposal will reduce property values

(xxxiii) Concerned about the possibility of additional or larger power cables passing over our
property,

(xxxiv) There is the possibility of drainage issues resulting in flooding of our rear garden,

(xxxv) The Council should listen to its residents and put their interests first and not that of developers
who have no consideration for Ickenham,

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



Comments in Support:-

(i) I am in favour of this application which would provide a much needed asset to the local area
providing there is no access to the development by vehicles or pedestrians from Court Road, even
emergency services which should be conditioned and also that boundary fences be erected before
the start of works so no access will be allowed from here and car park sited far enough away from
our property and sound proof fence provided to car park,

(ii) The current access to Dormy House being closed is welcomed,

GLA:

London plan policies on elderly care home provision, design, energy and transport are relevant to
this application. Notwithstanding that the application complies with the London Plan, it would be
improved by the following changes, which could possibly lead to the application becoming compliant
with the London Plan:

- Care home provision: The provision of a care home counts towards the borough's housing target,
resulting in a net gain. There is an identified pan London need for such facilities, as well as an
acknowledged growing demand. The Council should consider whether affordable housing policies
should be applied.

- Energy and sustainability: The carbon emissions and savings at each step of the energy hierarchy
should be calculated once the matters relating to the size of the CHP unit proposed and renewable
energy options have been reviewed by the applicant.

- Transport: The recommendations in the report with regards to car and cycle parking, servicing and
construction, travel plan and CIL contribution should be considered before the report is referred back
at Stage 2.

Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service:
Recommend Pre-Determination Archaeological Assessment/Evaluation

The National Planning Policy Framework (Section 12) and the London Plan (2011 Policy 7.8)
emphasise that the conservation of archaeological interest is a material consideration in the planning
process. Paragraph 128 of the NPPF says that applicants should be required to submit appropriate
desk-based assessments, and where appropriate undertake field evaluation, to describe the
significance of heritage assets and how they would be affected by the proposed development.

This information should be supplied to inform the planning decision.

Appraisal of this planning application using the Greater London Historic Environment Record and
information submitted with the application indicates a need for further information to reach an
informed judgment of its impact on heritage assets of archaeological interest.

Although not within an Archaeological Priority Area this is a major development on a site which is
currently relatively non-intensively developed giving good potential for preservation of buried
archaeological remains within the green open spaces. In 1994 an archaeological excavation
opposite this site at Long Lane Playing Fields recorded part of a Roman field system suggesting that
a farm or settlement lay nearby. It is therefore quite likely that associated remains (and perhaps the
settlement itself) could be present within the application site and this should be established before a
decision is made which could lead to the loss of a heritage asset.

| therefore recommend that the following further studies should be undertaken to inform the
preparation of proposals and accompany a planning application:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



Evaluation

An archaeological field evaluation involves exploratory fieldwork to determine if significant remains
are present on a site and if so to define their character, extent, quality and preservation. Field
evaluation may involve one or more techniques depending on the nature of the site and its
archaeological potential. It will normally include excavation of trial trenches. A field evaluation report
will usually be used to inform a planning decision (pre-determination evaluation) but can also be
required by condition to refine a mitigation strategy after permission has been granted.

| recommend trial trench evaluation as in this case the most rapid and reliable means of establishing
the presence or absence of a heritage asset of archaeological interest.

The nature and scope of assessment and evaluation should be agreed with GLAAS and carried out
by a developer appointed archaeological practice before any decision on the planning application is
taken. The ensuing archaeological report will need to establish the significance of the site and the
impact of the proposed development. Once the archaeological impact of the proposal has been
defined a recommendation will be made by GLAAS.

The NPPF accords great weight to the conservation of designated heritage assets and also non-
designated heritage assets of equivalent interest. Heritage assets of local or regional significance
may also be considered worthy of conservation.

If archaeological safeguards do prove necessary, these could involve design measures to preserve
remains in situ or where that is not feasible archaeological investigation prior to development. If a
planning decision is to be taken without the provision of sufficient archaeological information then we
recommend that the failure of the applicant to provide adequate archaeological information be cited
as a reason for refusal.

Ickenham Residents' Association:
This Association objects strongly to the above proposal.

We do however recognise the need for the provision of such facilities, but not at this level of intensity
or occupation, nor at this particular site within the Ickenham Conservation Area and as such
completely disagree with the conclusion reached in the Planning Statement.

The Association would like to put this proposal into perspective, in that it is over 40% larger in terms
of Gross Internal Area than the proposed Tesco store on the Master Brewer site.

Preamble

The Conservation Area at this point comprises of large detached houses with equally large settings.
This proposal would alter completely from the foregoing description to one of a very large terraced
commercial frontage, totally inconsistent with the existing Conservation Area.

The current footprint of five large detached houses with extensive green areas (gardens) and mature
trees surrounding them will very largely be replaced with a massive concrete footprint supporting a
highly dense form of accommodation.

Recent research of ours, printed in our last Ickenham Calling Newsletter indicated the following:

"At the moment, Hillingdon has 64 care homes with 1200 beds, plus nine supported living units with
318 beds. The CCG (Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group) proposes to recruit two Community
Specialist Nurses to support care homes in caring for residents, to avoid admission to hospital".

This, we feel, indicates there is no particular lack of such provision in Hillingdon, despite the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



applicants' claim, and further indicates a possible move from institutional care to that of care in the
community, i.e. at home.

One final point in our preamble is that of cost. We have been told that typical pricing for
accommodation in this facility would be in the region of £2000 per week - far beyond the means of
most people in the local area, even though it is planned to be an 'end of life' facility with an expected
stay of probably less than two years.

Planning Issues.

1) Built Environment.

One of the key factors of the Conservation Areas, beyond its design and appearance in respect to
the built form or physical features, is its intensity of use to which buildings and land are put.
Conservation Areas can be particularly sensitive to change of use proposals, particularly if such
proposals were to bring greater traffic generation or an increase in the number of commercial
vehicles.

The proposal as presented would completely change the street scene as viewed from Long Lane
from one of individual large houses in large spacious plots to a large terraced commercial structure
higher, wider, and deeper than the existing properties, and as referred to above will increase traffic
generation, and introduce commercial vehicle movements.

With the exception of the Douay Martyrs school building along the northern edge, the remainder of
the site is surrounded by substantial detached and semi- detached houses, which currently enjoy
the benefits of an open, green environment, consistent with a Conservation Area. This will be
replaced with extensive buildings at the end of their gardens (Court Road & Swakeleys Drive)
covering the majority of the plot, resulting in a considerable loss of amenity and character.

The proposal can in no way claim to "preserve or enhance the Conservat ion Area" and the loss of
existing houses would, by way of the positive contribution they currently make to the Conservation
Area, be detrimental to it.

We therefore feel this application contravenes the following policies of the UDP Saved Policies.
Pt 1.10; BE4, BE5, BE13, BE 19, BE21, BE24, and OEA1.

2) Flooding.

The area in question already suffers from a high water table with frequent instances of local surface
water drainage problems. Occasionally this build up has been known to put such pressure on the
local sewerage network as to have instances of sewerage overspill as well.

The introduction of such a large area being placed under concrete (1.2 Hectares), together with the
subsequent loss of natural drainage, coupled with the introduction of some 89 (min)
accommodation units will, in our view, add considerably to the risk of further instances of flooding.

As indicated there will be a substantial increase in the percentage of the site covered in hard
surfacing and whilst we acknowledge there has been some attempt to balance soft and hard
landscaping proposals, the applicant has failed to offer any SUDs input which would sufficiently
demonstrate that the site in its proposed use would not flood leading to the flooding of neighbouring
sites due to the high water table.

We therefore feel this application contravenes the following policies of the UDP Saved Policies.
Pt 1.11; OE7, OES8, OE9, and OE10

3) Change of Use.
In relation to Policy R15 of the UDP we have already commented (in our preamble) that this area is,

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



in our opinion, fairly well covered for the provision of care facilities, so no such need exists.

Further the development is not in sympathy with either the style or character of the existing street
scene.

This particular site however has no transport facilities passing the door and shops are a lengthy and
arduous walk away. Medical facilities (GPs) are already overstretched in the area.

We therefore feel that this application does not comply with policy R15 and H10.

4) Traffic/Safety
Whilst conceding that this proposal 'may' not generate too much traffic, we feel it has been
understated.

It sits on a very contentious piece of road with regular heavy congestion, on a difficult bend, with a
traffic Island opposite/adjacent to the proposed vehicular entrance, opposite access to Turnstone
Close and not too far distant from a heavily used School Crossing. The residents and neighbours in
the vicinity of the houses planned to be demolished comment that the 'difficult bend' referred to
above has caused a number of vehicle accidents, particularly speeding cars late at night.

The assumption that traffic impact at a location that can accommodate up to 85 residents, with
between 80 and 90 members of staff can be minimised through the introduction of a site travel plan
is in our view simplistic. We believe that the staff alone will generate more than the 7 - 10 two way
trips detailed within the Travel Plan.

We also have a concern that the survey undertaken on the 18th June 2014 was not carried out at the
correct a.m. and p.m. peak times; 0730 - 0830 and 1545 -1645, as opposed to 0745 - 0845 and
1645-1745 as used by the recent surveys provided by Tesco and Morrisons for the Hillingdon Circus
applications.

The number of vehicles returned from the survey were also lower by over 100 in each direction than
the volumes reported in both the Tesco and Morrisons Transport Assessments and by LBH for the
proposed extension to Glebe School.

In addition, the travel plan is silent on any committed development in the area such as the Glebe
School extension and the recently approved Tesco store on the former Master Brewer site.

It should be understood that any additional traffic in the Ickenham area will have an impact on the
journey time and queue lengths currently experienced by the users of this already congested route.

We are concerned that adequate consideration/provision may not have been provided for 'Loading
Arrangements' within the curtilage of the site. An accommodation site of this size and nature will
require many 'service vehicle' movements to service the needs of such an institution, e.g. food
supplies, medical supplies, recycling, waste disposal, clinical waste disposal, transport for
residents. (See General Notes on the use of parking standards (LBH UPD Saved Policies Sept 2007
page 322)).

We therefore contest this application's robustness against Policies AM2 and AM7.
5) Environmental Impacts
We are concerned that, as the site will be operating around the clock, site deliveries and collections

will take place outside normal working hours, leading to a noise impact on adjacent properties.

We are also concerned that kitchen waste will attract vermin if not stored and disposed of correctly.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



We feel the plans are misleading, suggesting a green and pleasant setting, whereas we know that a
number of substantial trees will have to be felled and that some of the green setting on the plans will
comprise bin storage and other similar facilities.

6) Summary

In summary we would suggest that the introduction of a purely commercial site and operation within
the confines of a Conservation Area, so designated as being 'of large residential properties set in
'spacious grounds' is wholly inappropriate.

For all of the above reasons, and the contravention of many of your planning policies, as indicated,
we strongly oppose this application and ask that you refuse planning permission.

Ward councillor:

| note the above planning application and draw some similarities to an application that was refused at
the Major Planning Committee for the demolition of two houses and for the construction of five
houses with a similar siting, being mainly at the rear of the front remaining property. That site was
located opposite to Oak Farm Library and again fronts the same busy Long Lane. Both that site and
this site are bounded by bespoke detached houses of some special character, albeit with the
Ickenham site, the houses are set back from Long Lane and located in an area that might be
classified as having some special character.

This redevelopment to the rear of the existing adjoining properties that will remain will in my opinion
detract from the quality of the living environment for the current and future residents. This will also
apply to those residents living in Court Road whose rear properties face this proposed development
and will also be affected should this development go ahead.

In addition, there will be a loss of good quality building stock and established rear garden fauna, flora
and outlook.

Could I therefore request that my concerns are added to the planning report that will come before the
planning committee.

Internal Consultees
CONSERVATION/ URBAN DESIGN OFFICER:

Initial comments:

This site lies on the edge of, but within the Ickenham Village Conservation Area. It is located away
from the historic core of the conservation area, and where the general character of the area is of
good quality, 2 storey, detached and semi detached houses of varied architectural styles and mostly
20th century in date. To the front the site is bounded by Long Lane and the other site boundaries are
enclosed by existing residential development.

The site contains 5 existing houses of varied age and appearance. All of the houses contribute to
some degree to the appearance of the conservation area and two are of interest. These are number
88 Long Lane, a typical interwar two storey house, with attractive applied decorative timber framing
and Dormy House, a modern property. This is probably late 1960s in date and has an unusual green
copper clad roof. From Long Lane, the frontage buildings are only seen in gap and glimpsed views
and the dominant features of the townscape are the front boundary walls and mature trees. From
the other adjacent roads, Swakeleys Drive and Court Road, the existing buildings are largely
screened by houses and garden greenery. Dormy House is not visible.

Adjacent to the site is the Locally Listed Douay Martyrs School (Cardinal Hume Campus), this site
includes the original early 20th century single storey school building and a number of low level

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



additional modern buildings. The bulk of these structures is concealed by the abundant tree cover
and planting along the Long Lane frontage.

The application includes a well researched and thorough heritage statement, and a detailed site/view
analysis. | concur with much of what is included in the heritage statement in terms of the
assessment of this part of the conservation area and the heritage value of the existing buildings.
Whilst no 88 is of some interest and quite attractive, it appears to be a fairly typical house of its date
and type. Dormy House is more interesting and ideally a site visit to view this building needs to be
arranged to come to a final decision on this matter. Other than this, there are no objections in
principle to the demolition of the other structures if a scheme of an appropriate scale and design
were forwarded. If demolition were found to be acceptable, then all the buildings should be recorded
to English Heritage Recording Level 1.

The new building would have a significantly larger footprint than the houses it replaces. However,
this is comparable with the neighbouring traditional school buildings, which although large, because
they are single storey, do not look out of place within the local townscape. The articulated layout of
the proposed building would break up its overall bulk up into smaller elements, its set back from the
site frontage and boundaries, and partial screening by existing and new planting, would in general
combine to reduce its potential impact on the immediate townscape. There are, however, concerns
re the bulk and height of the core of the building, which is likely to be visible in views from Swakeleys
Road across the back of the remaining Long Lane houses to the south and over the bungalows 2a
and 2b Swakeleys Road (view point 10 of the Visual Analysis covers part of this). It appears that it
may also be visible in views across the garden areas on the junction of Court Road and Swakeleys
Drive (view point 12 does not show this fully). In addition, | am concerned that there would be an
oblique view that exposes the bulk of the building across the frontages of 96 and 96a Long Lane
(view point 7), even with the trees in full leaf. This is likely to be more visible during the winter.

The proposed building, in particular along the Long Lane frontage, has been very carefully designed
to reflect the architecture and materials of some of the surrounding traditionally designed "Arts and
Crafts" style houses. Thus the street elevation incorporates gables, a traditional clay tiled pitched
roof with low eaves, dormers and chimneys. The rear elements are more of a mix of traditional and
modern features, some parts of which appear to work better in design terms than others. The quite
extensive areas of flat roof, the steep pitch and height of the core of the building (elevation 3) are of
great concern, and the rather boxy gable end (elevation 10), whilst disguised to small extent by tile
hanging, fails to conceal the true size of building beyond. Elevation 11, incorporates two levels of
dormers, which is not a traditional feature of the area. In addition, some of the modern
dormers/gables look rather over sized and a little heavy in design terms, in particular those forming
part of elevations 1 and 7.

Whilst there would be no objection in principle to this application, there are still significant issues to
be addressed re the demolition of Dormy House, the bulk and height of the core of the new building
and elements of its design, such as its roof form. In addition, further information is required re the
landscaping scheme in terms of successfully screening the building from the view points noted
above. Revised drawings and additional information required.

Latest comments:

| confirm that | visited the site again today. Whilst no 88 is an attractive and well detailed property, it
has a plain interior. Court Road also contains at least 3 quite similar dormer bungalows, one of
which looks it might be by the same architect. It can therefore be recorded to EH Level 1, rather than
level 3 as previously requested.

| have been back through the GLA's advice and we need to add a further condition re the detailing of
the eaves, the roof hips and verges of the new building.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



Just to confirm, | have no objection to the demolition of the other properties on the site including
Dormy House, which other than its copper clad roof, appears to have little architectural interest. The
remaining properties are modern, or in the case of the older houses, significantly altered, so that
they contribute little to the quality of the townscape of this part of the conservation area.

HIGHWAY ENGINEER:

Original comments:
The site is located along the western side of Long Lane, which is a Classified Road and is also
designated as a Local Distributor Road within the Council's Local Plan Part 2.

The site has a PTAL rating of 2.

The proposed care home will have a new access along Long Lane. The existing central hatching on
Long Lane will be amended to provide turning space for vehicles turning right in to the site and the
dwellings on the opposite side.

The applicant should revise the existing central hatching on Long Lane to provide a clear space for
right turning vehicles and the access should also be designed to adequately accommodate turning
circles for 10.5m long refuse/service with 0.3m margin for error without vehicles entering or
overhanging the right turning lane. The access should be designed with tactile paving on both sides.
Revised swept paths should be provided on plans showing the access and road markings.

As part of the highway works, the redundant accesses in front of the site will be stopped up and
crossovers reinstated.

The personal injury accident data referred to in the Transport Statement should be provided together
with stick diagram.

When considering the estimated trip generation and car parking, it is noted that a number of chosen
sample sites are over 5 years old, which is not acceptable. Revised trip generation information
should be provided based on up-to-date surveys and an explanation should be provided comparing
the sample sites with the application site.

The refuse and waste store is located adjacent to the proposed vehicle access. This (the refuse and
waste store) should be relocated to be within the site and the proposed site layout should provide
adequate turning spaces for 10.5m refuse vehicles.

Further comments will be made upon receiving the revised/additional information.

Further comments:
The site is located along the western side of Long Lane, which is a Classified Road and is also
designated as a Local Distributor Road within the Council's Local Plan Part 2.

The site has a PTAL rating of 2, which is categorised as low.

Further to my comments on 19th of November 2014, additional information has been submitted
including revised access layout, road markings, swept paths, accident data, trip generation, and
relocated refuse and waste store.

Two proposals are submitted for the layout of the proposed access. The proposed layout shown on
drawing nos. 2595.08 and 2595.T09 is considered to be acceptable. As part of the proposed vehicle
access works, the existing accesses, which will be redundant in the future, will need to be stopped
up and the footway reinstated.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



The existing central hatching on Long Lane is proposed to be amended and a right turn arrow will be
added to provide turning space for vehicles turning right into the site. However, the houses on the
opposite side are served with existing vehicle accesses. As such, the proposed changes to the
central hatching should be amended to ensure that right turning into the existing accesses for these
houses is not compromised.

The proposed access and changes to road markings should also include short lengths of double
yellow lines to restrict on-street car parking in the vicinity of the proposed access, as required.

A record of personal injury accidents is provided for a period of 5 years upto 30th June 2013. An
analysis of the collisions is however not provided. Notwithstanding this, the records do not show a
high number of collisions in the vicinity of the site. Overall the pattern of collisions is not found to
have any common issues in connection with road layout and/or vehicle speeds.

Revised estimates of trip generation are submitted. However these are still neither comparable nor
robust. However, considering the limited sites available in the TRICS database and the proposed
use being a care home and the scale of development, the proposals are not considered to result in
significant vehicle movements.

The internal site layout including access road, lay-by, car parking, cycle parking, servicing, and
relocated refuse and waste store is considered to be acceptable.

Subject to receiving a satisfactory revised layout of the central hatch markings and parking
restrictions as discussed above, there is no objection on the highways aspect of the proposals. The
proposed highway works are recommended to be covered within the S106 agreement. Adequate
pedestrian visibility splays of 2.4m x 2.4m at the proposed access should be secured by way of a
suitable planning condition.

Latest additional comments:
Following the previous highways comments, a revised drawing ref. 2595.08B has been received
showing the the proposed off-site highway works.

The proposed off-site highway works broadly include amendments to the central hatching on Long
Lane to facilitate the vehicles turning right to access the site and also the vehicles turning right to
access the houses situated on the opposite side of the road, access works, tactile paving, short
lengths of double yellow lines on Long Lane, closure of existing redundant accesses and
reinstatement of footway, and other associated associated works as required. The proposed double
yellow lines in proximity of the proposed access are required to facilitate service vehicle swept paths
and to prohibit vehicles from parking closed to this access.

Subject to the above off-site highway works being secured through a S106 agreement and a
condition attached securing 2.4mx2.4m pedestrian visibility splays at the point of vehicle access, no
objection is raised from the highways point of view.

TREE AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

Landscape Character / Context:

Site description:

- The site is occupied by five individual detached houses situated within generous plots. Four of the
houses front onto Long Lane, and have relatively narrow long rear gardens. The fifth, Dormy House,
is a backland development which extends across the rear of the Long Lane properties, which is
accessed from Court Road.

- These properties are of mixed styles and sizes. However, they are all set within well-established
gardens which include some fine trees, some of which are clearly visible to the public and contribute

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



to the sylvan character of the area.

Landscape Planning designations:

- Selected trees are protected by Tree Preservation Order No.438, in the garden of Dormy House.

- TPO No. 482A protects three trees on the rear boundary of 90 Long Lane.

- Offsite, there are two protected trees on the front boundary of 96 Long Lane (TPO No. 496).

- The site lies within the Ickenham Village Conservation Area, a designation which affords protection
to the remaining non-TPQO'd trees.

Landscape constraints / opportunities:

- The tree cover on this, and adjacent, sites, make a significant contribution to the landscape and
visual quality of the area.

- The trees also contribute to the environmental quality of the area (including air quality and
biodiversity).

- Any proposed tree loss needs to be justified and suitable new replacement tree planting should be
incorporated within a high quality landscape scheme to improve the age profile and succession of
trees on the site.

Proposal:

The proposal is to demolish the existing five houses and redevelop the site for an 85 unit Class C2
care home for the elderly of 1.5-2.5 storeys in height with associated landscaping and car parking
(40 spaces in total), stopping up of existing vehicular accesses on Long Lane and the construction
of a new vehicular access onto Long Lane.

Landscape Considerations:
Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

- The submission includes an Arboricultural Report by Tim Moya Associates, which includes an
assessment of the existing trees (their quality and value), the impact of the proposed development
upon the trees in and around the site, methods of reducing the impacts on retained trees, proposed
tree protection measures and the proposed tree planting strategy. - All in accordance with the
methodology set out in BS5837:2012 and several relevant Building Research Establishment
documents (1998, 2006 and 2011).

- The survey information has been used, as intended, to inform the site layout and landscape design.
- The survey (4.3) has assessed 122No. individual trees, groups and shrubs. One of these trees is
considered to be 'A' grade of high quality and value, with 14No.'B' grade (moderate), 89No. 'C' (low)
and 18No. 'U' (poor).

- In Figure 1, Age Profile of Canopy Cover, the graph explains that most of the trees surveyed are
'mature' or 'early mature' with a relatively small proportion of young, or semi-mature trees.

- The Landscape Proposals are summarised in section 4.5-4.7.

- The section on tree works (4.9 - 4.12) and facilitation pruning confirms that 78No. trees will be
removed of which 73No. are graded 'C' or 'U". Trees of this low/poor quality are not generally
considered to be a constraint on development.

- Arboricultural Impacts are summarised in section 4.8 and discussed more fully in section 5.0. With
the exception of T51, a 'B' grade Liquidambar, all of the other TPO trees to be removed (T38, T39,
T40 and T55), are either of poor or low quality.

- Tree works and facilitation pruning are specified from 4.9, with areas of 'no dig' described in 4.13
and indicated on drawing No. 231017-P-12-01/02a in Appendix A.

- At 5.11, the point is made that not all of the exact drainage and service runs are yet known. Where
they are, the service runs have been located outside the root protection areas of trees and best
practice guidance (such as the NJUG) will be followed.

- At 5.12 it is confirmed that trees will be protected throughout the demolition and construction
process. A preliminary Arboricultural Method Statement and Arboricultural Method statement is

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



provided in Appendix F and a fuller Method Statement in document ref. 220610-PD-13a. This
includes supervision on site by the author at key stages of the demolition and construction process.

- The tree information has been subject to a pre-application site visit with officers and the proposed
tree removal and retention proposals reflects the outcome of the discussions.

- The Design & Access Statement sets out the key design principles and objectives for the
landscape design, ecology and trees.

- The layout of the scheme is supported by PRP's drawing No. AL4378/001 Rev B a comprehensive
Landscape Masterplan incorporating 66No. semi-mature trees (4.7).

- The key highlights the wide range of hard and soft landscape features around the site which are
designed to enhance the boundaries and setting of the building.

- In addition to addressing the functional requirements of the site, the masterplan illustrates attention
to detail which will enrich the lives of the residents by providing an aesthetically pleasing and
stimulating series of external spaces and gardens.

- The proposal is supported by PRP's drawing No. AL4378/002 Rev B, lllustrative Boundary
Proposal.

- An Ecological Assessment, by Aspect Ecology, concludes at 6.7 that 'there is no reason to
suggest that any ecological designations, habitats of nature conservation interest or any protected
species will be significantly harmed the proposals'.

- Furthermore, it considers that there are some net gains to be delivered by the development, with
the introduction of bird boxes, bat boxes and hedgehog domes as specified in the appendices.
Details of the numbers and locations of the installations are to be specified.

- A Townscape & Visual Assessment, prepared by PRP describes the site, its current landscape
character and how the development will be accommodated on the site.

- The accompanying photographs from selected viewpoints illustrate only the current situation - in
summer, when the screening capacity of vegetation is most effective. This is of limited help when
assessing the visual impact of the proposed scheme, which involves the removal of selected trees,
some of which are large and visually significant.

- Ideally the assessment should show the 'worst case' effect of the development within the winter
landscape, following the removal of trees and the construction of the development.

- A Construction Method Statement has been submitted by PRP. There is no mention of advance
tree works or tree protection - which should be in place prior to any demolition work or site set up.
Reference to tree protection should be made under the headings of 'Minimising the impact..." or
'Environmental Management'.

- If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to ensure
that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the surrounding
natural and built environment.

Recommendations:

The tree removal, retention and replacement strategy has been the subject of pre-application
meetings designed to address tree and landscape issues.

The subsequent quality of the landscape proposals meets the stated objectives to provide a
sustainable, high quality landscape which is well-integrated with the building and the needs of the
occupants.

The proposed tree planting will secure improve the age structure / profile of the tree population and
the new planting will contribute to a significant improvement to the landscape character of the
Conservation Area.

No objection, subject to the above observations and RES6, RES8 (amendment to Construction
Method Statement which should refer to the Tree Protection and Arboricultural Method Statement),
RES9 (parts 1,2,3,4,5, and 6).

ACCESS OFFICER:

The site is located mainly within the Ickenham Village conservation area which is predominately
residential. The proposal is to redevelop 5 private residential plots with an 85 room registered Care

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



Home for older people.

The Design & Access Statement refers to level access to the building from all entrances, including
access onto patios, terraces and balconies. The main passageways to be used by residents would
be a minimum of 1800 mm wide. Accessible toilets would be located close to remain communal
facilities. Lifts are shown on plan.

Clarification/amendments are required to ensure accessible parking bays are sited within 50m of the
entrance, with a minimum dimension of 4.8m x 2.4m and marked and signed in accordance with BS
8300:2009+A1:2010, at least one enlarged accessible parking bay, 3m x 6m, should be provided, a
setting down point and parking space, 4.8m x 8m for taxis, Dial-a-Ride and accessible minibus
vehicles with tail lifts, should be provided in close proximity to the main entrance, a ratio of 1
'assisted bathroom' (or assisted showers provided this meets residents needs) to 8 service users
should be shown on plan, including details of the internal layout and specifications should be
provided and a minimum of 10% of ensuite bathrooms should be designed to allow independent use
by wheelchair users. Also, a fire evacuation plan is needed. These matters can be dealt with by
condition.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION OFFICER (NOISE):

From a noise point of view, EPU have no concerns however please could the following conditions be
added:

1) The rating level of the noise emitted from the site by any chiller or refrigeration unit, Air Conditioner
or other mechanical plant shall be at least 5dB below the existing background noise level. The noise
levels shall be determined at the boundary of the nearest noise sensitive premises. The
measurements and assessment shall be made in accordance to the latest British Standard 4142,
'Method for rating industrial noise affecting mixed residential and industrial areas'.

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

2) No air extraction system shall be used on the premises until a scheme for the control of noise and
odour emanating from the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall include such combination of measures as may be approved by the
LPA. Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full compliance with the
approved measures.

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

3) There shall be no loading or unloading of vehicles, including delivery and the loading or unloading
of goods outside the hours of 08:00 and 20:00, Monday to Friday, and between the hours of 08:00
and 14:00 on Saturdays. The premises [site] [specified plant or use] shall not be used on Sundays
or Bank Holidays.

Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy OES3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

Notes: The Borough has significant existing problems associated with activities and vehicle
movements carried out at sensitive times, particularly during the evening and night. Restricting the
hours of operation provides a valuable means of protecting the amenity of surrounding areas.
Consequently, the use of the development will normally not be permitted during the evening or night
unless it is accepted that such use is essential and justified.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



4) No external lighting shall be installed on the land unless the details have first been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Council. Any installation of external lighting shall only be carried out in
accordance with the previously approved details.

Reason
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties in accordance with policies BE13 and OE1 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

The noise statement states recommended mitigation measures on pages 19 & 20 of the report.

Providing these mitigation measures listed on page 20 of report ref SA-3203 dates the 30th June
2014 are adhered to by the developer, there is no need for a noise condition to be added. Should
there be any variation in the specification it is advised to notify the Environmental Protection Unit
accordingly.

Standard construction informative:

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control of Pollution
Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you should ensure that the
following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on
Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British Standard
Code of Practice BS 5228:1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health nuisance.
D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic Centre, High
Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval under Section 61 of the
Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the
normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
adjoining premises.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION OFFICER (LAND CONTAMINATION AND AIR QUALITY):

Comments have been provided below with regard to current air quality in the area, and the submitted
air quality assessment. No information has been submitted with regard to land contamination. Whilst
the current air quality in the area is poor at the roadside based on the air quality assessment and
monitoring undertaken by the London Borough of Hillingdon there is insufficient grounds to refuse on
air quality based on the London Council's Air Quality and Planning Guidance document. Conditions
towards ensuring the development is acceptable on air quality grounds have been recommended as
far as practicable.

The following information was submitted with regard to air quality:

- 88-94 Long Lane and Dormy House, Court Road, Ickenham: Air Quality Assessment, by Parsons
Brinckerhoff for Signature Senior Lifestyle Ltd, dated October 2014.

Air Quality

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



The application site is within the AQMA, located adjacent to a school, a little way from the Hillingdon
Circus junction. The assessment appears to have considered the 2014 cumulative impacts traffic
data for the Master Brewer development. The air quality assessment, may have underestimated the
local background for nitrogen dioxide and the emission factors used for future year seems to
assume a slight reduction in nitrogen dioxide (NO2). In spite of this the assessment does indicate
that the NOZ2 level is likely to exceed the EU limit value of 40 mg/m3 for about the first 2 metres from
the Long Lane boundary of the site even without development. It is possible the exceedance may
extend further onto the site, assuming the background level has been underestimated.

The air quality assessment indicates the development will increase NO2 levels in the area by what is
considered in the assessment to be a 'negligible’ amount. The proposed development depending on
the energy provision option used for the receptors considered, indicate a contribution from 0.01 to
0.16 mg/m3 for traffic and energy option A, and from 0.01 to 0.38 mg/m3 for traffic and energy option
B.

As the development is in and will cause increases in an area already suffering poor air quality the
following is requested:

Section 106

Section 106 obligation for up to £25,000 should be sought for contribution to the air quality monitoring
network in the area with regard to this application.

Air Quality Neutral

The building emissions benchmark calculated for the site for both option A (2 x 20kWe CHPs) and
option B (2 x 150kW boilers) energy provision are below the air quality neutral benchmark set for a
C2 use. Option B due to more emissions is indicated to have a small and slight adverse impact on
the site. (Note: the option A in the air quality assessment is not described in quite the same way as
the option A in the Energy Statement which refers to GSHP and CHP.) Clarification is sought with
regard to the use of bio-oil proposed for the site as well as with regard to the combined CHP GSHP
option. Option A is preferred as it produces lower emissions including zero particulates, would not
require the delivery and storage of bio-oil, and may have lower maintenance requirements. Biomass,
which is referred to in the energy statement again has the same issues with more particulate
emissions. The following condition is recommended for any permission that may be given. The
energy statement would suggest the CHP emissions calculated assumes GSHPs are also in use at
the site.

Air Quality Condition 1 - Details of Energy Provision (Mixed Use and residential)

Before the development is commenced details of any plant, machinery and fuel burnt, as part of the
energy provision and the location of the flue(s) for the development shall be submitted to the LPA for
approval. This shall include pollutant emission rates at the flue(s) with or without mitigation
technologies and needs to be considered as part of a wider air quality assessment, as set out in the
EPUK CHP Guidance 2012, if applicable. The use of ultra low NOx emission gas CHPs and boilers
is recommended. The development should as a minimum be 'air quality neutral' and demonstrably
below the relevant building emissions benchmarks.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring properties in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

Notes: This condition relates to the operational phase of residential and commercial development
and is intended for the protection of future residents in a designated AQMA and Smoke Control Area.
Advice on the assessment of CHPs is available from EPUK at:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



http://www.iagm.co.uk/text/guidance/epuk/chp_guidance.pdf. An area up to a distance of 10 times
the appropriate stack height needs to be assessed. Guidance on air quality neutral is available at:
https://www.london.gov.uk/priorities/planning/consultations/draft-sustainable-design-and-
construction. They should contact Planning Specialists if they have any queries.

The transport emissions benchmark has been calculated for a C2 development, as the GLA have
yet to set this. This indicates the transport emissions calculated for the development is below the
TRAVL based transport emission benchmark calculated for this type of use.

Travel Plans

It is noted an Interim Travel Plan has been submitted with the application. This includes targets and
travel plan monitoring. It may be advisable to condition for this.

Land Contamination

No information has been submitted with regard to land contamination with the planning application.
The proposed end use is considered sensitive to contamination. The housing appears to have been
built on open land and an orchard was indicated to the rear of the site on Ordnance Survey historical
maps. A modified version of the standard condition is recommended for inclusion on any permission
given, which includes testing of surface soils. It is advisable if soils are imported the source of the
soil is agreed with the LPA prior to importing to the site.

Contaminated Land Condition

(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning Guidance
Document on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The scheme
shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses with any such requirement
specifically and in writing:

(@) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and provide
information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and evaluate all potential
sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all other identified receptors relevant to
the site;

(b) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater sampling,
together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out by a suitably qualified
and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also clearly identify all risks, limitations and
recommendations for remedial measures to make the site suitable for the proposed use; and

(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the completion
of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA prior to commencement,
along with details of a watching brief to address undiscovered contamination.

(ii) If during development works contamination not addressed in the submitted remediation scheme
is identified, the updated watching brief shall be submitted and an addendum to the remediation
scheme shall be agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(i) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a comprehensive
verification report shall be submitted to the Council's Environmental Protection Unit before any part
of the development is occupied or brought into use unless the LPA dispenses with any such
requirement specifically and in writing.

(iv) No contaminated soils or other materials shall be imported to the site. All imported soils for
landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination. Before any part of the development
is occupied, all imported soils shall be independently tested for chemical contamination, and the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



results of this testing shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All
soils used for gardens and/or landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination.

REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological
systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER:
| have no objections to the proposed development subject to the following conditions:
Ecology Comments

Bats were identified as using the site, although its value in their ongoing conservation status is
relatively low as a consequence, it is considered likely that the proposals would be granted the
relevant bat licences for the demolition of Buildings B1 and B2. There was a relatively low usage of
the buildings and the value as breeding roosts is equally low. Nonetheless, the impacts on bats will
require demolition of the two buildings to be undertaken in accordance with a Natural England
licence. Furthermore, the development needs to accommodate bats to ensure their conservation
status is maintained and supported. The development needs to contribute to a net biodiversity
improvement in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework. The following condition is
therefore necessary to provide final details of the proposed enhancement measures:

Condition

Prior to the commencement of development an ecological enhancement scheme shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly detail
measures to promote and enhance wildlife opportunities within the landscaping and the fabric of the
buildings including measures such as habitat walls, bird and bat boxes and nectar rich planting. The
scheme shall aim to include an area of land dedicated to wildlife habitat. The development must
proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

Reason
To ensure the development contributes to ecological enhancement in accordance with Policy EM7
(Local Plan) and Policy 7.28 of the London Plan.

Living Walls and Roofs

Living walls and roofs can improve air quality, operate as carbon sinks and also be of importance for
nature conservation. The following condition is therefore necessary:

Condition

Prior to commencement of development a scheme for the inclusion of living screens shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall provide
details of the types of living material to be used and the locations and methods of maintenance
where necessary. The development should proceed in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason
To ensure the development contributes to a number of objectives in compliance with Policy 5.11 of
the London Plan and Policy EM1 of the Local Plan.

NB: Living screens can be used on 'blank elevations' and can consist of affordable wire trellising

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



systems which climbing plants can be trained up. These living screens can also be used for the
growth of 'vertical allotments' and food production.

Energy Comments

The energy assessment submitted with the application demonstrates the development can meet the
necessary 35% reduction in CO2. The strategy is compatible with the London Plan Be Lean, Be
Clean, Be Green hierarchy. However, it contains a couple of options for delivering the final stage of
this list and accordingly the detailed design is not yet available. The following condition is therefore
necessary:

Condition
Prior to the commencement of development a detailed energy assessment shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The assessment shall clearly set out the baseline energy performance of the development, and the
detailed measures to reduce CO2 emissions by 35% from a 2013 Part L baseline. The assessment
shall provide detailed specifications of the measures and technology set out in outline energy
assessment. The assessment shall also include full details (including specification and location on
the site) of the low and zero carbon technology preferred option. the information shall also include
details of the type, location and management of biomass material should biofuel dependent boilers
or heating systems be required.

Finally, the assessment must include appropriate measuring and monitoring proposals and how the
information will be submitted to the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate CO2 reductions are
being met.

The development must proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

Reason
To ensure appropriate carbon savings are delivered in accordance with London Plan Policy 5.2.

WATER AND FLOOD MANAGEMENT OFFICER:

The site is under a hectare and therefore does not require a Flood Risk Assessment however the
site is still of substantial size and Environment Agency maps indicate that there is surface water
ponding on the site. Therefore a clear drainage strategy should be submitted. This should include
appropriate site investigations to indicate porosity on the site and understand groundwater issues as
a basement is proposed. This should then inform a drainage strategey to control surface water run
off to greenfield run off rates.

Prior to commencement, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly
demonstrate how it, incorporates sustainable urban drainage in accordance with the hierarchy set
out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan and will:

i. provide information on all Suds features including the method employed to delay and control the
surface water discharged from the site and:

a. calculations showing storm period and intensity and volume of storage required to control surface
water and size of features to control that volume.

b. any overland flooding should be shown, with flow paths depths and velocities identified as well as
any hazards, ( safe access and egress must be demonstrated).

c. measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

d. how they or temporary measures will be implemented to ensure no increase in flood risk from
commencement of construction.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



ii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of arrangements
to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including appropriate details of
Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification, remediation and timescales for the
resolving of issues.

iii. provide details of the body legally responsible for the implementation of the management and
maintenance plan.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable water
through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iii. incorporate water saving measures and equipment.

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the development.
Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance with these
details for as long as the development remains in existence.

Reason

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not increase the
risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1-
Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of the London Plan (July 2011)
and National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and the Planning Practice Guidance (March
2014). To be handled as close to its source as possible in compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable
Drainage of the London Plan (July 2011), and conserve water supplies in accordance with Policy
5.15 Water use and supplies of the London Plan (July 2011).

TRAVEL PLAN CO-ORDINATOR:
| have no comments to make on this application.
ADULT SOCIAL CARE:

Feedback from older residents identifies a preference for living independently in the community
rather than in residential care and the Council is pursuing extra care options. There are current
bedspace surpluses in the Borough's care homes with existing and approved care home provision
giving a supply of 1,300 units, although some may not be be to market standard.

S106 OFFICER:
| have reviewed the proposals and am seeking the following S106 Planning Obligations:

1. Highways Works: the developer will required to enter into a S278/S38 agreement to secure
highways works including the new access onto Long Lane.

2. Travel Plan

3. Construction Training: A financial contribution is sought equal to Training costs: £2500 per £1m
build cost + Coordinator costs of£9600 or an in kind scheme to be provided to this value.

4. Employment Training: An Employment Training Strategy to be submitted.

5. Air Quality Monitoring: A financial contribution to the sum of £25.000.

6. Project Management & Monitoring Fee: 5% of total cash contributions.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development
Loss of Garden Land

The NPPF (March 2012) at paragraph 53 advises that LPAs 'should consider the case for
setting out policies to resist inappropriate development of residential gardens, for example

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



where development would cause harm to the local area.'

The London Plan (July 2011) provides further guidance on how applications for
development on garden land should be treated within the London Region. The thrust of the
guidance is that back gardens can contribute to the objectives of a significant number of
London Plan policies and these matters should be taken into account when considering the
principle of such developments. Policy 3.5 of the London Plan supports development plan-
led presumptions against development on back gardens where locally justified by a sound
local evidence base.

The Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance, November 2012 provides further
guidance on the interpretation of existing policies within the London Plan as regards garden
development. Paragraph 1.2.23 advises that when considering proposals which involve the
loss of gardens, regard should be taken of the degree to which gardens contribute to a
communities' sense of place and quality of life (Policy 3.5), especially in outer London
where gardens are often a key component of an area's character (Policies 2.6 and 2.7).
The contribution gardens make towards biodiversity also needs to be considered (Policies
7.18 and 7.19) as does their role in mitigating flood risk (Policies 5.12 and 5.13). Gardens
can also address the effects of climate change (Policies 5.9 - 5.11).

The Council has also adopted the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
(November 2012). Policy BE1 advises that new development, in addition to achieving a
high quality of design, should enhance the local distinctiveness of the area, contribute to
community cohesion and sense of place and make a positive contribution to the local area
in terms of layout, form, scale and materials and seek to protect the amenity of surrounding
land and buildings, particularly residential properties. Specifically, the policy advises that
development should not result in the inappropriate development of gardens and green
spaces that erode the character and biodiversity of suburban areas and increase flood risk.

Within the Council's emerging Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(Proposed Submission Version, September 2014), paragraph 4.16 advises that the
Council, in general will not accept proposals for development on back garden land. Policy
DMH®6: Garden and Backland Development states:-

"There is a presumption against the loss of back gardens due to the need to maintain local
character, amenity space and biodiversity. In exceptional cases a limited scale of backland
development may be acceptable, subject to the following criteria:

- rear garden land which contributes either individually or as part of a larger swathe of
green space to the amenity of residents or provides wildlife habitats must be retained;

-neighbouring residential amenity and privacy of existing homes and gardens must be
maintained and unacceptable light spillage avoided;

- vehicular access or car parking should not have an adverse impact on neighbours in
terms of noise or light. Access roads between dwellings and unnecessarily long access
roads will not normally be acceptable;

- development on backland sites must be more intimate in mass and scale and lower than
frontage properties;

- Features such as trees, shrubs and wildlife habitat, which are important to character,

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



appearance or wildlife must be retained or re-provided.’

However, as the Development Management Policies document has not yet been adopted,
only limited weight can be given to it.

It will therefore be important to assess the proposals against the various contributing
assets that gardens provide towards the overall quality of the area that is appreciated by
surrounding residents and it not appropriate to dimiss development proposals just because
garden land is involved. These issues are considered in the relevant sections of the report.

Importantly, the GLA also do not raise any in principle objections to the scheme.
Loss of Class C3 Housing

The proposal involves the loss of Class C3 residential accommodation. Policy H3 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) states that such
loss will only be permitted if replacement housing is provided on site. This scheme does
not replace the Class C3 housing and therefore it is strictly contrary to saved UDP policy.

The GLA however in their Stage 1 report make clear that this application needs to be
considered in the light of more up to date housing policy contained in the NPPF and London
Plan as opposed to local policy H3. In national and strategic terms, the GLA advise that
Class C2 care home accommodation should be considered as part of the overall provision
for housing as all self-contained and non self-contained forms of residential
accommodation should be included. As such, the proposal complies with policies 3.3, 3.8
and 3.14 of the London Plan and that in terms of housing delivery targets, this scheme
results in a net gain of 80 units (the 85 care home units being provided minus the 5 houses
lost). With a potential net increase of 80 units, the proposal would also be supported by
Policy 3.14 B of the London Plan which requires loss of housing to be replaced at existing
or higher densities with at least an equivalent floorspace and therefore this increase in
provision, in density terms does accord with local policy H3. Furthermore, the GLA advise
the net gain in housing is also supported by the process whereby care homes 'free up'
conventional housing from which care home residents derive.

As regards the care home use, the application is supported by the submission of a needs
assessment, together with further information in a letter dated 20/8/14. This points to the
ageing population, where dementia will be more prevalent amongst an increasingly elderly
population and seeks to quantify the growing demand for care home bedspace with the
vicinity of the application site.

The Council's Adult Social Care Team do advise that feedback from older residents
identifies a preference for living independently in the community rather than in residential
care and the Council is pursuing extra care options and there are current bedspace
surpluses in the Borough's care homes. However, the GLA point out that Greater London
trends demonstrate that there is considerable growth in the older people population so that
even if there is a current excess of supply, future demand also needs to be met.

The GLA also refer to the Council's market position statement which advises that there is
likely to be a "significant increase" in the number of people aged 85 years and over with
dementia in the next 30 years and that "in the absense of a medical breakthrough that
results in a cure, addressing the needs of people living with dementia and preventing
avoidable, premature deeterioration is going to be a significant issue for both the Council

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



and the NHS for the foreseeable future". The GLA advise that as this proposal contains a
dementia care facility with a high quality of care and living environment, clearly it would help
to address the need for additional dementia care facilities in the area.

Finally on this point, the GLA refer to Annex 6 of the Mayor's Housing SPG which indicates
significant pan-London and Hillingdon need for care home places and at the Pan London
level, there is an existing need which is expected to increase. At Table A5.1 of the Further
Alterations to the London Plan, indicative annualised benchmarks for specialist housing for
older people are presented and for Hillingdon, this is 155 units per year. The proposal
would therefore assist in meeting this need.

Therefore it is considered that no objections can be raised to the loss of Class C3 housing
nor the principle of a care home use on this site.

Employment and Economic Benefit

This scheme also needs to be considered in the light of the expected economic benefits
that this scheme would bring. The application states that approximately 90 full and part
time jobs would be created which is supported by London Plan polcies 4.1 and 4.12. An
economic benefits assessment has also been submitted in support of the application
which advises of the financial inputs that the scheme would provide to the local economy
over the construction and operational phases and the scheme would save the NHS
approximately £29,500 per annum.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

The Mayor's density criteria are not applicable to a care home scheme.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The application site is not located within any existing or proposed Archaeological Priority
Area nor does it have any other archaeological designation. Nevertheless, comments have
been received from GLAAS which do need to be taken into consideration. They advise that
due to the remains of a Roman field system in the vicinity and the good potential for
preservation of buried archaeological remains within the garden areas of this site, further
investigation is needed to establish if there are associated remains present, possibly the
settlement itself. This investigation is currently being undertaken and the results will be
reported to GLAAS before any decision is made on the application which forms part of the
officer recommendation.

The application site is located adjacent to the Douay Martyrs School (Cardinal Hume
Campus) which contains the locally listed predominantly single storey original early 20th
century school building and also forms part of the Ickenham Village Conservation Area.

In terms of the impact on the locally listed school building, this is set back from the
southern side boundary of the school site which adjoins No. 88 Long Lane and is separated
and screened from the application site by large modern school buildings. The school site
also benefits from good tree cover. As such, the proposed building, which itself will be set
back from its northern boundary which adjoins the school and will have dense tree and
schrub screening along the boundary, will not adversely affect the setting of the building.

As regards the impact on the Ickenham Village Conservation Area, the application site,
although forming part of the conservation area, is located on its south eastern edge, away
from its historic core. Here, the general character of the area comprises good quality, 2
storey, detached and semi-detached houses of mixed architectural style and mostly 20th
century in date set within well-established gardens that include many fine trees visible from

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



surrounding roads that define the sylvan character of the area.

A heritage statement and a townscape and visual assessment have been submitted in
support of the application. The heritage statement provides a very detailed assessment of
the historical and architectural value of the existing buildings on site and the contribution
they make towards the character and appearance of the conservation area. The statement
concludes that the buildings are not heritage assets, being neither statutorily designated
nor locally listed and they lack any special architectural or historic interest. Whilst the
buildings respect the general pattern of residential development, being on green plots and
set back from the road, they are not considered to make a strong positive contribution to its
overall character and appearance. The townscape and visual assessment also provides
very comprehensive analysis of the impact of the proposed care home on the conservation
area, including a detailed site/view analysis.

The Council's Urban Design/ Conservation Officer advises that the reports are well
researched and thorough and concurs with much of the assessments and their
conclusions on this part of the conservation area and the heritage value of the existing
buildings on site. The officer advises that the only buildings of interest on site are No. 88
Long Lane, a typical interwar two storey house, with attractive applied decorative timber
framing and Dormy House, a modern house probably built in the late 1960s with an
unusual green copper clad roof. Having inspected these buildings on site, the officer
advises that there would be no objections raised to their demolition or to the demolition of
the other buildings on site, subject to them being surveyed to English Heritage Recording
Level 1. This has been conditioned.

As regards the impact of the proposed care home, the new building would generally
conform with the set back from the road of the existing houses. The Council's Urban
Design/ Conservation Officer advises that the Long Lane frontage in particular has been
very carefully designed to reflect the architecture and materials of some of the surrounding
traditionally designed "Arts and Crafts" style houses with the inclusion of gables, a
traditional clay tiled pitched roof with low eaves, dormers and chimneys. As regards to the
much larger footprint of the care home, the officer advises that this would be comparable
with the neighbouring traditional school buildings which extend towards the rear of the site
and although these are extensive, as they are single storey they do not look out of place
within the local townscape. In terms of the care home, although of a different scale and
bulk, the articulated layout of the proposed building would break up its overall bulk into
smaller elements and being well set back from the site frontage and boundaries, the partial
screening provided by existing and new planting would reduce its potential impact on the
immediate townscape.

The Council's Urban Design/ Conservation Officer did raise concerns with a number of
views of the building, particularly at the rear and in terms of the bulk and height of the core
of the building. Revisions have been made to the proposals and in particular the scale and
bulk of the roof of the building has been reduced as much as possible so that the officer
does not raise any further objection to the scheme.

The GLA also considered the scheme to be acceptable in design terms, stating that "the
proposal demonstrates a well thought out building layout, gqwhich responds successfully to
the constraints of the site." They conclude on this aspect of the scheme in their Stage 1
Report that " the building has been designed to respond to the wider street scape along
Long Lane, in line with London Plan Policy 7.4 'Local Charater', forming a well-defined
street facing building line while implementing a simple and traditional style of architecture

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 57



7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

that relates successfully to its surroundings and the setting of the conservation area. The
scale and massing of the proposals are therefore in line with that of the surrounding
contaext and are supported from a strategic perspective. The intention to use high quality
facing materials and detailing is welcomed and the Council is encouraged to secure key
details such as window reveals, and eaves lines to ensure the highest quality of
architecture is built through."

Therefore, subject to these details which is controlled by condition, the impact of the
scheme on the Ickenham Village Conservation Area is acceptable.
Airport safeguarding

The proposal does not give rise to any airport safeguarding concerns.
Impact on the green belt

The site does not fall within nor is it sited close to designated Green Belt land and therefore
no Green Belt issues are raised by this proposal.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

This is dealt with in Section 7.03 above.
Impact on neighbours

Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) seek to protect the amenities of surrounding residential
properties from new development in relation to loss of sunlight, dominance and loss of
privacy respectively. The Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Layouts provides further clarification in that it advises that buildings of two or more storeys
should maintain at least a 15m separation distance from adjoining properties to avoid
appearing overdominant and a 21m distance between facing habitable room windows and
private amenity space (considered to be a 3m deep 'patio’ area adjoining the rear elevation
of a property) should be maintained to safeguard privacy.

Given the siting of the proposed care home in relation to surrounding residential properties,
there would be no loss of sunlight to neighbouring properties or their gardens.

The scheme has been carefully designed so that the overall bulk of the building has been
broken up with its elevations being well articulated and set back from its boundaries.

The nearest residential properties to the proposed building are located to the south west.
As regards No. 96, the adjoining property on Long Lane, the nearest part of the proposed
care home would be its two storied front wing sited some 9.9m from the main side
elevation of No. 96 with the proposed building set back from the shared side boundary by
some 6.3m. The front wing of the building would not breach a 45 degree line of sight taken
from the rear elevation of No. 96 and given the separation distance and tree lined boundary,
the building would not appear unduly dominant from this property. The nearest adjoining
properties on Swakeleys Drive are Nos. 2A and 2B Swakeleys Drive, two bungalows those
rear elevations would directly face the proposed care home. As regards No. 2A, this would
mainly adjoin one of the care home's gardens, with the nearest proposed building elevation
being the corner of the side elevation of the front wing, which would be sited some 21m
away. However, this is not a particularly direct relationship with the more direct line of sight
being to the taller central wing of the care home which is recessed further into the site
where the nearest part of this elevation would be sited some 36.4 away, sited behind the
courtyard garden. As regards No. 2B, the nearest part of proposed care home would be the
side elevation of the two storey rear wing, which would be domestic in scale and sited
some 25.4m from the property's rear elevation with the wing set back some 11.8m from
the side boundary of the application site in which space, a double line of tree planting is

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



proposed. It is considered that this distance which exceeds the Council's separation
distance guidelines and the proposed landscaping would fully safeguard the residential
amenities of this property. Notwithstanding this, it is considered that a further enhancement
could be made with the provision of a green wall/living screen, details of which have been
conditioned. The only other property sited close to the care home would be No. 7A Court
Road which has a side elevation fronting the site boundary. The nearest elevation of the
care home would be two storied and at its nearest point would be sited some 18.6m from
the boundary.

Elsewhere, due to the longer rear gardens of adjoining properties, the proposed care home
would be sited much further away from its neighbours, with typical distances of 69m and
85m to the rear elevations of properties in Swakeleys Drive and Court Road respectively.

These separation distances satisfy the Council's minimum seaparation distance of 15m for
two or more storied development and the layout of the building ensures that the proposed
elevations closest to neighbouring properties are domestic in scale and set well back from
their boundaries allowing existing boundary screening to be maintained and enhanced.

As regards the potential for overlooking, the side elevations of the front and rear wings of
the care home facing No. 96 Long Lane, 2A and 2B Swakeleys Drive and side elevation of
the rear wing facing No. 7A Court Drive would not contain any windows so that no adjoining
property or their patio area would be overlooked within a distance of 21m.

The proposal therefore fully complies with Council planning policy and supplementary
design guidance and their would be no loss of residential amenity to surrounding
neighbours by reason of loss of sunlight, dominance or loss of privact. Noise and air quality
issues are considered in Section 7.18 below.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The proposal would provide accommodation of a high standard, with good sized residents'
rooms, all of which would have en-suite facilities, good outlook and natural lighting. The
care home would also provide a good range of communal facilities, including restaurant,
cafe, cinema, spa and provide extensive garden areas that would separated into different
areas with different characteristics and activities.

The ground floor bedrooms would also include small garden/ patio areas that would
maintain the privacy of the adjoining rooms. As regards the privacy afforded between the
rooms, the only area where the relationship is not ideal is between the bedroom windows
on the rear elevation and rear wing. However, it is considered that the relationship could be
improved with the use of screening/ angled windows which could be controlled by
condition.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policies 6.3, 6.9, 6.10 and 6.13 of the London Plan (July 2011) and saved policies AM2,
AM7, AM9, AM14 and AM15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) are concerned
with traffic generation, road capacity, vehicle and cycle parking and access to public
transport.

A Transport Assessment has been submitted in support of the application which has been
reviewed by the Council's Highway Engineer. The Engineer originally queried the sample
sites used in the assessment to predict traffic generation and car parking provision as they
were more than 5 years old and the lack of accident data. However, revised estimates of
trip generation have now been submitted and although the Council's Highway Engineer
considers that they are still not as robust as he would wish, but given the limited site

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



711

7.12

713

714

availability in the TRICS database, the proposed use being a care home and the scale of
the proposed development, the proposals are not considered likely to result in significant
vehicle movements. A record of personal injury accidents has also now been provided for
the 5 year period up until 30th June 2013. The engineer advises that although an analysis of
the collisions has not been provided, the records do not show a high number of collisions in
the vicinity of the site and overall, the pattern of collisions do not reveal any common issues
in connection with the road layout and/or vehicle speeds. As such, the Highway Engineer
advises that the proposed use and car parking provision is acceptable from a highway
safety perspective.

The Highway Engineer also raised an initial concern about the proposed layout of the site
and the new access arrangements on Long Lane, particularly as regards the central
hatched area on Long Lane and the refuse and waste storage provision on site. This
aspect of the scheme has been the subject of various amendments. THe Highway
Engineer advises that refuse vehicles would collect from within the site and tracking
diagrams demonstrate that adequate provision has been made to allow refuse vehicles to
turnaround on site. The Highway Engineer also advises that amendments have been made
to include revisions to the central hatching on Long Lane to facilitate the vehicles turning
right to access the site and also the vehicles turning right to access the houses situated on
the opposite side of the road, access works, tactile paving, short lengths of double yellow
lines on Long Lane, closure of existing redundant accesses and reinstatement of footway,
and other associated associated works as required. The proposed double yellow lines in
proximity of the proposed access are required to facilitate service vehicle swept paths and
to prohibit vehicles from parking closed to this access. THe Highway Engineer advises that
the access arrangements are acceptable and these have also been the subject of further
public consultation.

The Highway Engineer concludes that subject to the above off-site highway works being
secured through a S106 agreement and a condition attached securing 2.4m x 2.4m
pedestrian visibility splays at the point of vehicle access, no objection is raised from a
highways point of view. These form part of the officer recommendation.

Urban design, access and security

As regards secure by design, a condition has been added that would ensure that adequate
security measures would be put in place on site.
Disabled access

The Council's Access Officer provides detailed comments as regards the access, parking
and servicing provision needed to serve the development and details the measures
required to satisfy Lifetime homes standards. The officer also makes reference to the need
for a fire excavation strategy. These are detailed matters that can be dealt with by
conditions.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The need for this type of proposed housing is addressed in Section 7.01 of this report.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies requires new
development to retain and utilise existing landscape features of merit and to provide new
planting and landscaping wherever appropriate.

A number of trees are protected by Tree Preservation Order No0.438, in the garden of
Dormy House. Another TPO (No. 482A) protects three trees on the rear boundary of No. 90
Long Lane whereas offsite, there are two protected trees on the front boundary of No. 96
Long Lane (TPO No. 496). The whole of the site also forms part of the the Ickenham Village

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



Conservation Area, which provides protection to the remaining non-TPO'd trees.

The Council's Tree/ Landscape Officer advises that the tree cover on this and adjoining
sites makes a significant contribution to the landscape and visual quality of the area,
contributing to its environmental quality, including air quality and biodiversity. As a
consequence, justification for any tree loss is required and suitable replacement tree
planting should be incorporated within a high quality landscaping scheme which improves
the age profile and succession of trees on site.

An Arboricultural Report accompanies this application which includes an assessment of
the quality and value of existing trees, the impact of the proposed development upon trees
on and adjacent to the site, proposed methods for reducing development impacts on
retained trees, proposed tree protection measures and explains the proposed tree planting
strategy. The Council's Tree/ Landscape Officer advises that the submitted information
accords with relevant standards (BS5837:2012) and several relevant Building Research
Establishment documents (1998, 2006 and 2011).

The officer advises that the assessment has involved a total of 122 individual trees, groups
and shrubs, of which one tree is considered to be 'A' grade of high quality and value, 14 are
'B' or moderate grade, 89 are 'C' or low grade and 18 are 'U' or of poor quality. Of the 78
trees that are proposed for removal, 73 are graded 'C' or 'U', trees of low/poor quality which
are not generally considered to be a constraint on development, including 5 TPO'd trees.
The other 5 trees to be removed are of 'B' or moderate grade of which 1 is a TPO'd tree
(T51 - Liquidambar). The report also identifies that in terms of the age profile, most of the
trees surveyed are 'mature’ or 'early mature' with a relatively small proportion of young, or
semi-mature trees that would, over time, succeed them. The officer advises that no
objections are raised to the proposed tree removal, which predominantly involves low and
poor quality trees and that the replacement strategy has been the subject of pre-application
meetings designed to address tree and landscape issues. The officer concludes that the
subsequent quality of the landscape proposals meets the stated objectives to provide a
sustainable, high quality landscape which is well-integrated with the building and the needs
of its occupants. Furthermore, the proposed tree planting will secure and improve the age
structure / profile of the tree population and the new planting will contribute to a significant
improvement to the landscape character of the Conservation Area.

On this basis the Tree/ Landscape Officer recommends approval of the scheme, subject
to conditions which are included in the officer recommendation.

Ecology

As regards ecology issues, an ecological assessment has been submitted in support of
the application. This includes results of a site survey undertaken in June 2014, with specific
surveys undertaken in respect of badger, bats and great crested newt. The main findings
are that the gardens are dominated by amenity grassed areas, bordered by amenity
planting, hedgerows, fencing and scattered trees and includes built structures such as
sheds and greenhouses. These habitats are generally dominated by non native/ introduced
species and are of low/negligible ecological value at the site/ local level. Cotoneaster and
Rhododendron were found within two properties, and it is recommended that these
species are carefully removed from the site and replaced with native species and/or
species of acknowledged benefit to wildlife. As regards protected species, the site does
provide habitat suitable for bats and nesting birds and two buildings were recorded as
supporting small summer (non-breeding) roosts for Soprano Pipistrelle and Common

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 61



Pipistrelle. The assessment advises that the demolition of these buildings will be
conducted under a Natural England licence, which will include appropriate mitigation
measures to safeguard bats. Replacement bat roost features will also be provided in the
form of bat boxes in order to ensure no net loss of the local bat population conservation
status. In addition, a sensitive lighting scheme is recommended along the site boundaries
to ensure the long-term use of these features as foraging/commuting features for bats. As
regards nesting birds, the report advises that common birds may utilise the trees,
hedgerow and shrubs within the site for nesting and it is recommended that any clearance
of potential nesting habitat be undertaken outside of the bird nesting season.

The Council's Sustainability Officer has reviewed the assessment and advises that
although bats were recorded using the site, its value in their ongoing conservation status is
relatively low. Usage of the two buildings was also relatively low and value as breeding
roosts is also equally low. However, the demolition needs to be undertaken in accordance
with a Natural England licence and the development needs to accommodate bats to
ensure that their conservation status is maintained and supported. Furthermore, to ensure
that the development contributes to a net biodiversity improvement, enhancement
measures should be secured by condition. This forms part of the officer recommendation.

The Sustainability Officer also advises that living walls and roofs, even in the form of wire
trellising systems on blank elevations which climbing plants can be trained up, can improve
air quality, operate as carbon sinks and also be of importance for nature conservation. As
this development does provide oppportunities for the use of living walls and roofs, which
will also help further screen the building from neighbouring properties, a condition is
recommended.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

Policy 5.17 of the London Plan requires that all new development provide adequate facilities
for the storage of waste and recycling.

The proposal makes appropriate provision for refuse and recycling close to the entrance of
the site which will be screened.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

An Energy Assessment has been submitted with the application.

The Council's Sustainability Officer advises that whilst the energy assessment
demonstrates the development can meet the necessary 35% reduction in CO2 emissions
and generally follows London Plan guidance, the detailed design has not been finalised and
therefore further information is required which can be secured by a recommended
condition.

The GLA advise that further information is required in terms of the proposed external
shading architectural features, and also the floor area and location of the energy centre
should be provided. The GLA also advise that the sizing of the CHP system appears
oversized for the building, including monthly load profiles for heat and electricity and the
proportion to be met by the CHP to support the CHP sizing and carbon savings claimed.
AS such, further information is required and information should also be provided on the
proposed management and maintenance arrangements for the system.

The applicant's advise that the space requirements for options A and B are provided by the
Energy Report which will be within the proposed basement plant room and Drw. No.
€14010-GA-700-B1-1001 Rev. P3 is attached to illustrate this again. As regards the CHP
details, a detailed feasibility is to be undertaken at the next design stage to select the CHP

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 62



unit. This will confirm the exact size of the CHP and the monthly profiles for heating
demands and electricity. Notwithstanding this, Initial Thermal Modal Load annual profiles -
Be Clean model for the Total Fuel Demand, Heating and Electricity has been submitted
based on CHP units at other similar applicant's care homes which demonstrates the
savings are realistic. Management/ maintenance arrangements would be agreed in due
course. These issues can be secured through the use of planning conditions/and/or S106
clauses.

As regards renewable energy, the applicant advises that the total demand is made up of
combined technology types additive at different times iof the day or night. Each technology
is therefore not competing, but contributing to carbon emission reductions. As regards to
solar PVs, the applicant advises that these are not considered suitable for this project and
therefore the roof design will not need to alter.

Therefore, it is considered that the outstanding issues can be dealt with by the
Sustainability Officer's recommended condition which forms part of the recommendation.
7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The application site is not located in an area with an identified risk of flooding, however
Policy OES8 of the Saved Policies UDP and Policies 5.12 nad 5.13 of the London Plan still
require that developments seek to reduce surface water run-off and reduce the risk of
flooding elsewhere.

The Council's Water and Flood Risk Officer advises that although the site is under a
hectare and therefore does not require a Flood Risk Assessment, it is still of substantial
size and Environment Agency maps indicate that there is surface water ponding on the
site. The officer advises that in such circumstancers, a clear drainage strategy should be
submitted, which should include appropriate site investigations to identify porosity on the
site and assess groundwater issues as a basement is proposed. This should then inform a
drainage strategey to control surface water run off to greenfield run off rates. This would be
secured by the officer's recommended condition.
7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
resists the grant of planning permission for uses and associated structures which are, or
are likely to become, detrimental to the character or amenities of surrounding properties or
the area generally, due to various impacts, including noise generation or emission of other
pollutants. Policy BE19 seeks to protect the amenity in residential areas generally.

Noise and External Lighting

An acoustic report has been submitted with the application which sets out the findings of a
noise survey, assesses appropriate internal and external noise criteria and sets out the
glazing/ ventilation specifications and design criteria for plant and equipment required so
that the development would have no detectable effect on health and quality of life due to
noise.

The Council's Environmental Health Officer has reviewed the report and advises that
providing the recommendations are followed, the scheme is acceptable subject to the
imposition of specific conditions relating to specify the noise rating for mechanical plant, air
extraction noise scheme and the hours of deliveries. A condition is also recommended to
secure details of any external lighting scheme. These conditions form part of the officer's
recommendations.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



Air Quality

The application site is located within an Air Quality Management Area, close to its northern
boundary. An Air Quality Assessment has been submitted in support of the application
which assesses the likely emissions from the two preferred options for heating plant and
the cumulative effects of traffic growth from the development itself and from other potential
developments in the area including the redevelopment of the former Master Brewer site
and Hillingdon Circus.

The report advises that on the site, the predicted pollution levels are generally within the air
quality objectives and the location is suitable for a care home. The only exception to this is
an approximate 2m wide strip at the front of the site, adjacent to the Long Lane frontage
where nitrogen dioxide (NO2) levels exceed the annual mean objective in both the future
baseline and future with development scenarios. However, as this exceedance is primarily
caused by existing traffic levels on Long Lane and given the modest increase in
concentrations likely to result from the development, mitigation at source would not be
appropriate so that the scheme proposes to mitigate this impact by limiting resident and
visitor access to the area by the use of soft landscaping.

The report advises that as regards the impact of emissions from the traffic generated by
the development, these are imperceptible due to the limited extent of the extra trips
involved.

The report then goes of to consider heating plant and advises that of the two preferred
options, local impacts under Option B (2 x bio-oil fired boilers) are greater than those under
Option A (2 x gas fired combined heat and power units), although neither generate new
exceedences of objectives and, offsite, impacts are generally of negligible significance.
Slight adverse impacts are possible with Option B, but these are limited to a zone of limited
extent in the southernmost corner of the school grounds that lie adjacent to, and to the
north of, the site. However, the report advises that taking into account the conservatism
built into the assessment, it is considered likely that in reality, the impacts will be negligible
everywhere.

The report goes on to advise that the development emissions are within the benchmarks
set by the Mayor of London and it is, therefore, air quality neutral. This applies whichever
option for local heating plant is selected.

The Air Quality Assessment has been reviewed by an Environmental Health Officer. The
officer advises that the assessment may have underestimated the local background for
nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and notes that emission factors for future years assume a slight
reduction in NO2. As a result, the officer advises that the EU limit value of 40 mg/m3 might
be exceeded further onto the site, assuming the background level has been
underestimated. The officer advises that the proposed care home use would be very
sensitive to poor air quality but as the building facade fronting Long Lane would be set back
some 10m from the boundary, no objections are raised to the currently proposed siting of
the building. The developer however should consider siting air inlets, openable windows
etc, away from flues and air extraction points which is advised within a recommended
informative.

The officer also notes that both heating plant options for the site satisfy the air quality
neutral benchmarks set by the Mayor for a C2 use of this size, although Option A would be
the preferred option as it produces lower emissions including zero particulates, would not

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 64



require the delivery and storage of bio-oil and may have lower maintenance requirements.
As advised by the officer, a condition is recommended to ensure that the details of any
plant, machinery and fuel burnt as part of the energy provision, together with the location of
the flue(s) for the development are submitted which should include pollutant emission rates
at the flue(s) with or without mitigation technologies.

The officer goes on to advise that although this scheme would be air quality neutral in
terms of the Mayor's benchmark standards, it will still add to pollution in an area already
suffering poor air quality and therefore a S106 contribution is required for monitoring
purposes. This forms part of the officer's recommendation.

The officer concludes that there is insufficient grounds to refuse this scheme and that the
recommended conditions will ensure that the development is acceptable as far as
practicable on air quality grounds. The officer also notes that an Interim Travel Plan has
been submitted with the application and advises that a Travel Plan should be conditioned. A
Travel Plan would form part of the S106 Agreement.

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

As regards the reasons for objecting to the proposals raised by the petitoners, these have
been addressed in the officer's report.

As regards the individual objection comments, Points (i) - (iii), (vi) - (xviii), (xxi) - (xxviii),
(xxx) and (xxxiv) have been dealt with in the relevant sections of the officer's report. As
regards points (iv) and (v), the points raised that this would be another corporate residence
that will reduce the sense of community (point iv) and only 3 family houses would be left on
this stretch of road (point (v) are noted, but they do not raise material planning issues of
sufficient weight over and above the normal planning considerations on the impact of the
development on the character of the area that could justify a refusal of permission. As
regards point (xix), noise from construction traffic would be a matter for environmental
health legislation. Point (xx) regarding tree planting damaging property foundations is
speculation and seems unlikely. Point (xxix) is noted. Points (xxxii) and (xxxiii) do not raise
material planning considerations. As regards point (xxxi) if a proposal for a change of use
of the building was submitted in the future, this would need to be assesseed on its planning
merits. As regards point (xxxv), residents are listened to but again, there is the statutary
requirement to consider all applications on their individual planning merits.

The comment in support of the application is noted.

The comments raised by the Ickenham Residents' Association and the ward councillor
raising material planning considerations have also been dealt with in the officer's report.
7.20 Planning obligations

Policy R17 of the Council's Unitary Development Plan states that: 'The Local Planning
Authority will, where appropriate, seek to supplement the provision of recreation open
space, facilities to support arts, cultural and entertainment activities, and other community,
social and education facilities through planning obligations in conjunction with other
development proposals'.

A S106 Agreement would be needed to secure the following:-

(i) Highways Works: the developer will required to enter into a S278/S38 agreement to
secure highways works including the new access onto Long Lane.

(i) Travel Plan

(iii) Construction Training: A financial contribution is sought equal to Training costs: £2500

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



per £1m build cost + Coordinator costs of£9600 or an in kind scheme to be provided to this
value.

(iv) Employment Training: An Employment Training Strategy to be submitted.

(v) Air Quality Monitoring: A financial contribution to the sum of £25.000.

(vi) Project Management & Monitoring Fee: 5% of total cash contributions.

The proposal is Mayoral or Council CIL liable.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

There are no enforcement issues raised by this application or the site.
7.22 Other Issues

Land Contamination

The Council's Environmental Health Officer advises that no information has been
submitted with regard to land contamination with the planning application and a care home
is considered to be sensitive to contamination. However, the existing housing appears to
have been built on open land and an orchard appears to have been sited at the rear of the
site. Given that significant land contamination issues are not anticipated on site, this can be
dealt with by condition. This forms part of the officer's recommendation.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 66



Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed care home would involve the loss of 5 existing houses sited and have a
more extensive building footprint that would take up more garden land than the existing
houses. However, there are sites in the vicinity that have large building footprints which
extend in depth across the site, including the immediately adjoining Douay Martyrs School
site to the north. Furthermore, the scheme has been well designed so that the impacts of
the built form have been minimised whilst the application site is extensive that allows the
building to be set back from its boundaries which would be well screened and significant
garden areas to be manintained, particularly on the more sensitive southern and western
(rear) boundaries adjoining residential properties. The impacts of the scheme in terms of
landscaping and tree impacts, and the considerations advised by the London Plan such as
biodiversity, flood risk and climate change are acceptable and in many cases, likely to be
beneficial, so that it is considered that a reason for refusal could not be justified in relation
to the loss of garden space.

The loss of 5 Class C3 houses is strictly contrary to policy H3 of the saved UDP but the
GLA advise that the application should be considered in terms of the more up to date
policies in the NPPF and London Plan which advise that Class C2 accommodation should
be included as part of the Borough's overall housing provision and therefore results in a net
increase of 80 units on this site. The Council's Adult Social Care do query the need for the
facility within the borough, but the GLA advise that there is significant pan - London and
Hillingdon need for the facility and that this need for care home places is expected to
increase.

The Council's Urban Design/ Conservation Officer raises no objections to the demolition of
the houses, subject to their details being recorded, which would be controlled by condition.
The proposal has also formed the subject of pre-application discussions and advice and

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 67



the scheme has undergone various revisions. The conservation officer is fully supportive of
this scheme and considers it to be a high quality and well considered proposal that would
not harm the character or appearance of the Ickenham Village Conservation Area.

The scheme would not harm the amenities of surrounding residential occupiers and fully
complies with Council guidance. Furthermore, the Highway Officer is satisfied that the
proposed parking is sufficient to serve the development and the proposed access
arrangements would not prejudice highway safety.

The Mayor does not raise any in principle objections to the scheme in his Stage 1 report.

The application is recommended favourably, but further archaeological investigation is
required, the results of which need to be referred to GLAAS and the application would need
to be referred back to the Mayor.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)
Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014)

London Plan (July 2011)

Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012)

HDAS: 'Accessible Hillingdon'

Consultation responses

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



P
a
”

’, v’
P
” A
L
P
‘, 7
’, ’
‘ s
// ’
.
;
.
P
P
P
3
g &

6y

G
O

&

&

Dormy
House

sl

v
\/ )
\
\
\
W\
A I
i \
\ \
\ \
[
[
:\ [N
\
\
\
\
\
\
O \

\
\

\

Lo

B A

E

292

84da

\
\

,
.

The Douay Martyrs Sch
Cardinal Hume Cam

T
\
'
i
A
‘.,
J
—
\
\ N
\ ©
\

84

North Hillingdon Cen

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

88-94 Long Lane

LONDON BOROUGH

OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Ickenham
Planning Application Ref: Scale
52129/APP/2014/2996 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
Major Page 69 March 2015

MNILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70



Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address HAYES AND HARLINGTON STATION STATION ROAD HAYES

Development: Application under Schedule 7 of the Crossrail Act 2008 for the approval of
Plans and Specifications associated with the erection of a new station
building, external lift shaft, footbridge with lift shafts, extension of platforms 2/
and 4/5 with canopy modifications, new waiting room to Platform 4/5 and

associated lighting.

LBH Ref Nos: 10057/APP/2014/4338

Drawing Nos:

WSN1B-ALL-DRG-AEA-000270 Rev AOZ
WSN1B-ALL-DRG-AEA-000271 Rev A0z
WSN1B-ALL-DRG-AEA-000273 Rev AOz
WSN1B-ALL-DRG-AEA-000278 Rev AO:
WSN1B-ALL-DRG-AEA-000280 Rev AOQ:
WSN1B-EAR-DRG-AEA-000011 Rev AO8
WSN1B-EAR-DRG-AEA-000260 Rev A02
WSN1C-EAR-DRG-BEN-000250 Rev P02
WSN1C-EAR-DRG-BEN-000251 Rev P02
WSN1C-EAR-DRG-BEN-000252 Rev P02
WSN1C-EAR-DRG-BEN-000253 Rev P02
WSN1C-EAR-DRG-BEN-000254 Rev P02
WSN1C-EAR-DRG-BEN-000255 Rev P02
WSN1C-EAR-DRG-BEN-000256 Rev P02
WSN1C-EAR-DRG-BEN-000257 Rev P02
WSN1C-EAR-DRG-BEN-000258 Rev P02
WSN1C-EAR-DRG-BEN-000259 Rev P02
WSN1C-EAR-SKT-BEN-000005
WSN1C-EAR-SKT-BEN-000006
WSN1C-EAR-SKT-BEN-000007
WSN1B-CNS-PLD-NCA-000012 Rev A01

Written Statement for Information HIL/3/4/NFk

Design and Access statement HIL/3/4/NR

Date Plans Received:  09/12/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 09/12/2014

1. SUMMARY

The principle of the development has been established under the Crossrail Act 2008,
however Schedule 7 requires the Local Planning Authority to approve details in relation to
the erection of a new station building, external lift shaft, footbridge with lift shafts, extension
of platforms 2/3 and 4/5 with canopy modifications, new waiting room to Platform 4/5 and
associated lighting.

These construction arrangements contribute to improving the linkages within London and
the overall regeneration objectives of the area in compliance with London Plan (July 2011)
Policies, and it is recommended that the Plans and Specification submission for
permanent works under Crossrail Act 2008, Schedule 7 be approved.

2. RECOMMENDATION

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



APPROVAL subiject to the following:
INFORMATIVES

1

1.Induction loops should be specified to comply with BS 7594 and BS EN 60118-4, and a
term contract planned for their maintenance.

2.Care must be taken to ensure that overspill and/or other interference from induction
loops in different/adjacent areas does not occur.

3.Flashing beacons/strobe lights linked to the fire alarm should be carefully selected to
ensure they remain within the technical thresholds not to adversely affect people with

epilepsy.
2

We expect that as part of the development there should be access and signage
improvements to enhance the connectivity between the station and the towpath.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

Hayes and Harlington Station is located on Station Road to the south of Hayes Town
Centre. The railway line runs east to west with the current station building located on the
Station Road bridge, which crosses the railway running north to south. Access to
Platforms 4 and 2/3 is gained from two sets of staircases within the Station Building.

Access to Platform 1 is gained via a staircase directly from Station Road located
immediately south of the bridge parapet on the eastern flank. This staircase also provides
access to the station car park. A further footbridge, to the eastern end of the station,
connects Platforms 2/3 and 4/5. In addition, a subway runs from Blyth Road to the west,
under Station Road, and provides

further access to Station Approach.

Hayes and Harlington Station contains five Platforms. Platform 1 is the southernmost
platform, followed by island Platform 2/3. The majority of Platform 4 is a single faced
Platform with the remainder comprising an island platform with Platform 5.

A secondary station building is located on Platform 4 and contains a currently unused
ground level platform access.

The Platform 4 canopy is an extension of the secondary station building roof. Platform 2/3
is served by a canopy extending between the eastern access staircase and existing ticket
office. Within this canopy is located a platform waiting room. There is no canopy on
platform 1.

The station building is locally listed and Nestles Conservation Area is located to the south
of the site.

The surrounding area is mixed use in character with a mix of residential, commercial,
industrial and office uses in the immediate vicinity of the site.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



3.2 Proposed Scheme

The Crossrail Act 2008 provides powers for the construction and operation of Crossrail.
Schedule 1 of the Act describes time 'scheduled works' that the nominated undertaker will
be authorised to carry out.

The Crossrail Act gives deemed planning permission for the proposed works, subject to
conditions imposed by Section 10 and Schedule 7 of the Act, which requires plans and
specifications for the operations and works and construction arrangements to be approved
by the Local Planning Authority. It sets out the items requiring further detailed approval for
both permanent works (referred to as 'plans and specification') and temporary works
(referred to as construction arrangements).

This application includes information supporting the Plans and Specifications submission
in relation to a number of matters as follows:

- Construction works;

- Minor Construction Works;

- Artificial Lighting;

- Fences and Walls.

The permanent works required with this submission are as follows:

1. New Station Building

It is proposed to demolish the existing commercial building and construct a new station
building at midlevel between Station Road and Station Approach. The forecourt and
concourse will be at street level with Station Road with steps providing access up to this
level from Station Approach. The building will be approximately 10 metres in height above
Station Approach and 6.7 metres above Station Road.

2. New External Lift Shaft

An 8.4 metre high external lift shaft is proposed on the eastern elevation of the new
building, which will be constructed from glass panels on the north and south elevations,
and anodized metal panels on the east and west elevations. This has been incorporated
into the scheme so as to provide a covered step-free access route from Station Approach
to forecourt level.

3. New Footbridge with lift shafts

A new footbridge is proposed which extends 52 metres in length from the main station
building across to Platform 1. These will be constructed in a similar style to that of the new
station building with glazed windows along the upper sections to allow natural light to
permeate the structure.

4. Platform extensions
- Platform 2/3 will be extended by 76.7m along both faces and includes maintenance
access steps for staff.

- Platform 4/5 will be extended by 81.9m and widened to create an island
platform of 237.0m in length.

5. New Platform 4/5 Canopy and Waiting Room

It is proposed to remove and replace the canopy and building on Platform 4. The new
canopy structure will extend 58 metres in length from the new footbridge stairs along the
length of the platform. The requirement for new canopies and waiting room is derived from
the need to widen and expand the length of platform 4/5 to facilitate the longer Crossrail
trains.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



6. Modification of Platform 2/3 Canopy

As a result of the positioning of the new Platform 2/3 staircase, it is necessary to cutback
the existing canopy. The canopy will be cutback by 15 metres and reinstated to provide 28
metres of coverage along the platform between the new and existing footbridges.

7. New Lighting

This will be installed along the platform extensions, canopies, new footbridge and
staircases and within the new station building and canopy. Platform lighting will consist of a
combination of 5 metre tall single and twin headed columns located at 6m centres. Around
the station, there will be two way mounted luminaires on the external canopy colums and
recessed uplighters set along the main building line internally and externally.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

10057/APP/2011/2478 Hayes And Harlington Station Station Road Hayes

Application under Schedule 7 of the Crossrail Act 2008 for approval of Construction Arrangemet
in respect of handling or re-use of spoil and top soil, storage sites, screening, artificial lighting,
suppression of dust and measures to prevent mud on highway. The Construction Arrangements
be associated with the construction of an extension to the southern most rail platform at the
existing Hayes and Harlington rail station.

Decision: 07-12-2011  Approved

10057/APP/2011/2479 Hayes And Harlington Station Station Road Hayes

Application under Schedule 7 of the Crossrail Act 2008 for approval of plans and specifications 1
the construction of a platform extension at Hayes & Harlington Station and associated installatio
of fencing and lighting.

Decision: 19-01-2012  Approved

10057/APP/2014/1058 Hayes & Harlington Station Station Approach Hayes

Application under Schedule 7 of the Crossrail Act 2008 for approval of Construction Arrangemel
in association with Hayes and Harlington Station. The Construction Arrangements to be
associated with the demolition of the existing commercial buildings on Station Road and the
existing secondary station building, and construction of a new station building and canopy
modifications.

Decision: 20-05-2014  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

There have been a number of submissions under the Crossrail Act for associated works,
which are listed above.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.T2 (2012) Public Transport Interchanges
Part 2 Policies:
AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt

disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(ii) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

LPP 2.8 (2011) Outer London: Transport

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 6.2 (2011) Providing public transport capacity and safeguarding land for transport

LPP 7.14 (2011) Improving air quality

LPP 7.15 (2011) Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes

LPP 7.19 (2011) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP 6.4 (2011) Enhancing London's Transport Connectivity

LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character

LPP 7.5 (2011) Public realm

LPP 7.6 (2011) Architecture

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF4 NPPF - Promoting sustainable transport

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 2nd February 2015

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

649 residents and businesses were consulted on the application and four responses were received.
The comments made are as follows:

1. Serious concerns with regards to vehicle access to Station Approach;
2. The plans show that the roundabout will be relocated to outside the High Point Village car park

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



which will reduce the amount of space for vehicles;

3. Four spaces outside Tesco Express is not enough;

4. Station Approach is not suitable for a drop off area due to the lack of space and at rush hour it
becomes very congested and noisy;

5. Taxi company park in the short term drop off zones and on the pavement/access point to Station
Approach, which worsens the problems. This will only get worse with Crossrail;

6. Upkeep of the area and lighting needs to be carefully considered and designated so that the area
is properly maintained;

7. The PA system/speakers need to be carefully considered so as to avoid disturbance to residents;
8. Object to the demolition of the historic 19th Century building alongside Platform 4 and more
attempt should be made to retain this as part of the new development rather than reusing the bricks.

SUPPORT

1. Excellent for progress and job creation;

2. No objection to the plans provided there is no disruption during construction

3. The site restoration scheme needs to be carefully agreed and should look at promoting
pedestrianisation and cycling and more greening of the area to absorb noise;

NATURAL ENGLAND
No objection as the proposal does not affect any priority areas for Natural England.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY
No objections or comments

CANAL AND RIVERS TRUST

No objection to the proposed new station but have the following comments to make: Given the
proximity to the Grand Union Canal, we would anticipate both pedestrians and cyclists to make use
of the towpath as part of their commute getting to and from the station. We would therefore expect
that as part of the development there should be access and signage improvements to enhance the
connectivity between the station and the towpath. If any funding is made available for access
enhancements as part of the upgrade, please contact the Canal and River Trust so that the Trust
can work proactiveley with other key stakeholders.

TfL
TfL are unable to provide a response at this time but will endeavour to respond as soon as possible.

Internal Consultees

TREES AND LANDSCAPING

LANDSCAPE CHARACTER / CONTEXT:

Site description:

-The site is occupied by Hayes & Harlington Station, which is approached from the west via Station
Road and from the north by Station Approach.

‘The railway line runs approximately east-west, with Hayes Town Centre situated to the north.

‘A recent development of flats is situated directly to the north, occupying the former goods yard,
beyond which is the Grand Union Canal.

‘Land to the south of the railway is occupied by industrial / commercial development, with residential
streets beyond.

‘Due to the operational nature of the railway there are no trees or landscape enhancements within
the curtilage of the railway.

Landscape Planning designations:

‘There are no Tree Preservation Orders and no Conservation Area designations directly affecting
the site.

-The Nestle Factory to the south-east of the railway lies within the Botwell Nestle Conservation Area.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



PROPOSAL:

The proposal is an application under Schedule 7 of the Crossrail Act 2008 for the approval of Plans
and Specifications associated with the erection of a new station building, external lift shaft, footbridge
with lift shafts, extension of platforms 2/3 and 4/5 with canopy modifications, new waiting room to
Platform 4/5 and associated lighting.

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS:
Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

‘No trees or other landscape features of merit will be affected by the proposal.

‘Some indicative tree planting and bike storage is shown on drawing No.
WSN1C_EAR_DRG_BEN_000251 Rev P.02.

‘According to the Design & Access Statement, section 2 Design Rationale confirms that 'the
landscaping and non-structural works within the cartilage are shown for information only and not for
approval as part of this plans and specification submission'.

‘It goes on to say that 'these matters will be contained in the Site Restoration Scheme, which will be
agreed with the London Borough of Hillingdon at a later date'.

-In section 3, the design aims for the Emerging Public Realm Plan are set out.

-If the application is recommended for approval, it is understood that proposals for the enhancement
of the public realm (hard and soft landscape) will follow. These should be complement the high
profile design concept promoted by Crossrail.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
This application has been subject to pre-application discussions with planning and specialist
officers.

It is understood that public realm improvements associated with the station development will follow.

ACCESS

Planning permission is sought to construct a new Hayes & Harlington Station to support the
implementation of the new Crossrail train service. The work includes an external lift shaft with a
feature lift, a new footbridge with lift, as well as extension and modifications to the platforms. An
extension, new canopy and a waiting room is also proposed for platform 4 & 5.

The new station building is to be located North of the current building in place of the commercial
building. Level access into the station from Station Road is an integral part of the design, with lift
access into the station provided from Station Approach. Access for older and disabled people, and
for those with young children, to all platforms would be possible via a series of lift and footbridge
arrangements.

This application has been the subject of detailed pre-planning discussions and has undergone a
number of iterations prior to this submission. The proposal is therefore fundamentally acceptable
from an accessibility perspective, however, the following minor alteration is requested:

1.The artist's impression illustrates a handrail on the left when facing the Station Road entrance. An
additional handrail should also be provided on the right (facing).

2.An alternative to minimise the risk of slips and trips, particularly by people with a visual
impairment, the outer edge of the steps (where they abut the level pavement) on the Station Road
entrance should ensure a contrast of no less than 30 points Light Reflectance Value (LRV).

Recommended Informatives
1.Induction loops should be specified to comply with BS 7594 and BS EN 60118-4, and a term

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



contract planned for their maintenance.

2.Care must be taken to ensure that overspill and/or other interference from induction loops in
different/adjacent areas does not occur.

3.Flashing beacons/strobe lights linked to the fire alarm should be carefully selected to ensure they
remain within the technical thresholds not to adversely affect people with epilepsy.

Conclusion:
No objection, subject to the above observations

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT
No objection

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The Crossrail Act 2008 granted the principle of a cross route railway and gives deemed
planning permission for the proposed works, subject to conditions imposed by Section 10
and Schedule 7 of the Act, which requires plans and specifications for the operations and
works to be approved by the Local Planning Authority.

The extent of the deemed planning permission is determined by works covered by
Schedules 1 and 2 of the Act and by the limits set out in the deposited Parliamentary
approved plans. The Act also provides for the scheduled works to be constructed on land
within the lateral limits of deviation (LoD) shown on the deposited plans and sections and
provides for an upward limit of deviation.

Schedule 7 to the Act defines the detailed planning regime which applies to the Local
Planning Authority (LPA) affected by works to construct and operate Crossrail. Its sets out
the items requiring further detailed approval for both permanent works and construction
arrangements. It also sets out the grounds in which the LPA can impose conditions.
Schedule 7 is a completely separate regime to that of the Town and Country Planning Act
in terms of submission details and content. Furthermore, Schedule 7 sets out the matters
or operations or works that require further detailed approval from the LPA for both
permanent and temporary works.

Applications made under the Crossrail Act 2008 are different from planning applications
made under the Town and Country Planning Act as they have received deemed approval
through Royal Assent, subject to certain details for Local Planning Authority's approval.
Thus, Local Planning Authority's powers in deciding applications made under the
Schedules are limited by the provisions of the Act. The Council signed up to become a
'‘Qualifying Authority' to have powers to consent to a wider range of detailed matters made
under Schedule 7 (Planning Conditions Schedule) of the Act.

A Qualifying Authority may refuse to approve an application for 'reserved' matters as well
as details of conditions that can be imposed upon applications recommended for approval,
subject to the conditions set out under Schedule 7 of the Act. A Qualifying Authority can
only refuse or impose conditions on a Schedule 7 application on the basis of grounds
specified in the schedule, which is;

'that arrangements ought to be modified to preserve the local environment or local amenity
or to reduce the prejudicial effects on road safety or on the free flow of traffic in the local
area and are reasonably capable of being modified'.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



The Environmental Statement (ES) deposited with the Crossrail Bill identifies the likely
significant effects that will arise from the construction and operation of Crossrail, and
identifies the range of mitigation measures that could be used to reduce or eliminate these
effects. It serves as the Environmental Impact Assessment of the project and has been
updated through the passage of the Bill in the Houses of Parliaments. The Crossrail Act
made provisions that all applications cannot exceed the impacts assessed by the ES. It is
the intention of the Secretary of State to carry out the project so that its impacts are as
assessed in the ES.

Given such, the principle of this development has been established.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to the consdieration of this application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Hayes and Harlington Station is a Locally Listed Building and it is proposed to demolish this
in order to facilitate the development. Whilst the loss of the buildings are regrettable, given
the alterations required to make improvements to the access, platforms, canopies and
modernisation of the station, and accomodate the Crossrail trains in general, it has not
been possible to retain these. The historic wall fronting Station Approach is however going
to be carefully demolished and the bricks re-used to construct the crash wall along the
northern part of the site. No objection is raised to this, and this proposal is considered to
preserve part of the heritage and historic appearance of the site.

Nestles Conservation Area is located to the south of the application site. Given the

acceptable design and scale of the proposed station building and associated platform

alterations, footbridges and buildings, the proposals are not considered to have a

detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the adjacent Conservation Area.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The station building will be constructed on a raised plinth approximately 3.2 metres above
ground level and at the same level as Station Road. A new canopy is proposed to extend
abvoe the forecourt on Station Road and will be approximatley 6.7 metres above the
ground level.

The building is set away from the High Point Village development to the east and extends to
a height of 10 metres above Station Approach. A partially glazed lift shaft is proposed at
this level also to provide access to the station buildings/platforms.

In terms of the layout and siting of the proposed station, the proposed building provides a
continuation from the established pattern of development within this part of Station Road
and Station Approach, and its overall design, scale and orientation towards the Town
Centre and Blyth Road, ensures that the building is visible within the surrounding area.
Whilst the new building would be prominent in view from the surrounding street scape, it is
considered that the overall size and scale of the proposed building would be appropriate for
its setting and not detract from the character and appearance of more recent
developments within the surrounding area.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 79



The building would incorporate an active glazed frontage onto Station Road and is
considered to enhance and complement the appearance of the surrounding area through
its associated improvements. The largely glazed design of the building will allow views
through the station to surrounding areas, and this design approach and proposed material
pallette, is not out of keeping with the evolving development in the surrounding street
scene. Overall, the design of the station buildings are considered to enhance this part of
Hayes Town Centre and to complement the existing recent redevelopments and long term
plans for Hayes Town.

The amendments to the platforms, footbridges, canopies and ancillary station buildings are
also considered to be of an acceptable design and scale, and given their location and the
level differences of the site, are not deemed to have a detrimental impact on the character
and appearance of the surrounding area.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

In terms of the impact of the proposal on neighbouring residents, the design, scale and
siting of the buildings proposed, are not considered to have a detrimental impact on the
amenities of the surrounding occupiers.

Concerns have been raised with regards to the noise from the station announcements.
Crossrail have been advised of these comments and will provide a response on these
matters, which will be included within the addendum to the application.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Concerns have been raised with regards to the traffic congestion within Station Approach,
its suitability for use in conjunction with the rail station, the lack of drop off parking spaces
and proposed relocation of the roundabout.

This submission is solely to consider the proposed new station buildings, platform and
canopy alterations. Works to improve the public realm, integration of transport modes,
pedestrian environment, link to the town centre, cycle access and parking form part of an
emerging public realm plan. This plan, which is aimed at the surrounding public realm and
highways network is being designed jointly by stakeholders from the London Borough of
Hillingdon, Crossrail and TfL.

The Council has made Crossrail and TfL aware of the comments in relation to the
surrounding road network and it is hoped that these will be addressed within the wider
plans for the area/Site Restoration Scheme.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

See section 7.07 'Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Area’

ACCESS

In terms of access to the site, this will still be retained from both Station Approach and

Station Road. Significant improvements are proposed to the accessibility of the site for all

users, to ensure that this is step free from both routes into the station and also to generally

improve the movement in and around the station. No objections are raised to the

improvements proposed, which are considered to improve the accessibility of the area.
7.12 Disabled access

The new station building is to be located further north of the current building, in place of the
commercial building. Level access into the station from Station Road is an integral part of

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 80



713

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

the design, with lift access into the station provided from Station Approach. Access for
older and disabled people, and for those with young children, to all platforms would be
possible via a series of lift and footbridge arrangements.

The Access Officer has reviewed the application and raises no objection to the access
arrangements proposed.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

No trees or other landscape features of merit will be affected by the proposal. The scheme
has been reviewed by the Councils Trees and Landscape Officer who raises no objection
to the construction of the new station buildings, platforms and canopies.

The wider public realm improvements do not form part of this application and will be
submitted as part of a Site Restoration Scheme.
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Concerns have been raised with regards to the noise from station announcements and
whether the new station design will improve the acoustics so that residents in High Point
Village are not disturbed by these.

These concerns have been referred to Crossrail who will be providing a response on this
matter. This will be reported in the addendum to the committee report.
Comments on Public Consultations

The public consultation issues and comments have been addressed in the main body of
the report.
Planning obligations

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Other Issues

There are no other issues for consideration with this application.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 81



application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to the consideration of this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The principle of the development has been established under the Crossrail Act 2008,
however Schedule 7 requires the Local Planning Authority to approve details in relation to
the erection of a new station building, external lift shaft, footbridge with lift shafts, extension
of platforms 2/3 and 4/5 with canopy modifications, new waiting room to Platform 4/5 and

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



associated lighting.

These construction arrangements contribute to improving the linkages within London and
the overall regeneration objectives of the area in compliance with London Plan (July 2011)
Policies, and it is recommended that the Plans and Specification submission for
permanent works under Crossrail Act 2008, Schedule 7 be approved.

11. Reference Documents

Crossrail Act 2008

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (July 2011)

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise

Contact Officer: Charlotte Bath Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



P
7

YN
1

’ R h
S
[

[ /
"

Sheringham Cour Roof Car Par

A i
~ SN D\
“
~< S
s TN
'
.
N Vo
’
~ .
el i
- s 2

Cardinal
Building

Vantage
Building

Navigation
Building

' Highpoint Village

O
N SN \\‘\ o~
~ N
N\ S \\\\
N S \\\
[ = ~ ~ N e
Compass Building \\\ X

T 7

. signal
Building

=

~

Car Park

[ Mast (Telecommunication) .

N >
Squirrels |

Trading
Estate

Sloping masonry

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

Hayes and Harlington Station

Station Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services

Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Hayes
Planning Application Ref: Scale
10057/APP/2014/4338 1:2,000
Planning Committee Date
Major Page 84 | March 2015

T™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address PRONTO INDUSTRIAL ESTATE AND 585 - 591 UXBRIDGE ROAD HAYES

Development: Change of use of B1(c) floorspace to provide 12 additional residential units
and associated ancillary works. (Amendment to planning permission ref:
4404/APP/2011/2079, dated 30-03-2012 (Application to replace extant
planning permission ref: 4404/APP/2008/3558, dated 23-03-2009);
Redevelopment of site to provide replacement Class B1(c) light industrial
space and 34 two-bedroom and 9 one-bedroom flats with associated car
parking, landscaping and amenity space).

LBH Ref Nos: 4404/APP/2014/2506

Drawing Nos: Noise Insulation Scheme
Email re sound insulation dated 29-08-14
Economic Viability Assessment (August 2014)
PL-01(S4) Site Plan
PL-100 Site Location Plan
PL-201 Proposed Ground Floor Plan and Elevations Block C
PL-202 Proposed Ground Floor Plan and Elevations Block C
PL-203 Proposed Ground Floor Plan and Elevations Block Az
PL-204 Proposed Ground Floor Plan and Elevations Block E
Design and Access Statement
Report on the Demand for Commercial Space on the Pronto Trading Estate

Date Plans Received: 16/07/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 17/07/2014
1. SUMMARY

The application site currently benefits from planning permission ref: 4404/APP/2011/2079,
dated 30-03-2012 of the redevelopment of the site to provide replacement Class B1(c)
light industrial space and 34 two-bedroom and 9 one-bedroom flats (Application to replace
extant planning permission ref: 4404/APP/2008/3558, dated 23-03-2009).

This application seeks full planning permission to allow the change of use of the B1(c)
floor space to 12 additional residential units (C3) and associated ancillary works.

The proposed change of use from B1(c) floor space to 12 residential units is considered
to be acceptable in principle. The proposal would provide adequate amenity space and
accord with the London Plan (2011) internal floor space standards.

It is considered that the proposed additional units would not have a detrimental impact on
the character of the surrounding area or on the residential amenity of future occupiers of
the site or neighbouring properties.

The proposal complies with Policies AM7, AM14, BE13, BE15, BE19, BE20, BE23, BE24
and LE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and the London Plan Policies (July 2011). It is therefore recommended that planning
permission is approved.

2. RECOMMENDATION

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



1. That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to
grant planning permission subject to the relevant conditions set out below:

A) The Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or other appropriate
legislation to secure:

1. Affordable Housing: A financial contribution of £120,000 towards off-site
affordable housing.

2. Project Management and Monitoring Fee: A contribution equal to 5% of the total
cash contributions is required to ensure the adequate management and
monitoring of the resulting agreement.

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the legal agreement and any
abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed.

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) If the Legal Agreement/s have not been finalised within 3 months, delegated
authority be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to refuse planning
permission for the following reason:

"The applicant has failed to provide measures to mitigate the impacts of the
development through enhancements to services and the environment necessary
as a consequence of demands created by the proposed development in respect of
affordable housing. The proposal therefore conflicts with Policy R17 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies'.

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers, subject to the
completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

F) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed subject
to any changes negotiated by the Head of Planning and Enforcement prior to
issuing the decision:

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans,

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



PL-01(S4) Site Plan

PL-100 Site Location Plan

PL-201 Proposed Ground Floor Plan and Elevations Block C
PL-202 Proposed Ground Floor Plan and Elevations Block D
PL-203 Proposed Ground Floor Plan and Elevations Block A2
PL-204 Proposed Ground Floor Plan and Elevations Block B

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces,
including details of balconies, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with
the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012)

4 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including demonstration that 20% of all parking spaces are
served by electrical charging points)

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38 and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (July
2011).

5 RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan(s) shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during (or after) construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying, another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a
position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size
and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in
the first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of
the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of
remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990.

6 RES16 Code for Sustainable Homes

The dwelling(s) shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. No development
shall commence until a signed design stage certificate confirming this level has been
received. The design stage certificate shall be retained and made available for inspection
by the Local Planning Authority on request.

The development must be completed in accordance with the principles of the design
stage certificate and the applicant shall ensure that completion stage certificate has been
attained prior to occupancy of each dwelling.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in London Plan (July
2011) Policies 5.1 and 5.3.

7 RES18 Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards. A minimum of one of the units hereby approved shall be
designed and constructed to be fully wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable for
residents who are wheelchair users, as set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning
Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.

REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2

8 RES22 Parking Allocation

No unit hereby approved shall be occupied until a parking allocation scheme has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
parking shall remain allocated for the use of the units in accordance with the approved
scheme and remain under this allocation for the life of the development.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (July 2011).

9 RES24 Secured by Design

The dwelling(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association
of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be occupied until accreditation has
been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

10 RES17 Sound Insulation

Development shall not begin until a scheme for protecting the proposed development from
road traffic noise has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. All works which form part of the scheme shall be fully implemented before the
development is occupied and thereafter shall be retained and maintained in good working
order for so long as the building remains in use.

REASON

To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed development is not adversely
affected by (road traffic) (rail traffic) (air traffic) (other) noise in accordance with policy
OES5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (July 2011) Policy 7.15.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



11 NONSC High Level Windows

All windows indicated to be high level windows on the approved plans shall be positioned
so that the bottom sill is a minimum of 1.7m above final floor levels.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
LE4 Loss of existing industrial floorspace or land outside designated
Industrial and Business Areas
HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006
LPP 3.11 (2011) Affordable housing targets
LPP 3.12 (2011) Negotiating affordable housing (in) on individual private
residential and mixed-use schemes
LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
3 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

4 143 Keeping Highways and Pavements free from mud etc

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the pavement or public
highway. You are further advised that failure to take appropriate steps to avoid spillage or
adequately clear it away could result in action being taken under the Highways Act 1980.

5 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

6

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Mayor's and Hillingdons Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The
actual Community Infrastructure Levy will be calculated at the time your development is
first permitted and a separate liability notice will be issued by the Local Planning Authority.
Should you require further information please refer to the Council's Website
www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738"

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the southern side of Uxbridge Road, Hayes. 593-595
Uxbridge Road is located to the west of the site with 583 Uxbridge Road to the east. At the
rear of the site, to the east, is Rosedale Park and allotment gardens are located to the
south and west.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 91



3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application site currently benefits from planning permission for a mixed residential and
commercial use located within seven blocks (ref: 4404/APP/2011/2079) (Application to
replace extant planning permission ref: 4404/APP/2008/3558, dated 23-03-2009). Blocks
A2, C and D comprise of B1(c) floor space on the ground floors and residential units on the
upper floors, whilst Block B solely provides B1(c) floor space. Blocks A1, E and F are for
residential use only.

This current application seeks to vary the previous planning permission to allow for the
change of use of the B1(c) floor space in Blocks A2, B, C and D to 12 additional residential
units (C3), along with associated ancillary works.

There would be no change to Blocks A1, E and F.
3.3 Relevant Planning History

4404/APP/2008/3558 Pronto Industrial Estate And 585 - 591 Uxbridge Road Hayes

Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of site to provide replacement Class B1(c) li
industrial space and 34 two-bedroom and 9 one- bedroom flats with associated car parking,
landscaping and amenity space.

Decision: 23-03-2009  Approved

4404/APP/2011/2079 Pronto Industrial Estate And 585 - 591 Uxbridge Road Hayes

Application to replace an extant planning permission ref: 4404/APP/2008/3558 dated 23/03/200
Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of site to provide replacement Class B1(c) li
industrial space and 34 two-bedroom and 9 one-bedroom flats with associated car parking,
landscaping and amenity space.

Decision: 14-02-2012  Approved

4404/APP/2013/1650 Pronto Industrial Estate And 585 - 591 Uxbridge Road Hayes

Part 2 Part 3 storey building to be used for light industrial (Use Class B1(c)) purposes (revised
design of Block B approved in 4404/APP/2011/2079).

Decision: 17-06-2014  Approved

4404/PRC/2014/18 Pronto Industrial Estate And 585 - 591 Uxbridge Road Hayes

Change of use of B1(c) floor space into 12 residential units (C3)

Decision: 17-06-2014 NO

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Planning permission for Class B1(c) light industrial space and 34 two-bedroom and 9 one-
bedroom flats was granted in March 2012 under planning application ref:
4404/APP/2011/2079. This permission replaced a previous planning permission (ref:
4404/APP/2008/3558), granted in March 2009, for the same development. The current
approved 43 unit scheme and the proposed 12 unit scheme would result in a total of 55
residential units on the site.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 92



4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.
LE4 Loss of existing industrial floorspace or land outside designated Industrial and

Business Areas

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.11 (2011) Affordable housing targets

LPP 3.12 (2011) Negotiating affordable housing (in) on individual private residential and
mixed-use schemes

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 2nd September 2014

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 20 local owners/occupiers and a site notice was displayed. No
objections have been received.

One letter of support has been received, making the following comments:

i) commercial developments should not be among residential properties

ii) there is a need for housing

iii) there should be tree screening to prevent overlooking to neighbouring property

NATS:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 93



The proposed development has been examined from a technical safeguarding aspect and does not
conflict with our safeguarding criteria. Accordingly, NATS (En Route) Public Limited Company
("NERL") has no safeguarding objection to the proposal.

THL:

The site is on Uxbridge Road which is part of the Strategic Road Network. TfL request that 20% of
the residential parking has active electric charging points and a further 20% have passive charging
points in order to comply with London Plan standards. TfL request that cycle parking is provided in
conformity with London Plan standards and is located within the curtilage of the buildings. Subject to
the above being addressed, TfL have no objections to the application.

Internal Consultees

Access Officer:

No objection; a condition to be applied requiring a minimum of one unit to be designed and fitted to
the specifications prescribed in our Accessible Hilingdon SPD. The usual Lifetime Homes
Standards Condition should also be attached to any approval notice.

Environmental Protection Unit:
Following a request for additional information in regards to noise and sound insulation and the
submission of a Noise Insulation Scheme, there is no objection to the proposal.

Highways:

Further to reviewing the above, it is considered that the traffic generation associated with the
proposed residential apartments would not have a material impact along the adjacent highway,
above that of the extant B1(c) uses at the site. In addition, it is noted that car parking will be allocated
at 1 space per apartment and cycle parking at 1.2 spaces per apartment, which is considered
acceptable to serve the proposals. In terms of the layout of the site, this has been agreed under the
extant planning consent.

As a result, an objection is not raised in relation to the highway and transportation aspects of the
proposals.

Section 106 Officer:
Following discussions with the applicant, a financial contribution of £120,000 towards off-site
affordable housing is considered acceptable and agreed in principle.

Trees/Landscape Officer:

Site description:

- The site lies within a residential area on the south side of Uxbridge Road. Formerly used as a
transport depot the site is currently being developed in accordance with planning approval ref.
2011/2079 and 2013/1650 for a mixed use development.

Landscape Planning designations:
- The development proposals include approved layout and landscape proposals.

Landscape constraints/opportunities:
- See above

PROPOSAL.:
The proposal is to change the use of the B1(c) floor space to provide 12 additional residential units

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 94



and associated ancillary works.

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS:
Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

- According to the Design & Access Statement (3.6) 'it is not proposed to alter the scale, or footprint
or position of the approved buildings....minor changes are proposed to the site layout and are limited
to the provision of patios/terraces, landscaping and small alterations to provide an improved parking
arrangement.’

- If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to ensure
that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the surrounding
natural and built environment.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
No objection, subject to the above observations and COM9 (parts 1, 2, 4, 5 and 6).

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Policy LE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that proposals involving the loss of existing industrial floor space outside of
designated industrial and business areas will normally only be permitted if:

i) the existing use seriously affects amenity, through disturbance to neighbours, visual
intrusion or an adverse impact in the character of an area; or

ii) the site is unsuitable for industrial redevelopment because of the size, shape, location or
lack of vehicular access; or

i) there is no realistic prospect of the land being used for industrial and warehousing
purposes in the future; or

iv) they are in accordance with the Council's regeneration policies for an area.

In order to comply with Policy LE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012), the applicant is required to demonstrate that there have been
sufficient attempts to market the B1(c) units and to provide an assessment of current
supply and demand for commercial units in the area.

The applicant has submitted a report which demonstrates that there have been numerous
attempts to market the B1(c) commercial units since October 2011, which have been
unsuccessful. Although there has been some initial interest from potential occupiers, these
have not been pursued due to concerns over potential conflicts between the commercial
and residential uses on the site, particularly for the buildings with commercial on the
ground floor and residential above.

The report also demonstrates that there are a large number of commercial B1(c) units
available to rent within the local area. These units include both older stock
historic/redundant buildings and newly refurbished/purpose built commercial spaces.
These units are still available on the open market due to the lack of demand.

Further there have been significant changes in planning policy since the original grant of
permission. The National Planning Policy Framework makes clear at paragraph 22 that
'planning policies should avoid the long term protection of sites allocated for employment
use where there is no reasonable prospect of a site being used for that purpose. Land
allocations should be regularly reviewed. Where there is no reasonable prospect of a site

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 95



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

being used for the allocated employment use, applications for alternative uses of land or
buildings should be treated on their merits having regard to market signals and the relative
need for different land uses to support sustainable local communities'.

In this case the applicant has demonstrated that there is no reasonable prospect of the
light industrial units being let and the National Planning Policy Framework requires the
consideration of different land uses to support sustainable communities. The provision of
additional housing to meet housing objectives is therefore consistent with the National
Planning Policy Framework.

Therefore, subject to compliance with the relevant policies of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), there is no objection in principle to the
change of use of the B1(c) floor space into 12 residential units (C3).

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

NATS raises no objection to the proposal in regards to airport safeguarding.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) require developments to harmonise with the existing street scene or
other features in the area and ensure that oversized and badly located additions are
avoided.

Both the original planning application (ref: 4404/APP/2008/3558) and the replacement
planning application (ref: 4404/APP/2011/2079) considered the impact of the proposed
mixed commercial and residential development on the character and appearance of the
area. The majority of the site is located behind the rear gardens of 581-603 Uxbridge Road
and so would not be highly visible from the public highway. The design, size, scale and
siting of the proposed blocks were considered to be acceptable.

The current application would not result in any change to the size, scale and siting of the
proposed blocks. As the proposal seeks to change the use of the ground floors of Blocks
A2, C and D from commercial to residential, there have been minor changes to the external
appearance of the blocks, and these are considered to be acceptable. The proposal would
result in the conversion of the solely commercial Block B into residential use, and so the
external appearance of the building would be changed in order to ensure that Block B is in
keeping with the residential appearance of the site.

The proposal is considered to comply with Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
Impact on neighbours

The original planning application (ref: 4404/APP/2008/3558) looked at the impact of the
proposed mixed commercial and residential development on neighbouring properties. It
was considered that the proposed scheme would not have a significantly detrimental
impact on the residential amenity of the neighbouring properties. The current application
would replace the B1(c) floor space with 12 additional residential units. The development

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



would therefore be solely used for residential purposes and so would have less of an
impact on residential amenity of neighbours than the previously approved mixed use
scheme.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

i. External Amenity Space

Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
requires new developments to "provide or maintain external amenity space which is
sufficient to protect the amenity of the occupants of the proposed and surrounding
buildings, and which is useable in terms of its shape and siting." The HDAS 'Residential
Layouts' SPD states that 20sg.m of external amenity space should be provided for one-bed
flats and 25sq.m of external amenity space for two-bed flats.

The amount of external amenity space provided for the previously approved 43 residential
units (1,300sg.m) exceeded the recommended standard set out in the HDAS 'Residential
Layouts' SPD. The current proposal is required to provide an additional 280sg.m of external
amenity space for the 12 residential units. Each of the new residential units would be
provided with private amenity space in the form of balconies, patios and gardens. An
additional 134sq.m of amenity space has been provided as part of the current application.

It is noted that the site neighbours an existing area of public open space, Rosedale Park,
and a pedestrian access between the development and the park was approved as part of
the original planning permission (ref: 4404/APP/2008/3558). There is also a children's play
area and public open space located nearby, on the opposite side of Uxbridge Road.

It is therefore considered that the proposal would provide adequate levels of external
amenity space for the 12 additional residential units without impacting on the amenity
provision of the 43 units originally approved, thereby complying with Policy BE23 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

ii. Internal Space Standards

Policy 3.5 of the London Plan (July 2011) requires dwellings to provide an acceptable
amount of internal floor space; the standard floor space for a one-bed two persons dwelling
is 50sq.m and 70sq.m for a two-bed four persons dwelling. The proposed residential units
would comply with the recommended floor space standards set out in the London Plan.

iii. Daylight/Sunlight/Privacy & Overlooking

Policies BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and HDAS: 'Residential Layouts' seek to ensure that new developments
maintain and allow adequate levels of daylight and sunlight to penetrate into and between
them. Furthermore these policies state that planning permission will not be granted for new
developments which by reason of their siting, bulk and proximity, would result in a
significant loss of residential amenity.

Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
requires the design of new developments to protect the privacy of neighbouring dwellings.
The Council's HDAS: 'Residential Layouts' sets out a minimum of 15m separation distance
between adjoining dwellings. Furthermore, Paragraph 4.12 of the HDAS 'Residential
Layouts' requires a 21m distance separation between habitable rooms to ensure no loss of
privacy would occur.

The original planning application (ref: 4404/APP/2008/3558) considered the layout of the
proposed blocks to be acceptable in regards to their siting, bulk and proximity and would

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 97



maintain adequate levels of daylight/sunlight to residential units. The siting, bulk and
proximity of the six blocks would not be impacted upon by the proposed change of use of
the B1(c) commercial floor space, and so there would be no change to the amount of
sunlight/daylight received by the approved and proposed residential units.

Adequate levels of privacy between the approved residential units were achieved through
the careful siting of high level windows where the separation distances were less than
15m. The converted ground floor units would be provided with high level windows in-line
with those located on the upper floors, in order to ensure adequate levels of privacy are
retained.

Block B was originally solely for commercial use. The proposed scheme would convert this
block into five residential units. In order to ensure the proposal does not create an issue of
overlooking of the rear garden of 593-595 Uxbridge Road from Block B, high level windows
would be introduced on the western elevation of Block B and the existing tree planting
would be retained. Additional tree planting would be added to the eastern site boundary in
order to reduce overlooking of the rear garden of 583 Uxbridge Road from the balconies on
Block B.

It is therefore considered that the proposed change of use of B1(c) commercial floor space
to 12 additional residential units complies with Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms
of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway
or pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the
Council's adopted Car Parking Standards.

The Council's Car Parking Standards require the provision of one parking space per
residential dwelling. A total of 59 parking spaces would be provided on site and would
include disabled and visitor parking spaces. It is proposed that the parking spaces would
be allocated to each residential unit.

Electric vehicle charging points should be provided in accordance with the standards set
out in the London Plan (July 2011).

The scheme is also required to provide one cycle parking space to each residential unit. 69
cycle spaces would be provided within 8 covered and secure cycle stores located around
the site.

The Council's Highways Engineer raises no objection to the proposal.

It is considered that the proposed scheme would provide adequate provision of car and
cycle parking for both the previously approved and the proposed residential dwellings, in
compliance with the standards set out in Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Access into and within the site would remain as previously approved. The amount of traffic
generated by sole residential use is likely to be slightly lower than the amount of traffic
generated by a mixed use development.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 98



7.11 Urban design, access and security

Urban Design:
See Section 7.07 of this report.

Access:
There would be no change to the previously approved access into the site.

Security:
The proposal would need to comply with the principles of Secure by Design. This can be
dealt with by way of a Secure by Design condition on any consent granted.

7.12 Disabled access

The Council's Access Officer considers the proposal to be acceptable, provided the
proposed units comply with the Lifetime Homes standards. This can be secured by way of
a Lifetime Homes condition on any consent granted.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Affordable Housing

London Plan (2011) Policies 3.11 and 3.12 require developments to provide 35% affordable
housing on-site, taking into account individual circumstances including development
viability.

The original planning application (ref: 4404/APP/2008/3558) was supported by a financial
viability assessment demonstrating that it was not feasible to provide any affordable
housing within the redevelopment. At the time of the 2012 permission (ref:
4404/APP/2011/2079) it was considered that there had not been significant changes in the
economic situation since the original permission was granted, and that the cost modelling
previously undertaken would remain valid. As such, the planning application (ref:
4404/APP/2011/2079) was approved without requiring affordable housing provision.

The applicant has provided a financial viability assessment as part of this application in
order to demonstrate the feasibility of providing on-site affordable housing. The report was
prepared in accordance with the relevant guidance and methodologies and has been
validated by an independent consultant for the Council. The outcome of this report was that
it is not feasible for the development to provide any affordable housing units on the site.

Notwithstanding the viability report, there have been extensive discussions between
officers and the applicant in relation to the specific circumstances of this proposal. As a
result, it has been agreed with the applicant that they will provide a financial contribution of
£120,000 towards off-site affordable housing. This can be secured by way of a Section 106
Legal Agreement. Therefore, although there will no affordable housing provided on site, it is
considered that the financial contribution towards off-site affordable housing would be
acceptable in accordance with London Plan (2011) Policies 3.11 and 3.12.

Technically a valid financial viability assessment has been submitted and the development
is not viable. However, because of the historical background to this application, it could be
argued that the Three Dragons Toolkit was not designed for the scenario that applies on
this case. A lengthy negotiation therefore occurred to achieve a meaningful off-site
contribution. The sum agreed would equate to two off-site units. Given the fallback position
that exists and the length of negotiations to reach the outcome of the agreed contribution, it
is not considered that a higher contribution could be negotiated.
7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99



7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

seeks to retain and utilise topographical and landscape features of merit and provide new
planting and landscaping when appropriate.

The landscaping for the mixed residential and commercial development was considered
acceptable under the previously approved applications (refs: 4404/APP/2008/3558 and
4404/APP/2011/2079). The proposed scheme would convert the B1(c) commercial floor
space into 12 residential units, and so there would be some changes to the landscaping in
order to reflect the full residential use of the site. Additional landscaping would be provided
around Blocks B, C and D to increase residential amenity and to soften the appearance of
the buildings.

The Council's Trees/Landscape Officer raises no objection to the proposed scheme
subject to a suitable landscaping condition on any consent granted.

The proposed scheme complies with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012.
Sustainable waste management

The approved planning permission (ref: 4404/APP/2011/2079) provided twenty refuse and
recycling bins within five bin stores located around the site. The proposal would retain the
approved amount of refuse storage and is considered to be acceptable.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

The approved planning permission (ref: 4404/APP/2011/2079) was considered to satisfy
the requirements of the various London Plan policies relating to renewable energy and
sustainability. As there have been no material changes in planning policy since the above
planning permission was granted, it is considered that the proposed scheme would be
acceptable in terms of renewable energy and sustainability. A condition shall be added to
any consent granted requiring the proposed residential units to achieve Level 4 of the Code
for Sustainable Homes.

Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site does not lie within a designated flood risk zone. Accordingly, the consideration of
flood risk is not relevant to the current proposal.

The approved planning permission (ref: 4404/APP/2011/2079) for the mixed residential and
commercial development was considered acceptable in terms of sustainable drainage. It is
considered that the proposed change of use of the B1(C) commercial floor space to
residential would not result in significant drainage issues that cannot be dealt with by
sustainable drainage measures.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

No objections were recieved during the public consultation. One letter of support has been
received.
Planning obligations

The proposed scheme would result in the conversion of existing B1(c) floor space to 12
additional residential units and so would be Mayoral CIL Liable. The London Borough of
Hillingdon falls within Charging Zone 2 of the Mayoral CIL which requires a flat rate fee of
£35 per square metre for each net additional square metre added to the site as part of the
development.

The proposal would also be liable under the London Borough of Hillingdon's Community

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 100



Infrastructure Levy (CIL), which was introduced in August 2014. The charging schedule
requires a fee of £95 per square metre for residential developments.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
7.22 Other Issues

None

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 101



Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
None

10. CONCLUSION

The application site currently benefits from planning permission ref: 4404/APP/2011/2079,
dated 30-03-2012 of the redevelopment of the site to provide replacement Class B1(c) light
industrial space and 34 two-bedroom and 9 one-bedroom flats (Application to replace
extant planning permission ref: 4404/APP/2008/3558, dated 23-03-2009).

This application seeks full planning permission to allow the change of use of the B1(c) floor
space to 12 additional residential units (C3) and associated ancillary works.

The proposed change of use from B1(c) floor space to 12 residential units is considered to
be acceptable in principle. The proposal would provide adequate amenity space and
accord with the London Plan (2011) internal floor space standards.

It is considered that the proposed additional units would not have a detrimental impact on
the character of the surrounding area or on the residential amenity of future occupiers of
the site or neighbouring properties.

The proposal complies with Policies AM7, AM14, BE13, BE15, BE19, BE20, BE23, BE24
and LE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
the London Plan Policies (July 2011). It is therefore recommended that planning permission
is approved.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Contact Officer: Katherine Mills Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 102



Putting

Play Area

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

Pronto Industrial Estate
& 585 - 591Uxbridge Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Hayes Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale
4404/APP/2014/2506 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
Major Page 103| March 2015 | 4} | INGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 104



Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 1 NOBEL DRIVE HARLINGTON

Development: Conversion and extension of existing office building to form a 200 bedroom
hotel with banqueting suite, conference facilities, and rooftop restaurant,
including a seven-storey extension to rear, a three storey addition at roof level
and single-storey side extension, together with the creation of a new vehicle
access, and alterations to car parking and landscaping.

LBH Ref Nos: 46214/APP/2014/2827

Drawing Nos: 01-Location Plan
02-Ex Site Plan
03-Ex GF plan
04-Ex FF plan
05-Ex SF plan
06-Ex Third flr plan
07-Ex Roof plan
08-Ex South and East Elevation
09-Ex North and West Elevations
10-Ex Sections A-A and B-B
Aether_AQ_assessment_NobelDr_Hillingdon_July14_Fir
Appendices Ato C
Appendix D
Bus-tracking
Car-tracking
DESIGN & ACCESS STATEMENT B
GEA-Ground Contamination Report
Heathrow Market Report - July 201¢
Heathrow Top Energy statement
Heathrow Top Hotel - PLanning Statement 08081+«
Interim Travel Plan - Nobel Drive Heathrow 26 Jun
Refuse vehicle-tracking
Service vehicle-tracking
_AB Heritage-Archeaology Report-JUL 2014_FINA
ae1449-01a
ae1449-02deck-04-prop first flr plan
PLO2B
PLO3A
PLO4A
PLO5A
PLOBA
PLO7A
PLOSA
PLO9A
PL10A
PL11A
PL12A
PL13A
PL14A
CHP Calcs sheet

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 105



HT energy statement - Addendum 1 & 2

Date Plans Received: 08/08/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 19/02/2015
Date Application Valid: 03/09/2014 08/08/2014

23/02/2015
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the change of use of the existing building
from office (Use Class B1(a)) to a Hotel (Use Class C1) including banqueting, restaurant
and conference facilities, including a seven-storey 'L-shaped' extension to the rear, a
three-storey extension at roof level of the existing building and a single storey extension to
the western side of the existing building.

Given the site's context the scheme raises no adverse amenity issues to residential
neighbours nor does the new building's massing and outlook prejudice the existing or
proposed developments on the adjacent sites. The car parking provision and highway
access arrangements are considered consistent with planning policy and acceptable
including the arrangements for service delivery and guest drop off/collection.

The height of the proposal is consistent with the surrounding development and in visual
appearance terms the treatment of the elevations is considered appropriate and the
proposed landscaping to street adequate.

In summary the scheme, subject to appropriate conditions and planning obligations, is
considered to comply with relevant London Plan and Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 and Part
2 policies. The GLA has raised several issues in their Stage 1 comments relating to
design and landscaping, inclusive access, renewable energy, local training, transport and
parking.

It is anticipated that these matters have either been resolved or can be resolved in the lead
up to and during the referral process, but delegated powers are sought to determine the
application as appropriate following Stage 2 considerations by the Mayor.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to
grant planning permission subject to the relevant conditions set out below:

A) That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or other appropriate
legislation to secure:

1. Highways: to secure all necessary works (including new access points and
relocation or removal of on-street parking bays including associated works) and

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 106



the provision of a Travel Plan (including £20,000.00 Bond), including Sustainable
Transport Measures (such as a hopper bus service), and a Construction Logistics
Plan and a Delivery & Service Plan.

2. Construction Training: either a financial contribution, or an in-kind scheme
delivered during the construction phase of the development, should be secured
(in either event the 'obligation’' should be delivered equal to the formula of £2,500
for every £1 million build cost plus £9600 Coordinator Costs).

3. Air Quality: in line with the SPD and given the site is located in an air quality
management area then a contribution in the sum of £25,000.

4. Hospitality Training
5. An Employment Training Strategy

6. Carbon Fund offsite contribution of £12,600.00 (@£60/tCO2 for 30years) to offset
against the shortfall (which equates to 7 tonnes of carbon per year)

7. Project Management and Monitoring Fee: a financial contribution equal to 5% of
the total cash contributions towards the management and monitoring of the
resulting agreement.

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Legal Agreement and any
abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed.

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and the
S106 legal agreement has not been finalised before 16/03/2015, or such other date
as agreed by the Head of Planning and Enforcement delegated authority be given
to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to refuse planning permission for the
following reason:

'The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the improvement of
services and the environment as a consequence of demands created by the
proposed development (in respect of construction training, off site highways
impacts, carbon savings as well as air quality). The proposal therefore conflicts
with Policies R17, AM7 and OE1 of the adopted Local Plan and the Council's
Planning Obligations SPD and Air Quality SPG.’

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers, subject to the
completion of the legal agreement under CIL Regulations and other appropriate
powers with the applicant.

F) That the applicant shall pay the required levy on the additional floorspace
created under the Council's Community Infrastructure Levy.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 107



G) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COoM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers PL14A, PL13A,
PL12A, PL11A, PL10A, PLO9A, PLO8A, PIO7A, PLO6A, PLO5A, PLO4A, PLO3A, PLO2B,
ae1449-01a and ae1449-02deck-04-prop and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for
as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:
Heathrow Top Hotel - Planning Statement 080814,

GEA-Ground Contamination Report,

Design & Access Statement Rev.B.

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

4 NONSC Facilities for People with Disabilities

The hotel use hereby approved shall not commence until the development has been
provided with a layout and facilities which meet the requirements set out in BS 8300:2009
(Code of Practice on Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of
disabled people), including:-

a. the development shall be Disability Discrimination Act compliant ensuring that step and
ramp free access are provided within the primary access areas and landscaped amenity
spaces;

b. sufficient numbers of lifts able to accommodate wheelchair users;

c. 10% of all rooms as a percentage of the total number of bedrooms should be
accessible by disabled users with:

i. 5% of these rooms being fully accessible from the outset and equipped with all fittings
necessary to facilitate use by people with limited mobility including interconnecting doors
and fully accessible bathrooms;

ii. 5% of the rooms being standard accessible rooms suitable for wheelchair circulation

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 108



and include ensuite wetrooms and interconnecting doors to accommodate for carers of
disabled guests or larger families

d. 5% of all rooms should be standard rooms with interconnecting doors to twin rooms
suitable for families, the elderly and guests with limited mobility

e. 20 ensuite bathrooms to be specified to BS 8300:2009 standard.

The layout and all facilities which form part of the scheme shall be retained and
maintained in good working order for so long as the building remains in use.

REASON

To ensure that London's visitor infrastructure is accessible and welcoming to all sections
of the population, including older and disabled people in accordance with policy AM13 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and policies
3.1, 3.8 and 7.2 of the London Plan (2011).

5 NONSC Air Quality - Energy Provision

Before the development is commenced details of any plant, machinery and fuel burnt, as
part of the energy provision and the location of the flue at the development shall be
submitted to the LPA for approval. This shall include pollutant emission rates at the flue
with or without mitigation technologies. The use of ultra low NOx emission gas-fired CHPs
and boilers is recommended. The development should as a minimum be ‘'air quality
neutral' and demonstrably below the building emissions benchmark, with a low emission
CHP.

REASON:
To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring properties in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

6 NONSC Air Extract System

No air extraction system shall be used on the premises until a scheme for the control of
noise and odour emanating from the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include such combination of measures as
may be approved by the LPA. Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented and
maintained in full compliance with the approved measures.

REASON:
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

7 NONSC Extract Systems

No hot cooking shall take place within the premises until full details, with calculations, of
the proposed fume/ odour extraction system have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority,unless otherwise agreed in writing. The submission
shall include details of:

(i) The extract fan, silencers, anti-vibration mounts, high velocity cowl, correctly sized
carbon

filter and electrostatic precipitator systems and any other items of plant;

(ii) The velocity of air flowing through the cooker hood, the carbon filters, electrostatic
precipitator and at the duct termination;

(iii) The retention time of gases in the carbon filters;

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 109



(iv) A maintenance schedule;

Before commencement of the approved ground floor use, the approved extraction system
shall be installed on site in accordance with the approved details and shall be retained and
maintained thereafter. Any variations thereafter shall be agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of the future occupiers of the development and of occupiers of
adjacent premises in accordance with Policy OE1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012)

8 COM15 Sustainable Water Management

Prior to the commencement of teh development, a scheme for the provision of
sustainable water management shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate how it incorporates sustainable
urban drainage in accordance with the hierarchy set out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan
and will:

i. provide information on all Suds features including the method employed to delay
and control the water discharged from the site and:

a. calculations showing storm period and intensity and volume of storage required to
control surface water and size of features to control that volume.

b. any overland flooding should be shown, with flow paths depths and velocities
identified as well as any hazards, ( safe access and egress must be demonstrated).

C. measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface
waters;

d. how they or temporary measures will be implemented to ensure no increase in flood
risk from commencement of construction.

ii. and demonstrate capacity into the receiving foul sewer network

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
of arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including
appropriate details of Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification,
remediation and timescales for the resolving of issues.

iv. provide details of the body legally responsible for the implementation of the
management and maintenance plan.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

% incorporate water saving measures and equipment.
Vi. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;
Vii. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the

development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 110



To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of
the London Plan (July 2011) and National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and
the Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014). To be handled as close to its source as
possible in compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable Drainage of the London Plan (July
2011), and conserve water supplies in accordance with Policy 5.15 Water use and
supplies of the London Plan (July 2011).

9 NONSC Amplified Music/ Control of site noise rating level

No music and/or other amplified sound from the premises shall be audible inside
surrounding residential premises between 2300 hours and 0700 hours. At all other times,
the rating level of the noise emitted from the site shall be at least 5dB below the existing
background noise level. The noise levels shall be determined at the boundary of the
nearest residential property. The measurements and assessment shall be made in
accordance to the latest British Standard 4142, 'Method for rating industrial noise affecting
mixed residential and industrial areas'.

REASON
In the interests of residential amenity in compliance with Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

10 COomM27 Traffic Arrangements - submission of details

Development shall not begin until details of all traffic arrangements (including where
appropriate carriageways, footways, turning space, safety strips, sight lines at road
junctions, kerb radii, car parking areas and marking out of spaces, loading facilities,
alterations of existing access and means of surfacing) have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved development shall not
be occupied until all such works have been constructed in accordance with the approved
details. Thereafter, the parking areas, sight lines and loading areas must be permanently
retained and used for no other purpose at any time. Disabled parking bays shall be a
minimum of 4.8m long by 3.6m wide, or at least 3.0m wide where two adjacent bays may
share an unloading area.

REASON

To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (July
2011).

1 NONSC Construction Management Strategy (Aircraft Safety)

Development shall not commence until a construction management strategy has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority covering the
application site and any adjoining land which will be used during the construction period.
Such a strategy shall include the following matters:

- details of the area(s) subject to construction activity and the storage of materials and
equipment

- details of cranes and other tall construction equipment (including the details of obstacle
lighting) - Such schemes shall comply with Advice Note 4 'Cranes and Other Construction
Issues'(available at www.aoa.org.uk/operations & safety/safeguarding. asp ).

- details of temporary lighting - Such details shall comply with Advice Note 2 'Lighting Near
Aerodromes' (available at www.aoa.org.uk/operations & safety/safeguarding. asp ).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 111



- height of storage areas for materials or equipment.

The approved strategy (or any variation approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority) shall be implemented for the duration of the construction period.

REASON

To ensure that construction work and construction equipment on the site and adjoining
land does not breach the Obstacle Limitation Surface (OLS) surrounding Heathrow Airport
and endanger aircraft movements and the safe operation of the aerodrome, and; to
ensure the development does not endanger the safe movement of aircraft or the operation
of Heathrow Airport through interference with communication, navigational aids and
surveillance equipment.

12 NONSC Car Parking for guests only

The car parking facilities provided at the hotel shall be used by hotel guests and
conference/ banqueting facilities visitors only and strictly for the duration of their stay at the
hotel. Prior to occupation of the hotel, a car parking management strategy shall be
submitted to demonstrate how this will be managed and to ensure the efficient operation
of the car park, especially at peak demand periods. The approved strategy shall be
implemented as soon as the hotel is brought into use and the strategy shall remain in
place thereafter. Any changes to the strategy shall be agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure suitable parking provision is provided on the site, in accordance with policies
AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (July 2011).

13 COM30 Contaminated Land

(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning
Guidance on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA).
The scheme shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses with
any such requirement specifically and in writing:

(a) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and
provide information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and evaluate
all potential sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all other
identified receptors relevant to the site;

(b) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater
sampling, together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out by
a suitably qualified and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also clearly
identify all risks, limitations and recommendations for remedial measures to make the site
suitable for the proposed use.

(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA
prior to commencement.

(ii) If during development or works contamination not addressed in the submitted
remediation scheme is identified, an addendum to the remediation scheme must be
agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(iii) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 112



verification report submitted to the Council's Environmental Protection Unit before any part
of the development is occupied or brought into use unless the LPA dispenses with any
such requirement specifically and in writing.

(iv) Before any part of the development is occupied, site derived soils and imported soils
shall be independently tested for chemical contamination, and the results of this testing
shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All soils used
for gardens and/or landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination.

REASON

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable
risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

14 NONSC Archaeology

A) No development shall take place until the applicant (or their heirs and successors in
title) has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological investigation in
accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation which has been submitted by the
applicant and approved by the

local planning authority in writing.

B) No development or demolition shall take place other that in accordance with the Written
Scheme of Investigation approved under Part (A).

C) The development shall not be occupied until the site investigation and post investigation
assessment has been completed in accordance with the programme set out in the
Written Scheme of Investigation approved under Part (A), and the provision made for
analysis, publication and dissemination of the results and archive deposition has been
secured.

REASON

Heritage assets of archaeological interest are expected to survive on the site. The
planning authority wishes to secure the provision of appropriate archaeological
investigation, including the publication of results.

15 NONSC Energy Efficiency

Prior to the commencement of development a detailed energy assessment shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The assessment shall clearly set out the baseline energy performance of the
development, and the detailed measures to reduce CO2 emissions in accordance with
the approved energy strategy submitted with the planning application. The assessment
shall provide detailed specifications of the measures and technology set out in outline
energy assessment. In particular, the assessment shall provide full details of the
proposed CHP unit, including inputs and outputs, location and how it connects to the
development. The assessment shall also include full details of any further low or zero
carbon technology including type, specification, and detailed plans and elevations where
appropriate.

Finally, the assessment must include appropriate measuring and monitoring proposals
and how the information will be submitted to the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 113



CO2 reductions are being met.
The development must proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON
To ensure appropriate carbon savings are delivered in accordance with London Plan
Policy 5.2.

16 NONSC Building Height

No building or structure of the development hereby permitted shall exceed 50 metres
AOD.

REASON

Development exceeding this height would penetrate the Obstacle Limitation Surface
(OLS) surrounding Heathrow Airport and endanger aircraft movements and the safe
operation of the aerodrome.

17 COM7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained
as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

18 COM31 Secured by Design

The building shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association
of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No building shall be occupied until accreditation has
been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with policies 7.1 and 7.3 of the London Plan (July 2011).

19 COM9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include:

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 114



2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage (which shall be covered and secure)

2.b Cycle Storage (including secure storage for at least 20 cycles)

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including the provision 83 car parking spaces 64 parking spaces
allocated for the hotel and 19 spaces for the banqueting/ conference rooms, including at
least 8 disabled parking spaces, and demonstration that at least 10 parking spaces are
served by electrical charging points)

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials (including a kerbed access route from Bath Road to the main
entrance of the building and crossover alongside the new vehicular access fronting Nobel
Drive)

2.f External lighting including for the car parking areas

2.g Other structures (such as furniture)

3. Living Walls and Roofs

3.a A scheme for the inclusion of living walls, roofs and screens, in particular at roof level
and at first floor level within the roof terrace. The scheme shall provide details of the types
of living material to be used and the locations and methods of maintenance where
necessary

4. Details of Landscape Maintenance

4.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

4.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

5. Schedule for Implementation

6. Other
6.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
6.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38 and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
policies 5.11 and 5.17 of the London Plan (July 2011).

20 COM10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or
shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the
new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position
to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size and
species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the
first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial
works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 115



groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

21 COM8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

22 NONSC Bird Hazard Management Plan

Development shall not commence until a Bird Hazard Management Plan has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted plan
shall include details of:

- Management of any flat/shallow pitched/green roofs on buildings within the site which

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 116



may be attractive to nesting, roosting and "loafing" birds. The management plan shall
comply with Advice Note 8 'Potential Bird Hazards from Building Design' attached * See
para below for information *

The Bird Hazard Management Plan shall be implemented as approved on completion of
the development and shall remain in force for the life of the building. No subsequent
alterations to the plan are to take place unless first submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

It is necessary to manage the flat roofs in order to minimise its attractiveness to birds
which could endanger the safe movement of aircraft and the operation of Heathrow
Airport.

23 NONSC Fire Evacuation Plan

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved a comprehensive fire
emergency plan that demonstrates how disabled people will be safeguarded from fire and
enabled to evacuate the building shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that adequate facilities are provided for people with disabilities in accordance
with policy AM13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2 of the London Plan (2011).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 117



AM8

BE13
BE15
BE18
BE20
BE21
BE24

BE38

OE1

OE11

OES8

T2
T4

LPP 2.6
LPP 2.7
LPP 2.8
LPP 4.1
LPP 4.5
LPP 5.1
LPP 5.10
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.21
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.4
LPP 5.7
LPP 6.1
LPP 6.10
LPP 6.11

LPP 6.13
LPP 6.5

LPP 6.9
LPP 7.1
LPP 7.13
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.15
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.6

Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management
schemes

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated
land - requirement for ameliorative measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Location of tourist accommodation and conference facilities

Hotels, guest houses and other tourist accommodation - location,
amenity and parking requirements

(2011) Outer London: vision and strategy

(2011) Outer London: economy
(2011) Outer London: Transport
(2011) Developing London's economy
(2011) London's Visitor Infrastructure

(2011) Climate Change Mitigation

(2011) Urban Greening

(2011) Flood risk management

(2011) Sustainable drainage

(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

(2011) Contaminated land

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

(2011) Retrofitting

(2011) Renewable energy

(2011) Strategic Approach

(2011) Walking

(2011) Smoothing Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion and
reducing traffic

(2011) Parking

(2011) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport
infrastructure

(2011) Cycling

(2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities

(2011) Safety, security and resilience to emergency

(2011) Improving air quality

(2011) Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes

(2011) An inclusive environment

(2011) Designing out crime

(2011) Local character

(2011) Architecture

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 118



LPP 8.2 (2011) Planning obligations

3 114C Compliance with Building Regulations Access to and use of
You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:

- The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with

- BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005.

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination Act
1995. The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments. This duty
can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it is
reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance. For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

- The Disability Discrimination Act 1995. Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

- Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements. Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

- Code of practice. Rights of access. Goods, facilities, services and premises. Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002. ISBN 0 11702 860 6. Available to download from
www.drc-gb.org.

- Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you. A guide for
service providers, 2003. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation. For further information
you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804.

4 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction work is subject to control under the Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Act 1993 and the Environmental Protection Act 1990.
You should ensure that the following are complied with:

(i) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
0800 and 1800 on Monday to Friday and between the hours of 0800 and 1300 on
Saturday. No works should be carried out on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays;

(ii) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard 5228, and use "best practicable means" as defined in section 72 of the Control
of Pollution Act 1974;

(iii) Measures should be taken to eliminate the release of dust, odours and other

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 119



emissions caused by the works that may create a public health nuisance. Guidance on
control measures is given in "The control of dust and emissions from construction and
demolition: best practice guidelines”, Greater London Authority, November 2006; and

(iv) No bonfires that create dark smoke or cause nuisance to local residents should be
allowed at any time.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit to seek prior
approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974 if you anticipate any
difficulty in carrying out the works other than within the normal working hours set out
above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises. For further
information and advice, contact the Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02 Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge, Middlesex UB8 1UW (tel. 01895 250155).

5

The written scheme of investigation will need to be prepared and implemented by a
suitably qualified archaeological practice in accordance with English Heritage Greater
London Archaeology guidelines. It must be approved by the planning authority before any
on-site development related activity occurs.

6 128 Food Hygiene

The Council's Commercial Premises Section should be consulted prior to the use of the
premises so as to ensure compliance with the Food Safety Registration Regulations
1990, Hygiene (General) Regulations 1970, The Food Act 1984, The Health and Safety at
Work Act 1974 and any other relevant legislation. Contact: - Commercial Premises
Section, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Telephone 01895
250190).

7 158 Opportunities for Work Experience

The developer is requested to maximise the opportunities to provide high quality work
experience for young people (particularly the 14 - 19 age group) from the London Borough
of Hillingdon, in such areas as bricklaying, plastering, painting and decorating, electrical
installation, carpentry and landscaping in conjunction with the Hillingdon Education and
Business Partnership.

Please contace: Mr Peter Sale, Chief Executive Officer, Hillingdon Training Ltd: contact
details - c/o Hillingdon Training Ltd, Unit A, Eagle Office Centre, The Runway, South
Ruislip, HA4 6SE Tel: 01895 671 976 email: petersale@hillingdontraining.co.uk

8 160 Cranes

Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be required
during its construction. The applicant's attention is drawn to the requirement within the
British Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to
consult the aerodrome before erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome. This is
explained further in Advice Note 4, 'Cranes and Other Construction Issues' (available at
www.aoa.org.uk/publications/safeguarding.asp)

9

The development is close to the aerodrome and the approach to the runway. We draw
attention to the need to carefully design lighting proposals. This is further explained in
Advice Note 2, 'Lighting near Aerodromes' (available at http://www.aoa.org.uk/operation &
safety/safeguarding.htm). Please note that the Air Navigation Order 2005, Article 135
grants the Civil Aviation Authority power to serve notice to extinguish or screen lighting

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 120



which may endanger aircraft.

10

The development is close to the airport and the landscaping which it includes may attract
birds which in turn may create an unacceptable increase in birdstrike hazard. Any such
landscaping should, therefore, be carefully designed to minimise its attractiveness to
hazardous species of birds.

Your attention is drawn to Advice Note 3, 'Potential Bird Hazards: Amenity Landscaping
and Building Design' (available at http://www.aoa.org.uk/operation &
safety/safeguarding.htm).

11

The Bird Hazard Management Plan must ensure that flat/shallow pitched roofs be
constructed to allow access to all areas by foot using permanent fixed access stairs
ladders or similar. The owner/occupier must not allow gulls, to nest, roost or loaf on the
building. Checks must be made weekly or sooner if bird activity dictates, during the
breeding season. Outside of the breeding season gull activity must be monitored and the
roof checked regularly to ensure that gulls do not utilise the roof. Any gulls found nesting;
roosting or loafing must be dispersed by the owner/occupier when detected or when
requested by BAA Airside Operations staff. In some instances it may be necessary to
contact BAA Airside Operations staff before bird dispersal takes place. The
owner/occupier must remove any nests or eggs found on the roof.

The breeding season for gulls typically runs from March to June. The owner/occupier
must obtain the appropriate licences where applicable from Natural England before the
removal of nests and eggs.

12

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Community Infrastructure Levy. The applicant will be liable to pay
the Community Infrastructure Levy on commencement of this development. A separate
liability notice will be issued by the Local Planning Authority, however you are advised that
it is your responsibility to notify the Local Planning Authority of the anticipated
commencement date and any changes in liability through submission of the appropriate
forms.

Should you require further information please refer to the Council's Website
(http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises a roughly rectangular shaped plot located on the north side
of Bath Road in Harlington. The existing four-storey office building on the site sits towards
the southern half of the site, fronting Bath Road and Nobel Drive. The office building has
been vacant since February 2013 and was last occupied by the Border Agency.

The site is bounded to the east by Nobel Drive, which is accessed at both ends via Bath
Road and provides access to both commercial and residential properties. Beyond Nobel
Drive to the east is a large 1960s built single-storey building which is used as a bowling
alley. To the north are three-storey residential properties, beyond which is land falling within

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 121



the Green Belt.

The site is bounded to the west by the 4/5 storey Holiday Inn Hotel, and to the south by the
A4 dual carriageway, beyond which are relatively small scale commercial and industrial
buildings within the Heathrow Airport boundary.

The north side of Bath Road is largely characterised by commercial office buildings and
hotels, and there are several other hotels, including the Ibis, Holiday Inn, Sheraton, Marriott
and Radisson Edwardian, within the vicinity. The southern side of Bath Road is more
characterised by smaller scale commercial and industrial buildings, and large car parks
associated with Heathrow Airport.

The site falls within the developed area as shown on the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Proposals Map. Bath Road is designated as a Strategic Route and open land beyond
the residential properties to the north is designated as Green Belt.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the change of use of the existing building
from office (Use Class B1(a)) to a Hotel (Use Class C1). The proposal seeks to extend and
convert the existing office building into a 200 bed hotel, together with
conference/banqueting facilities (for up to 600 people) at first floor level, a restaurant at roof
level and associated amendments to landscaping and car parking.

Three extensions are proposed to the original building; a seven-storey 'L-shaped' extension
to the rear to provide the conference/banqueting facility at first floor level, with additional
rooms, with undercroft parking; a three-storey extension at roof level of the existing
building, to provide two floors of hotel rooms and one floor for the restaurant; and a single
storey extension to the western side of the existing building to provide the back-of-house
facilities.

Although the main car parking area is to remain some existing parking will be lost, with the
extensions constructed above the existing car parking area. Deliveries and servicing would
take place to the rear of the existing building, with a coach/taxi drop-off area proposed in a
new atrium entrance area between the existing building and the proposed rear extension.
The vehicle access is proposed to the rear of the site, to enable circulation and drop-off
facilities to function whilst the exit would be to Nobel Drive.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
There is no planning history that could be relevant in the determination of this application.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:
AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 122



AM14
AM2

AM7
AM8

BE13
BE15
BE18
BE20
BE21
BE24
BE38

OE1

OE11

OE8

T2
T4

LPP 2.6
LPP 2.7
LPP 2.8
LPP 4.1
LPP 4.5
LPP 5.1
LPP 5.10
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.21
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.4

disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land -
requirement for ameliorative measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Location of tourist accommodation and conference facilities

Hotels, guest houses and other tourist accommodation - location, amenity and
parking requirements

(2011) Outer London: vision and strategy
(2011) Outer London: economy

(2011) Outer London: Transport

(2011) Developing London's economy
(2011) London's Visitor Infrastructure
(2011) Climate Change Mitigation

(2011) Urban Greening

(2011) Flood risk management

(2011) Sustainable drainage

(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
(2011) Contaminated land

(2011) Sustainable design and construction
(2011) Retrofitting

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 123



LPP 5.7 (2011) Renewable energy
LPP 6.1 (2011) Strategic Approach
LPP 6.10 (2011) Walking
LPP 6.11 (2011) Smoothing Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion and reducing traffic
LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking
LPP 6.5 (2011) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport infrastructure
LPP 6.9 (2011) Cycling
LPP 7.1 (2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities
LPP 7.13 (2011) Safety, security and resilience to emergency
LPP 7.14 (2011) Improving air quality
LPP 7.15 (2011) Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes
)
)
)

LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment
LPP 7.3 (2011) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character

LPP 7.6 (2011) Architecture

LPP 8.2 (2011) Planning obligations

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 15th October 2014

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

The scheme was advertised in the local press on 25th September 2014. In addition, 128
neighbouring households, amenity groups, and local businesses were notified of the proposal on
22th September 2014 with the consultation period ending on 13th October 2014. No responses have
been received raising concerns with the proposed development scheme.

NATS

The proposed development has been examined from a technical safeguarding aspect and does not
conflict with our safeguarding criteria. Accordingly, NATS (En Route) Public Limited Company
("NERL") has no safeguarding objection to the proposal.

GLASS

Recommend Archaeological Condition

The report confirms that the planning application lies in an area where heritage assets of
archaeological interest are recorded although the precise nature of remains within the site is
uncertain. The report draws attention to the potential for remains 19th to 20th buildings, including
part of a greyhound track, but | do not consider these to be of significant archaeological interest. The
potential for as yet unrecorded prehistoric (and Roman) buried remains is significant as they would
form part of the extensive Heathrow plateau landscapes which are the justification for the
Archaeological Priority Zone, and notably is only ¢500m from the nationally important site of
Caesar's Camp - an Iron Age hillfort containing a temple.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 124



The National Planning Policy Framework (Section 12)and the London Plan (2011 Policy 7.8)
emphasise that the conservation of archaeological interest is a material consideration in the planning
process. Paragraph 128 of the NPPF says that applicants should submit desk-based assessments,
and where appropriate undertake field evaluation, to describe the significance of heritage assets and
how they would be affected by the proposed development. This information should be supplied to
inform the planning decision. If planning consent is granted paragraph 141 of the NPPF says that
applicants should be required to record and advance understanding of the significance of any
heritage assets to be lost (wholly or in part) and to make this evidence publicly available.

The proposed development is relatively small-scale compared to the mineral extraction and airport
developments which have taken place around Heathrow and remains are likely to have been
damaged by modern redevelopment so the potential for contributing to understanding of landscape-
scale patterns is likely to be comparatively modest although the possibility of individual discoveries of
higher importance cannot be discounted. | note that the proposed development involves a western
ground level extension to the existing building, a raised northern extension and landscaping.
Unfortunately the assessment does not clearly map the extent of proposed groundworks and |
remain doubtful as to whether the northern extension and related landscaping can really be
constructed without significant impact on archaeological remains which may survive beneath the car
park; and therefore whether the proposal for a watching brief would provide adequate mitigation.

On balance | consider development would not cause sufficient harm to justify refusal of planning
permission provided that a condition is applied to require an investigation to be undertaken to
advance understanding. The archaeological interest should be conserved by attaching a condition
as follows:

REASON: Heritage assets of archaeological interest are expected to survive on the site. The
planning authority wishes to secure the provision of appropriate archaeological investigation,
including the publication of results.

Condition

A) No development shall take place until the applicant (or their heirs and successors in title) has
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological investigation in accordance with a
Written Scheme of Investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the
local planning authority in writing.

B) No development or demolition shall take place other that in accordance with the Written Scheme
of Investigation approved under Part (A).

C) The development shall not be occupied until the site investigation and post investigation
assessment has been completed in accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme
of Investigation approved under Part (A), and the provision made for analysis, publication and
dissemination of the results and archive deposition has been secured.

Informative:

The written scheme of investigation will need to be prepared and implemented by a suitably qualified
archaeological practice in accordance with English Heritage Greater London Archaeology guidelines.
It must be approved by the planning authority before any on-site development related activity occurs

Depending upon clarification of the extent and nature of groundworks (which will need to be specified
in the written scheme of investigation referred to above) | envisage that the archaeological fieldwork
would comprise either a watching brief as suggested in the desk-based assessment or an
archaeologically controlled 'strip, map and sample' excavation of the areas of impact.

Heathrow

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 125



The proposed development has been examined from an aerodrome safeguarding perspective and
could conflict with safeguarding criteria unless any planning permission granted is subject to the
conditions detailed below:

Height Limitation on Buildings and Structures
No building or structure of the development hereby permitted shall exceed 50m AOD.

Reason: Development exceeding this height would penetrate the Obstacle Limitation Surface (OLS)
surrounding Heathrow Airport and endanger aircraft movements and the safe operation of the
aerodrome.

Submission of a Bird Hazard Management Plan
Development shall not commence until a Bird Hazard Management Plan has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted plan shall include details of:

- Management of any flat/shallow pitched/green roofs on buildings within the site which may be
attractive to nesting, roosting and "loafing" birds. The management plan shall comply with Advice
Note 8 'Potential Bird Hazards from Building Design' attached * See para below for information *

The Bird Hazard Management Plan shall be implemented as approved on completion of the
development and shall remain in force for the life of the building. No subsequent alterations to the
plan are to take place unless first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: It is necessary to manage the flat roofs in order to minimise its attractiveness to birds
which could endanger the safe movement of aircraft and the operation of Heathrow Airport.

The Bird Hazard Management Plan must ensure that flat/shallow pitched roofs be constructed to
allow access to all areas by foot using permanent fixed access stairs ladders or similar. The
owner/occupier must not allow gulls, to nest, roost or loaf on the building. Checks must be made
weekly or sooner if bird activity dictates, during the breeding season. Outside of the breeding season
gull activity must be monitored and the roof checked regularly to ensure that gulls do not utilise the
roof. Any gulls found nesting; roosting or loafing must be dispersed by the owner/occupier when
detected or when requested by BAA Airside Operations staff. In some instances it may be
necessary to contact BAA Airside Operations staff before bird dispersal takes place. The
owner/occupier must remove any nests or eggs found on the roof.

The breeding season for gulls typically runs from March to June. The owner/occupier must obtain
the appropriate licences where applicable from Natural England before the removal of nests and

eggs.

Submission of a Construction Management Strategy - England

Development shall not commence until a construction management strategy has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority covering the application site and any
adjoining land which will be used during the construction period. Such a strategy shall include the
following matters:

- details of the area(s) subject to construction activity and the

storage of materials and equipment
- details of cranes and other tall construction equipment (including
the details of obstacle lighting) - Such schemes shall comply with Advice Note 4 'Cranes and Other
Construction Issues'(available at www.aoa.org.uk/operations & safety/safeguarding. asp ).
- details of temporary lighting - Such details shall comply with Advice Note 2 'Lighting Near
Aerodromes' (available at www.aoa.org.uk/operations & safety/safeguarding. asp ).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 126



- height of storage areas for materials or equipment..

The approved strategy (or any variation approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority) shall be
implemented for the duration of the construction period.

Reason: To ensure that construction work and construction equipment on the site and adjoining land
does not breach the Obstacle Limitation Surface (OLS) surrounding Heathrow Airport and endanger
aircraft movements and the safe operation of the aerodrome.

And

Reason: To ensure the development does not endanger the safe movement of aircraft or the
operation of Heathrow Airport through interference with communication, navigational aids and
surveillance equipment.

We would also make the following observations:

Lighting

The development is close to the aerodrome and the approach to the runway. We draw attention to
the need to carefully design lighting proposals. This is further explained in Advice Note 2, 'Lighting
near Aerodromes' (available at http://www.aoa.org.uk/operation & safety/safeguarding.htm). Please
note that the Air Navigation Order 2005, Article 135 grants the Civil Aviation Authority power to serve
notice to extinguish or screen lighting which may endanger aircraft.

Landscaping

The development is close to the airport and the landscaping which it includes may attract birds
which in turn may create an unacceptable increase in birdstrike hazard. Any such landscaping
should, therefore, be carefully designed to minimise its attractiveness to hazardous species of birds.
Your attention is drawn to Advice Note 3, 'Potential Bird Hazards: Amenity Landscaping and Building
Design' (available at http://www.aoa.org.uk/operation & safety/safeguarding.htm).

We, therefore, have no aerodrome safeguarding objection to this proposal, provided that the above
conditions are applied to any planning permission.

GLA
The GLA state that London Plan policies on tourism/ leisure, employment, urban design,
inclusive design, sustainable development and transport are relevant to this application.

The application broadly complies with these policies but there are a few issues that must be
addressed, as follows:-

i. Hotel Use and Loss of Office Space: Principle of the development: In summary, the principle of
converting and consolidating the existing office space to provide a hotel use is supported provided
that the new use outweighs any harm it may cause to the loss of office space;

i. Employment and Training: The applicant should confirm and secure as part of the s106
agreement that the scheme will provide apprenticeships and on-the-job training for local young
people;

iii. Urban Design: The applicant should submit a landscaping design identifying pedestrian routes
towards the hotel entrance, reduce the dominance of the vehicular access arrangements along the
eastern frontage of the building and a more refined building line/ facade treatment should be
introduced along the east frontage of the building.

iv. Inclusive design: The applicant should submit an inclusive design statement that ensures the
development complies with inclusive design policy 7.2 of the London Plan. A hotel accessibility plan

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 127



should also be provided and secured as part of a condition.

v. Sustainable development/ energy: Further information is required to confirm that the development
has been modelled under part L 2013 and the efficiency measures proposed. A BRUKL sheet
including efficiency measures alone should be provided. The development should be designed to
allow a connection to a district heating source should one become available in the future. Further
information should be provided on the optimisation of the CHP and the location of the plant room.
Further information is required on the solar PV array area and installed capacity. A scaled roof plan
should also be provided illustrating the proposed installation. Additional measures aimed at achieving
further carbon reductions should also be investigated.

vi. Transport: Electric vehicle charging points should be increased. Short stay cycle parking should
be provided. The submitted interim travel plan should be revised to include a baseline mode spilt and
resubmitted to be secured via s106. The submission of a delivery and servicing plan (DSP) and a
full construction logistics plan (CLP) should be secured by condition. CIL payments should also be
secured.

OFFICER COMMENT: The officer's comments on issues raised by the GLA response are provided
below:

i) Loss of employment land: The stage 1 response raised no issues in principle, but indicated that
Hillingdon Council should, nonetheless, ensure that the potential loss of employment premises is
acceptable in terms of the borough's supply of employment floorspace. This has been considered in
detailed by officers and is addressed within the Principle section of the committee report. In this
instance the loss of employment land is considered acceptable.

i) Employment and Training: The stage 1 response urged the Council to secure apprenticeships
and on-the-job training for local young people. An employment strategy has been secured as part of
the section 106 agreement.

iif) Urban design: The GLA Stage 1 response indicated that the scheme should seek to provide clear
pedestrian routes towards the hotel entrance, reduce the dominance of the vehicular access
arrangements along the eastern frontage of the extended building and provide a more refined
building line/ facade treatment along the east frontage of the building. Following amendments to the
landscaping strategy and to the north eastern facade to provide a continuous consolidated frontage
at ground floor level, officers consider that the amended scheme would address the issues raised.
The one way circulation arrangement under the main body of the northern extension will require an
entry access along Nobel Drive. However, this is a single unidirectional entry point and, provided it is
built with adequate surfacing materials it is not considered to dominate this frontage. A condition is
recommended to that effect.

iv. Inclusive design: The GLA Stage 1 response indicated that the applicant should submit an
inclusive design statement and a hotel accessibility plan. The applicant has submitted an inclusive
design statement in compliance with policy 7.2 of the London Plan and a condition is imposed
requiring the development complies with inclusive design principles.

v. Sustainable development/ energy: The GLA Stage 1 response indicated that further details of the
energy strategy and carbon reduction measures were required. The applicant has submitted these
details and implementation will be secured by way of conditions. The applicant has confirmed that
any shortfall in carbon reductions will be mitigated with a monetary contribution as part of the section
106 agreement.

vi. Transport: The GLA Stage 1 response requested an increase in short stay cycle parking and
electric vehicle charging points and requested that various matters be secured by condition and

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 128



legal agreement. The application has been amended to provide; a) short stay cycle racks at the front
of the hotel entrance, b) to increase provision of electric vehicle charging points from five to ten; and,
c) to provide eight disabled parking bays.

Conditions and S106 obligations meeting the above requirements have been incorporated.

Internal Consultees

Highways Engineer

Site and Transport Network

The site is located at the north-west corner of the junction of Nobel Drive and A4 Bath Road.
Transport for London is the highway authority for the A4. The site has a PTAL rating of 4 (good). The
site is in close proximity to Terminal 1-3, Heathrow Airport. There are pay and display car parking
bays along Nobel Drive adjacent to the site.

Parking

The proposal will result in reduction of the existing from 151 car park spaces to 81 spaces. This
provision approximately corresponds with 66 spaces for the hotel and 19 spaces for the banqueting
suites based on a benchmark standard of 1 space for three bedrooms and 1/50sgm for function
rooms. Furthermore experience from the Ramada Hotel in Long Drive, Ruislip indicates that 1 space
per 5 bedrooms and 40 spaces for banqueting would allow for greater scope for marketing the
banqueting events. This is considered acceptable given the shared use of the car park and can be
agreed through the parking allocation and management plan.

Eight parking bays will be provided for disabled users and four bays with provision for electric vehicle
charging points. In addition, there will be provision for three coach parking bays and taxi parking /
drop-off.

Cycle parking provision for 20 cycles will be provided and meets Council's standards.

The proposals make provision for six motorcycle parking and meets with Hillingdon's Local Plan part
2 standard rate of 1 space per 20 car parking spaces.

Traffic Generation and Impact

When considering the vehicular traffic generation and the impacts of this development, the
Transport Assessment (TA) indicates traffic impact would not be significant and materially less than
the existing use on the site. A total of 39 vehicular trips (arrival and departures) are envisaged during
the morning and evening peak periods. Given the reduction in car parking, the good accessibility of
the site and its proximity to Heathrow Airport, no traffic modelling is considered necessary and the
proposed development could be considered to have an insignificant traffic impact over and above
existing use.

Access and Layout

The site will be served by vehicle accesses off Nobel Drive with a one-way internal traffic circulation.
The preferred arrangement is for entry via the new access on Nobel Drive and exit from the

roundabout at the north of the site. This arrangement will result in no loss of on-steet parking bays

but will require relocation of four on-street car parking bays.

Highway works to alter the splitter island along Nobel Drive adjacent to the roundabout and the
formation of the new site access off Nobel Drive will be required. Vehicular swept paths with 300mm
safety margin will be required to support the detailed design of these works for prior approval by
Hillingdon Council.

Construction Traffic

In case of any permission, a Construction Logistics Plan can be secured by way of a planning
condition or s106 agreement. This should include (but not limited to):

- Construction traffic generation by development;

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 129



- Access routes;

- Contractor parking;

- Deliveries to avoid highway network peak hours and traffic sensitive hours;
- Construction staff travel plan

Travel Plan

The Council's travel plan officer should be consulted to comment on the travel plan. A full travel plan
to take account of any necessary adjustments can be secured and maintained through a planning
condition and/or s106 agreement as appropriate.

Conditions and S106 Obligations

The issues above regarding on-street car parking, motorcycle parking and access layout should be
appropriately covered through planning conditions. The highways/transport obligations listed below
should be covered within the S106 agreement.

1. Access works.

2. Part carriageway and footway resurfacing and associated works along Nobel Drive.

3. Removing/relocating on-street car parking bays, amending parking restrictions and associated
costs.

4. Travel Plan.

5. Car parking allocation and management scheme.

6. Construction Logistics Plan.

7. Refuse and delivery management scheme.

EPU

Conversion and extension of existing office building to form a 200 bedroom hotel with banqueting
suite, conference facilities, and rooftop restaurant, including a seven-storey extension to rear, a
three storey addition at roof level, and single-storey side extension, together with the creation of a
new vehicle access, and alterations to car parking and landscaping.

Due to the proximity of residential premises to the North of the site we would recommend that the
following conditions are attached.

Hours of operation for the restaurant conference and banqueting facilities, up until 11pm may be
suitable as this is when aircraft noise reduces

A Noise management plan to demonstrate how noise from the restaurant and banqueting facilities
will be managed.

N11B Noise affecting residential property

The rating level of noise emitted from the plant and/or machinery hereby approved shall be at least 5
dB below the existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be determined at the nearest
residential property. The measurements and assessment shall be made in accordance with British
Standard 4142 "Method for rating industrial noise affecting mixed residential and industrial areas".

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan.

N12  Air extraction system noise and odour (~ old N12)

No air extraction system shall be used on the premises until a scheme for the control of noise and
odour emanating from the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall include such combination of measures as may be approved by the
LPA. Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full compliance with the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 130



approved measures.

REASON:
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with policy OE1
of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

INF 20 Control of environmental nuisance from construction work (~ Informative 20)

Nuisance from demolition and construction work is subject to control under the Control of Pollution
Act 1974, the Clean Air Act 1993 and the Environmental Protection Act 1990. You should ensure
that the following are complied with:

(i) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of 0800 and
1800 on Monday to Friday and between the hours of 0800 and 1300 on Saturday. No works should
be carried out on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays;

(ii) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British Standard
5228, and use "best practicable means" as defined in section 72 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974
(iii) Measures should be taken to eliminate the release of dust, odours and other emissions caused
by the works that may create a public health nuisance. Guidance on control measures is given in
"The control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition: best practice guidelines”,
Greater London Authority, November 2006; and

(iv) No bonfires that create dark smoke or cause nuisance to local residents should be allowed at
any time.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit to seek prior approval under
Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974 if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out the works
other than within the normal working hours set out above, and by means that would minimise
disturbance to adjoining premises. For further information and advice, contact the Environmental
Protection Unit, 3S/02 Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, Middlesex UB8 1UW (tel. 01895 250155)

Land Contamination
The following information was submitted with the application for air quality:

Air Quality Assessment for the proposed hotel development at 1 Nobel Drive, Bath Road,
H|II|ngdon dated July 2014

The following information was submitted with the application for land contamination:
. Desk Study Report 1 Nobel Drive, Heathrow, Middlesex by GEA Ltd, dated August 2014

Air Quality

The application site is located within the Hillingdon AQMA, declared for Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2). The
air quality assessment was undertaken using DMRB, therefore only considers traffic impacts on the
site, and indicates impact from the airport has been considered as a result of using measured
background data (DEFRA mapped background data for the site was not used as it was considered
to be an over estimate). The assessment was considered to be conservative by the consultants as
the DMRB model output was over predicting compared to monitoring information. At the four
conservative locations considered at the site (i.e. not on the building facade) the NOZ2 levels are all
above 40 mg/m3, and considerably over that at the locations adjacent to the Bath Road.

Based on the limited air quality assessment, it indicates the proposed new use will only have a
negligible impact on on-site receptor locations. No off site sensitive receptors were considered in the
assessment. The assessment indicates the new development will have 83 car parking spaces
(slightly fewer than the existing use) and coach parking. It indicates only a slight increase in trip
generation compared to the current use, based on the assumption that public transport would be
used or nearby car parking would be used as indicated in the Transport Assessment. Pick up and
drop off by taxi at the front of the site is referred to in this document, although it is not clear if these

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 131



were counted in the trip generation. The air quality assessment also refers to a Transport Plan, by
which | assume they mean the Draft Travel Plan in Appendix F which does not appear to have been
provided, as a means of mitigation. The Transport Assessment indicates 4 spaces will have electric
charging points. It is advisable to include a Travel Plan condition on any planning permission given
including having some car or taxi parking spaces with fast electric charging points.

As the development is in and may cause increases in an area already suffering poor air quality the
following are requested:

Section 106
Section 106 obligation up to £25,000 should be sought for contribution to the air quality monitoring
network in the area.

The EU limit value for NO2 at the facade of the building would only need to be met if staff are likely to
live in at the hotel, for example. It is not clear if this is the case. | would also add it should be
considered relevant if cabin crew are to stay at the hotel. The air quality assessment assumes that
the NO2 levels will fall below the limit value on the higher floors. Given the proximity of the site to the
airport, this may not necessarily be the case.

The air quality assessment did not take into consideration the emissions from the on-site CHP and
boilers in the assessment. However, it has considered building emissions in order to determine that
the development is 'air quality neutral’, although this appears to be limited on the assumption of gas
being used on site to provide hot water only. The building emissions benchmark is met based on the
limited assessment, which also indicates they have gone with 'worst-case' because they have
assumed <70 mg/kWh standard, but ultra low NOx boilers may be used. The BREEAM pre-
assessment indicates only two points are being picked up for NOx emissions, therefore it does not
appear ultra low NOx boilers are going to be used. In addition, the Sustainability and Energy
Statement indicates the possible use of an appropriately sized CHP backed by high efficiency gas
fired water heaters. The likely building emission standards are unclear based on the available
information. The following condition is recommended for inclusion on any permission that may be
given to ensure, as a minimum the building emissions benchmark is met and the CHP emission
requirement for air quality neutral is also met.

Air Quality Condition 2 - Details of Energy Provision

Before the development is commenced details of any plant, machinery and fuel burnt, as part of the
energy provision and the location of the flue at the development shall be submitted to the LPA for
approval. This shall include pollutant emission rates at the flue with or without mitigation
technologies. The use of ultra low NOx emission gas-fired CHPs and boilers is recommended. The
development should as a minimum be 'air quality neutral' and demonstrably below the building
emissions benchmark, with a low emission CHP.

REASON:
To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring properties in accordance with policy OE1 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan.

Notes: This condition relates to the operational phase of residential and commercial development
and is intended for the protection of future residents in a designated AQMA and Smoke Control Area.
Advice on the assessment of CHPs is available from EPUK at:
http://www.iagm.co.uk/text/guidance/epuk/chp_guidance.pdf. An area up to a distance of 10 times
the appropriate stack height needs to be assessed. Guidance on air quality neutral is available at:
https://www.london.gov.uk/priorities/planning/consultations/draft-sustainable-design-and-
construction. They should contact Planning Specialists if they have any queries.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 132



Land Contamination Officer

A desk study has been submitted with regard to land contamination. It did not identify any risk to the
site. It does not appear as if the Council were consulted as part of the desk study, although it does
state the site is located on historical worked ground, and former greyhound track. Council records
indicate a landfill at this location although limited ground investigation for the site does not indicate fill
as such. The standard contaminated land condition is recommended for inclusion in any permission
given. The site investigation should be carried out taking into consideration the proposed design of
the extension. In the absence of information about the foundation design and gas protection
measures incorporated into the existing building, it is recommended that ground gas monitoring
forms a part of the investigation. The soils condition is also recommended, and soil testing needs to
be carried out to demonstrate the development is suitable for use. It is advisable the source of the
soil is agreed with the LPA prior to any importing of soil to the site.

Contaminated Land Condition

(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning Guidance
Document on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The scheme
shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses with any such requirement
specifically and in writing:

(@) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and provide
information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and evaluate all potential
sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all other identified receptors relevant to
the site;

(b) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater sampling,
together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out by a suitably qualified
and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also clearly identify all risks, limitations and
recommendations for remedial measures to make the site suitable for the proposed use; and

(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the completion
of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA prior to commencement,
along with details of a watching brief to address undiscovered contamination.

(i) If during development works contamination not addressed in the submitted remediation scheme
is identified, the updated watching brief shall be submitted and an addendum to the remediation
scheme shall be agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(i) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a comprehensive
verification report shall be submitted to the Council's Environmental Protection Unit before any part
of the development is occupied or brought into use unless the LPA dispenses with any such
requirement specifically and in writing.

REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological
systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Condition to minimise risk of contamination from garden and landscaped areas

Before any part of the development is occupied, site derived soils and imported soils shall be
independently tested for chemical contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All soils used for gardens and/or
landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination.

Note: The Environmental Protection Unit (EPU) must be consulted for their advice when using this
condition.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 133



REASON

To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subject to any risks from soil
contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

References:
Hillingdon's Land Contamination Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG)
http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/media/pdf/p/e/land_contamination.pdf

Waste
Hotel
| would estimate the waste arising from the development to be 50000 litres

The client for the building work should ensure that the contractor complies with the Duty of Care
requirements, created by Section 33 and 34 of the Environmental Protection Act.

Conclusion: acceptable.

Accessibility Officer

The site, located adjacent to Heathrow Airport, is rectangular and covers an area of 0.62 Ha, and is
occupied by a substantial 4 storey office building. The proposal is for the conversion of the existing
office building into a hotel comprising 200 bedrooms and a 600 person banqueting/conference
facility.

The design of this development application demonstrates some commitment to the principles of
access and inclusion. The detail provided should be relative to the scale and significance of the
development.

The revised Design & Access Statement is fine and no further changes are needed. However, the
layout of the ensuite bathrooms are not correctly illustrated on plan. A condition should be imposed
requiring that 20 ensuite bathrooms to be specified to BS 8300:2009 are provided.

Conclusion: acceptable, subject to the attachment of appropriate conditions.

Urban design

| have noted these revisions and the application proposal as a whole. | confirm that | do not have any
objection to the scheme on urban design grounds, whilst large, is is considered to be well designed
and not inappropriate in this location.

If you intend to recommend this application for approval, please can you ensure that the following
items are covered by condition:

- all external materials, colours and finishes

- glazing details, including the screens to the atrium and foyer area and projecting windows

- the design of the canopies and fascias to main frontage, principal entrance and at roof level

- roof top garden planting and landscape proposals for the site

- details of boundary enclosures

- details of hand rails and screens to balconies and terraced areas

- location and type of PVs etc if they are to be included

Floodwater

The site is indicated to have some surface water ponding on the site and the redevelopment of the
site should reduce the surface water run off from the site in line with the requirements of the London
Plan of a minimum of 50%. It should also be demonstrated that there is appropriate and sufficient
foul infrastructure to support this redevelopment.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 134



Therefore | request the following condition:

Prior to commencement, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly
demonstrate how it incorporates sustainable urban drainage in accordance with the hierarchy set
out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan and will:

i. provide information on all Suds features including the method employed to delay and
control the water discharged from the site and:

a. calculations showing storm period and intensity and volume of storage required to control
surface water and size of features to control that volume.

b. any overland flooding should be shown, with flow paths depths and velocities identified as well
as any hazards, ( safe access and egress must be demonstrated).

c. measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

d. how they or temporary measures will be implemented to ensure no increase in flood risk from
commencement of construction.

ii. and demonstrate capacity into the receiving foul sewer network

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including appropriate
details of Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification, remediation and timescales for
the resolving of issues.

iv. provide details of the body legally responsible for the implementation of the management
and maintenance plan.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable water
through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

% incorporate water saving measures and equipment.
Vi. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;
Vii. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance with these
details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not increase the
risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1-
Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of the London Plan (July 2011)
and National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and the Planning Practice Guidance (March
2014). To be handled as close to its source as possible in compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable
Drainage of the London Plan (July 2011), and conserve water supplies in accordance with Policy
5.15 Water use and supplies of the London Plan (July 2011).

106 Officer

Description

Conversion and extension of existing office building to form a 200 bedroom hotel with banqueting
suite, conference facilities, and rooftop restaurant, including a seven-storey extension to rear, a
three storey addition at roof level, and single-storey side extension, together with the creation of a
new vehicle access, and alterations to car parking and landscaping.

- 200 bed hotel

-roof top restaurant

- 7 story rear extension

- 3 story addition at roof level
- single story side extension

HEADS OF TERMS
1. Highways Works: S278/S38 for required Highways Works

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 135



2. Construction Training: A financial contribution to the sum of: Training costs: £2500 per £1m build
cost plus Coordinator Costs - £9,600 per phase or an in kind scheme to be provided.

3. Air Quality Monitoring: A financial contribution to the sum of £25,000.

4. Travel Plan: to include £20,000 Bond

5. Employment Training Strategy

6. Hospitality Training

7. Hoppa Bus Provision

8. Project Management & Monitoring Fee: A financial contribution equal to 5% of the total cash
contributions.

Landscape
COMMENTS (Re: Revised D&AS, dated 07/11/2014 and post-application discussions)
- The amended scheme includes the removal of the Yew hedge which defines the boundary of the
surface level car park at the north end of the site. The current proposal is to remove the hedge and
provide a more architectural edge. lllustrations indicate planting at higher levels on terraces and a
roof garden.
- A Landscape Strategy drawing No. AE1449-01, by Anne Evans, dated November 2014, includes a
brief tree assessment and identifies 6No. trees (from a total of 15No.) which are to be removed from
the south and south-east site edges. There are 2No. 'B' grade trees and 4No. 'C' grade trees
identified to be removed. The trees 'to be retained' include 3No. 'A' grade specimens and the rest are
'B' category. There is no objection to the tree (retention /removal) strategy.

Much of the shrubby structural planting along the Bath Road frontage is to be retained with key
areas refreshed with new and enhanced tree and shrub planting.
- The strategy acknowledges the need for the planting and management regime to conform to the
CAA's anti-bird strike guidelines.
- The Landscape Strategy drawing indicates the retention of the hedge and tree planting along the
northern part of the site. As noted above, this detail has now been superseded but will feature new
tree planting and roof top planting clearly illustrated within the D&AS.

Recommendations
No objection subject to conditions COM8, COM9 (parts 1,2,3,4,5 and6) and COM10.

Sustainability Officer

The amended information provided at this stage is satisfactory, although there is a sudden leap in
savings largely as a result of an improved CHP. The information on the CHP, specifications, inputs,
outputs, etc... need to be finalised and information is still required on how it will connect to the site.
To that end, a condition is recommended but | am satisfied at this stage.

There is also a shortfall which equates to 7tonnes per year, which will require an offsite contribution
of £12,600 (@£60/tCO2 for 30years).

Condition
Prior to the commencement of development a detailed energy assessment shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The assessment shall clearly set out the baseline energy performance of the development, and the
detailed measures to reduce CO2 emissions in accordance with the approved energy strategy
submitted with the planning application. The assessment shall provide detailed specifications of the
measures and technology set out in outline energy assessment. In particular, the assessment shall
provide full details of the proposed CHP unit, including inputs and outputs, location and how it
connects to the development. The assessment shall also include full details of any further low or
zero carbon technology including type, specification, and a detailed plans and elevations where
appropriate.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 136



Finally, the assessment must include appropriate measuring and monitoring proposals and how the
information will be submitted to the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate CO2 reductions are
being met.

The development must proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON
To ensure appropriate carbon savings are delivered in accordance with London Plan Policy 5.2.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The proposal seeks to convert and extend the existing office building to provide a 200 bed
hotel with conference/banqueting facilities (for up to 600 people) and a restaurant with a
terrace at roof level.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) supports sustainable economic growth
and sets out a presumption in favour of sustainable development by planning for prosperity,
planning for people and planning for places. The primary objective of development
management is to foster the delivery of sustainable development, and significant weight
should be attached to the benefits of economic and housing growth. The National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) also requires the Council to make the most efficient use of land
by maximising the re-use of previously developed land and the conversion of existing
buildings.

In justifying the loss of office space the applicant has submitted an Office Market Overview
Report prepared by Strutt & Parker (29th July 2014) with a sequential test and sufficient
evidence to demonstrate that the site whilst vacant for a period in excess of 12 months has
been marketed without success. It is also clear from the levels of the deterioration of the
buildings confirmed with the visit to the site that the site has been vacant for approximately
two years although it is noticeable that the site itself has been well secured and is well
maintained.

The extent of the marketing information submitted to the Council as part of this application
is considered genuine and demonstrates that the site is no longer viable or sought for office
related uses. Therefore, the principle of redeveloping these business premises, requiring
the loss of the existing use is acceptable as further compatible employment generating
uses will be provided within the site.

Notwithstanding this, the London Plan 2011 identifies a need for a net increase of 40,000
hotel rooms across London, and accordingly the provision of new visitor facilities is
encouraged by Policy 4.5. The London Vision for Tourism document also identifies a need
for additional hotel accommodation in London, the majority of which would be required by
2016.

The Background Technical Report Tourism Study (January 2007) of the Hillingdon
Development Framework also identifies the Heathrow area as an areas where further
visitor accommodation could be established even though the area is largely constrained
both by competition from other land uses (especially airport related activities) and land use
designations including Green Belt and employment land.

Strategic Policy E2 of the Local Plan Part 1 and Policy T4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) encourage appropriate hotel and conference
facility provision in the borough. In particular, Policy E2 seeks to encourage an increase in

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 137



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

hotel provision, amongst other locations, within the Heathrow perimeter and other
sustainable Locations. Policy T2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) encourages the provision of a range of accommodation and
conference facilities on sites easily accessible from Heathrow airport, provided the
development does not conflict with the aim to maintain and improve the environment.

The present policy framework indicates support for establishing this land use within this
part of the borough. As such, providing site specific issues can be met no objections are
raised to the principle of providing a hotel on this site.

Density of the proposed development

The density matrix under Table 3.2 of the London Plan 2011 is only applicable to residential
uses falling within Class C3. In the case of the proposed scheme incorporating a 200 bed
hotel with conferencing facilities and a restaurant it will be the height and bulk of the
development that will be crucial in determining whether an acceptable design response for
this site and its immediate setting has been achieved.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

English Heritage have confirmed that whilst the site lies in an area where archaeological
remains may be anticipated, they have no objections to the proposed development subject
to an appropriate condition requiring the applicant to secure the implementation of a
programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation.
The Council's Conservation Officer has raised no objection to the proposal.

Airport safeguarding

BAA Safeguarding, National Air Traffic Services (NATS) and Heathrow Airport have been
consulted and confirmed that the proposed development would not conflict with airport
safeguarding criteria subject to conditions.

Impact on the green belt

Policy OLS of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
seeks to protect the Green Belt from nearby developments which may prejudice its visual
amenity. Whilst the proposed extensions to the building would be visible from the Green
Belt to the north, the existing two-storey and three-storey residential properties in
Marlborough Crescent and David Close provide a buffer between this land and the
proposed building. Seen in context with other large buildings along Bath Road, and
Heathrow Airport beyond, it is not considered that the proposed development would have
any significant visual impact on the Green Belt.

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that new development will complement and improve the
character and amenity of the area.

This scheme has been subject to considerable discussion with the applicant and revised
plans have been submitted that are considered to address all the issues raised. The
design of the extensions are appropriate to the site and surrounds as the proposed design,
materials, bulk and massing are proportionate and provide a continuous and harmonious
relationship with the existing building whilst the retention of the gap with the western
boundary and the provision of set backs at roof level will ensure that the scheme integrates
successfully with the surrounding area.

The curved frontage provides a street presence for the conference facilities and
amendments to the scheme ensure that the provision of a continuous but permeable
frontage with glazed aluminium fins alongside the northern section of the Nobel Drive

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 138



frontage will provide an adequate but also effective screening to the undercroft floor car
park, thereby addressing the concerns raised by the Greater London Authority.
Furthermore, the applicant has demonstrated that an acceptable and operational
relationship can be established with the 560 bed hotel scheme allowed (with
ref.38807/APP/2008/3493) at the Airport Bowl site on the opposite side of Nobel Drive.

Accordingly, the Council's Conservation and Urban Design Officer has raised no objection
to the proposal and stated that the building albeit "large" is "well designed and not
inappropriate in this location".

Conditions are recommended to ensure that the details of all external materials, colours
and finishes, glazing details, including the screens to the atrium and foyer area and
projecting windows, the design of the canopies and fascias to main frontage, principal
entrance and at roof level, roof top garden planting and landscape proposals for the site,
details of boundary enclosures details of hand rails and screens to balconies and terraced
areas location and type of PVs etc if they are to be included.

The proposal is therefore considered to be in accordance with Policy BE1 (Built
Environment) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
and Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that new developments do not have a detrimental
impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring occupiers through loss of light,
dominance or loss of privacy.

It is not considered that there would be a material loss of amenity to neighbouring
properties, as the proposed extensions would be sited a sufficient distance away from
adjoining properties. The proposed extensions are not considered to be over-dominant
when viewed in conjunction with the existing building, and the wider context of the site, with
numerous large commercial buildings, and as such, is unlikely to impact on the visual
amenities of neighbouring properties from loss of light, over-dominance or loss of privacy.

The applicant has carried out a daylight and sunlight assessment in order to assess the
impact of the proposed development on its surroundings, particularly in respect of the
Holiday Inn hotel to the west and the residential properties in 1-19 Marlborough Crescent to
the north. The report shows that the proposed development will have a negligible impact on
the residential properties as it would not result in a decrease in the lighting levels below the
recommended percentages of annual daylight or sunlight hours received at these
properties below the limits stated in the BRE Report.

A number of bedroom windows on the eastern side of the Holiday Inn hotel will experience
a material reduction in the levels of daylight but will still receive the recommended
percentage of annual sunlight hours. This is not considered to be an issue given the
transient nature of the hotel residents. As such, the impact of the proposed development
on these properties, in terms of daylight and sunlight, is considered to be acceptable.

Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states permission will not be granted for uses which are likely to become detrimental to the
character or amenities of surrounding properties. Given the nearby neighbouring residential
properties, it is considered that suitable noise conditions should be included on any grant of

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 139



permission to ensure the scheme will not give cause to noise annoyance to surrounding
properties.

The proposed development is considered to be consistent with policies BE20, BE21 and
BE24 of the UDP.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The proposal is for a hotel and there will be no permanent future occupiers. There are no
policies or standards that relate to hotel accommodation.
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The site has a PTAL of 4 (good) with a bus stops just outside the site. There are currently
151 car parking spaces on site for the extant office use. The 200 bed hotel proposal will
reduce these to 83 parking spaces with 64 parking spaces allocated for the hotel and 19
spaces for the banqueting/ conference rooms. Eight parking bays will be provided for
disabled users and ten bays will be provided with electric vehicle charging points. In
addition, there will be provision for one coach parking bay with a further two dedicated
coach drop off points together with taxi parking / drop-off. Six motorcycle bays and 20
covered cycle parking spaces and shower facilities for staff are to be provided. An
additional four short term cycle racks will be provided at the hotel entrance. The access
and circulation arrangements, with a clockwise one way system through the site and under
the main body of the buildings, are considered acceptable.

The applicant has submitted a transport assessment to justify the reduction in parking
spaces provided within the site, which is a relatively limited number of parking spaces. It
argues that, due to the site's high accessibility to public transport, associated with its close
proximity to Heathrow, and the international clientele it would attract, that a vast number of
guests would travel via public transport or coach, rather than by private car, and that the
proposal would generate an insignificant traffic impact over the existing use.

A dedicated shuttle bus would be provided between the hotel and all airport terminals at a
frequency of every 15 minutes throughout the day and every 30 minutes throughout the
evening and night. In addition most hotels along the Bath Road corridor are served by the
Heathrow Airport Hotel Hoppa Bus, which runs regularly between the Hotels and the
Heathrow terminals. The applicant has agreed to link the hotel to the Hoppa Bus and this is
secured via the S106.

Given the site's good public transport links, its close proximity to Heathrow, which would
provide a significant proportion of the hotel's customers, and the proposed measures that
would be taken to encourage the use of sustainable modes of transport, as outlined in the
Transport Assessment and Interim Travel Plan, as well as the provision of a dedicated
shuttle bus, it is considered that the proposed parking is acceptable.

In terms of staff, no car parking facilities would be provided and, as such, staff would be
expected to travel by public transport, bicycle or walk. This part of Bath Road is served by
the London Cycle Network, and the site is in close proximity to several residential areas,
which are within walking distance. In addition 4 public bus routes stop within close
proximity to the site. Showers and changing rooms with lockers would be provided for staff
of the hotel who cycle to work.

The extant permission for a 560 bed hotel scheme allowed at the Airport Bowl on the
opposite side of Nobel Drive proposes to set up Nobel Drive with a shared surface
arrangement between the junction with Bath Road (A4) and the roundabout to the north
west corner of the site, thereby converting this part of Nobel Drive into a 'mews' style

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 140



arrangement with traffic calming measures and a shared surface for cars, cyclists and
pedestrians. This scheme would provide appropriate landscape with hard and soft features
that would enhance the public realm at the main public facade to the hotel.

Whilst, the currently proposed scheme would not compromise the implementation of these
improvements the new vehicular exit to Nobel Drive and the swept paths, in particular for
larger vehicles, indicate that some existing parking bays would need to be relocated or
could be lost. The applicant successfully demonstrated that, with minor alterations to the
splitter island, the affected parking bays can be relocated closer to the roundabout (further
to the north) without any loss of on-street parking.

Notwithstanding this, the records of the Parking Services operating the Pay and Display
Machines in Nobel Drive show that there is not much demand for these parking spaces
and, in this instance, the applicant is satisfied to either; a) secure the works and costs
associated with the relocation of the on-street parking bays; or, b) the works and costs of
their removal, through an appropriate s106 agreement.

The Council's Highway Officer has been consulted on the application and raises no
objection to the scheme, subject to a S106 requirement that a 'hopper bus' service be used
and a travel plan provided, and conditions are included to ensure the access to the building
is kerbed, and that details are submitted to ensure access for refuse vehicles.

As such, it is not considered that the proposed development would have a detrimental
effect on the existing highway in accordance with the aims of Policies AM2 and AM7 of the
Local Plan.

The GLA's concerns have been addressed with increases in the numbers of cycle parking
spaces and electric vehicle charging points.

A condition is imposed requiring that the car parking facilities provided at the hotel shall be
used by hotel staff and guests only and strictly for the duration of their stay.
7.11 Urban design, access and security

In relation to the appearance, layout and scale of the proposal, the proposed building's bulk
and scale is considered appropriate in the context of the Heathrow perimeter and would be
well integrated within the urban pattern of the area. The proposal seeks to increase the
height of the existing building whilst enlarging the building's footprint. However, due to the
design, scale and position of the enlargements the building would retain its prominent
address to Bath Road.

From an urban design point of view, the proposed extensions are considered to be an
improvement with the lower elements presented with curved facade facing north and west
which will contribute to a signature building at an appropriate scale. It is also considered
that the amended continuous curved facade of the building would create a softer and more
sympathetic built edge than the original open finish to the northern corner of the building.

Externally, the extensions have been amended and carefully designed to integrate with the
main building whilst adopting a common system of large expanses of external glazing and
panel rendering.

Accordingly, the proposed appearance, layout and scale of the proposal is considered to
be acceptable.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 141



The Council's Urban Design Officer is supportive of the overall design and quality of the
proposed development and it is anticipated that the building will integrate reasonably well
within its surrounds.

With regard to access arrangements, the main vehicle access is from Nobel Drive around
to the eastern elevation of the building and its vehicle main entrance. A segregated area will
be provided under the body of ten building for vehicles to set down passengers to both
hotel and conference facilities. Hotel guests can access the hotel building by foot through
the route which passes within the front landscaped area and alongside the front parking
area.

7.12 Disabled access

Additional information was requested with regard to level access into the building,
wheelchair access evenly distributed between the proposed elements of the hotel building
and manoeuvring areas within the bathrooms, to allow for wheelchair use.

The applicant has submitted amended plans showing these requirements have been met
and the scheme is therefore considered to comply with the Disability Discrimination Act,
Part M of the Building Regulations, BS8300:2009, BS8300:2009+A1:2010 and
BS.9999:2008.

Subject to an appropriate condition it is considered that the proposal would provide an
inclusive environment for future users in accordance with Policies R16 and AM13 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)and Policies 7.1 and
7.2 of the London Plan.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

There are no requirements for commercial schemes to provide or contribute towards
affordable or special needs housing provision in the borough.
7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of merit and the
provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

The site as it stands is largely devoid of vegetation, albeit there are some trees that will be
required to be removed to enable the development. An accurate site survey has been
submitted with the application which plots trees on to the site, the tree species, and their
quality and spread. None of the trees in the vicinity are protected by a Tree Preservation
Order or by Conservation Area designations. In terms of landscaping, the applicant's
objectives include a restricted redefinition of the existing green buffer fronting Bath Road to
provide a small sitting out area with a sizeable retention of the existing planting, existing
trees and the sloped lawn. The Council's Landscape Officer considers the removal of
these trees is not a constraint on development due to their poor condition and landscape
value.

With regard to the site layout and treatment for roof terraces in terms of planting, security
measures (which include balustrades sufficiently set back from the edges of the building)
and materials the scheme provides an improvement over the existing expanse of hard
standing and boundary treatment with details provided of indicative hard and soft
landscaping. Subject to the relevant planning conditions in respect of landscape
maintenance and revisions/further detail on the planting plan the scheme is considered to
provide a satisfactory landscape arrangement that complies with Policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 142



ECOLOGY:

The site is currently almost entirely given over to hardstanding. In view of this and the
safeguarding measures detailing within the application documents in respect to trees and
shrubs on neighbouring sites it is not considered the scheme will have an adverse impact
on the areas ecology.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

London Plan policies 5.16 and 5.17 requires adequate provision of refuse and recycling
facilities for new development and for their location to be appropriate in terms of enabling
ease of collection from the site. The bin and recycle area includes a 40m3 waste
compactor and is positioned in an enclosed area centrally located to the west of the site
with access for staff with access from the one way system for the refuse collectors.

The level of waste and recycling store provision, its location and means of collection by
refuse vehicles is considered to comply with the Council's requirements. However, the
Council's waste manager recommends that there is daily waste collection and it is
therefore recommended that a condition be imposed to ensure the collection of waste is
carried out at times to avoid impacts on the neighbouring area on a daily baisis. Subject to
such a condition, the scheme is considered satisfactory and complies with the standards
set out in London Plan policies 5.16 and 5.17.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

The applicant has submitted an amended Sustainability Strategy with the application which
shows that a number of measures have been incorporated into the design of the hotel to
reduce its energy demand. Most notable is the extensive external glazed envelope which
would help to maintain a comfortable climate within the site, significantly reducing heating
and cooling needs. In addition, the orientation and massing of the hotel, and the integration
of a centrally located light well, maximises the amount of natural light which can penetrate
the building and also allows natural light to rooms and restaurants located on upper floors,
thus reducing the need for artificial lighting.

The Energy Statement demonstrates that the applicant has investigated the use of a
number of renewable energy sources in order to reduce carbon emissions. A significant
reduction would be achieved through the use of a CHP unit, which would provide heating
and associated electricity for the hotel. A further reduction would be achieved through the
use of photovoltaic panels.

Notwithstanding the above mentioned energy conservation measures, there is also a
shortfall which equates to 7 tonnes of carbon per year below London Plan standards. This
would require an offsite contribution towards a carbon fund of £12,600 (@£60/tCO2 for
30years). The applicant has formally agreed to this contribution, which is to be secured in
the S106 legal agreement.

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site does not fall within a flood zone and no issues relating to flooding have been
identified.

London Plan policies 5.12 and 5.13 require that development proposals should use
sustainable urban drainage systems (SUDS) unless there are good reasons for not doing
so. Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies
(Nov 2012) requires that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does
not increase the risk of flooding. The scheme would need to investigate rainwater
harvesting, including the provision of a ground storage tank, and permeable paving to

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 143



replace the existing large expanse of non permeable hard standing.

Subject to conditions, the proposal is considered to comply with the intentions of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One and Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) in
respect to water management and London Plan policies 5.12 and 5.13.

The Council's Floodwater Management Officer raises no objection to the scheme, subject
to the application of the relevant SUDS and sustainable water management planning
condition.

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

- Air Quality

The site is located within an Air Quality Management Area and, as such, an Air Quality
Assessment has been submitted. In the opinion of the Council's Air Quality Officer a
number of measures have been put forward, such as the shuttle bus system and
dedicated cycle parking, to off-set the impact on air quality. Nonetheless there will still be
an increase in nitrogen dioxide in an area that is already suffering from very poor air quality.

It is therefore considered that the applicant, given the scale of development, should
contribute towards the upkeep and maintenance of a nearby air quality monitoring. A
contribution of £25,000 is suggested to enable continued monitoring at the site. It is
considered that the applicant should also be encouraged to investigate the use of an
electric or alternative fuel bus for the shuttle runs.

- Noise

Given that the proposed building is a hotel, the Council's Noise Officer has confirmed that
internal noise levels are not an issue. However, should approval be granted a condition to
ensure external noise levels do not exceed 5dB below the background noise level should
be added.

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

No objections have been raised during the public consultation.
7.20 Planning obligations

The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulation 2010 (Regulations issued Pursuant to the
2008 Act) and the NPPF have put three tests on the use of planning obligations into law. It
is unlawful (since 6th April 2010) to request planning obligations that do not meet the
following tests:

i. necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms
ii. directly related to the development, and
iii. fairly and reasonable related in scale and kind to the development

The effect of the Regulations is that the Council must apply the tests much more strictly
and is only to ask for planning obligations that are genuinely necessary and directly related
to a development. Should planning obligations be requested that do not meet the policy
tests the Council would have acted unlawfully and could be subject to a High Court
challenge.

In this instance, on the basis of the NPPF and the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulation 2010, it is only considered reasonable to request contributions towards the
following:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 144



Non-monetary contributions:
. Highways Works S278/S38 to include the costs associated with the re-location or
otherwise removal of the on-street parking in Nobel Drive, including the alterations to the
traffic management order, removal and/ or re-location of parking bays and removal or re-
location of ticket machine(s)

. A full and formal Travel Plan with associated £20,000.00 bond and including Sustainable
Transport Measures (such as a hopper bus service) is required to be submitted and
agreed in writing by the LPA before occupation of the development. Thereafter, the Travel
Plan is required to be reviewed annually to monitor and if required, update and/or amend
the document to the satisfaction of the LPA, in order that its aims and objectives are
achieved.

. A Construction Logistics Plan

. A Delivery & Service Plan.

. A full Employment Training Strategy

. Hospitality Training

Monetary contributions:

. Air Quality: a contribution in the sum of £25,000.00 is sought

. Construction Training: either a contribution equal to the formula (£2,500.00 for every £1m
build cost + £9,600.00 per phase or an in kind scheme) or an in-kind training scheme equal
to the financial contribution delivered during the construction period of the development with
the preference being for an in-kind scheme to be delivered.

. Carbon Fund: offsite contribution of £12,600.00 (@£60/tCO2 for 30years) to offset against
the shortfall (which equates to 7 tonnes of carbon per year)

. Project Management & Monitoring Fee: a contribution equal to 5% of the total cash
contributions secured from the scheme to enable the management and monitoring of the
resulting agreement, is sought.

The proposal would also be liable for the London Borough of Hillingdon CIL and the Mayor
of London's CIL, as the scheme provides extensions in excess of 100m2. This would be
collected by the Council after implementation (if permission were to be granted) and could
be subject to surcharges for failure to assume liability, submit a commencement notice
and late payment, or and indexation in line with the construction costs index.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

There are no enforcement issues with this site.
7.22 Other Issues

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 145



far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
None

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 146



10. CONCLUSION

The principle of the proposed development is considered to be acceptable. The size and
scale of the resulting building is considered to be appropriate for this location, and the
overall building design would enhance the character and appearance of the street scene.
The parking is considered to be acceptable and it is not considered that it would have any
significant detrimental visual impacts on the residential amenity of neighbouring properties.
The proposal complies with relevant UDP and London Plan policies and, as such, approval
is recommended.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (July 2011)

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination

Contact Officer: Tiago Jorge Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 147



ey
Liv

-'l‘iy

€81
6.1

Ash Apartments

Oak Apartments

Rt S,
!

It?_‘ments I:

El Sub Sta

Shelter ~~"----

,,,,,,

Multi-storey Car Park

Bowling Alley

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with

Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

the authority of the Head of Committee

Site Address

1 Nobel Drive

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services

Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Major Page 148

Harlington
Planning Application Ref: Scale
46214/APP/2014/2827 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
March 2015

~NILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address WEST DRAYTON GARDEN VILLAGE PORTERS WAY WEST DRAYTON

Development: Reserved matters (appearance and landscaping) in compliance with
conditions 2 and 3 for Phase 5 (Block A) (82 residential units) of planning
permission ref: 5107/APP/2009/2348, dated 01/10/2010, for the proposed

mixed used redevelopment of the Former NATS Site.

LBH Ref Nos: 5107/APP/2014/4304

Drawing Nos:

1363-D2720-rev06 Porters Way Street Elevation
1363-D2721-rev07 Boulevard Street Elevatior
1363-D2707-rev07 Elevation HH: Proposec
1363-D2706-rev07 Elevation GG: Proposec
1363-D2705-rev07 Elevation FF: Proposec
1363-D2704-rev07 Elevation EE: Proposed
1363-D2703-rev07 Elevation DD: Proposed
1363-D2702-rev08 Elevation CC: Proposed
1363-D2701-rev07 Elevation BB: Proposed
1363-D2700-rev08 Elevation AA: Proposec
1363-D2751-rev06 Detail Elevations z
1363-D2750-rev06 Detail Elevations 1
1363-D2752-rev06 Detail Elevations &
1363-D1100-rev01 Location Plan: Existing
1363-D2100-rev09 Ground Floor Plan: Proposec
1363-D2102-rev09 Second Floor Plan: Proposed
1363-D2104-rev09 Fourth Floor Plan: Proposec
1363-D2301-rev00 Typical Wheelchair Flats 2
1363-D2200-rev00 Typical Lifetime Homes Plans 1
1363-D2201-rev00 Typical Lifetime Homes Plans 2
1363-D2300-rev00 Typical Wheelchair Flats 1
Design and Access Statement Phase 5: Block A
Materials Schedule

INL-E3685-300 Rev M Drainage Strateg)
INL19476-11C Landscape Proposals
INL19476-12D Landscape Proposals
1363-D2103-rev10 Third Floor Plan: Proposec
Landscape Management and Maintenance Plar
Landscape Specification Rev A
1363-D2101-rev10 First Floor Plan: Proposed

Date Plans Received: 08/12/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 08/12/2014
Date Application Valid: 11/12/2014 16/02/2015

1. SUMMARY

10

Outline Planning Permission for the comprehensive, mixed-use re-development of the
former NATS site was granted 1 October 2010 (LBH Ref: No. 5107/APP/2009/2348). The
outline application was for consideration of 'Means of Access', 'Layout' and 'Scale'.

Matters which were reserved were 'Appearance' and 'Landscaping'.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 149



Condition 2 of this consent relates to the approval of Appearance and Landscaping
'Reserved Matters'.

Condition 3 requires the approval of the details of the landscaping and appearance of
individual phases of the development. Condition 3 also describes the extent of the
information required.

This application relates to Phase 5, Block A, the final phase of the Drayton Garden Village
development. It is situated in the south-west corner of West Drayton Garden Village and
fronts onto Porters Way to the south. Phase 4 (Blocks B and C) is located north of the
application site. To the west lies the Parkwest residential scheme, by St George, and the
east boundary fronts onto the main spine road into the estate.

The proposal is for a block of flats comprising 82 units, 85 parking spaces (including
undercroft parking) and the detailed landscaping of the application site. The 82 units would
comprise of:

- 2 studio flats

- 27 one-bed flats

- 6 one-bed wheelchair accessible flats

- 25 two-bed four person flats

- 3 two-bed four person wheelchair accessible flats
- 18 three-bed five person flats

- 1 three-bed five person wheelchair accessible flats

Block A would be part 3 and part 4 storeys. Each unit would be provided with private
amenity space and the block would have a communal garden located on a first floor
podium above the rear parking court.

2. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subiject to the following:

1 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans,

1363-D1100-rev01 Location Plan: Existing
1363-D2100-rev09 Ground Floor Plan: Proposed
1363-D2101-rev10 First Floor Plan: Proposed
1363-D2102-rev09 Second Floor Plan: Proposed
1363-D2103-rev10 Third Floor Plan: Proposed
1363-D2104-rev09 Fourth Floor Plan: Proposed
1363-D2200-rev00 Typical Lifetime Homes Plans 1
1363-D2201-rev00 Typical Lifetime Homes Plans 2
1363-D2300-rev00 Typical Wheelchair Flats 1
1363-D2301-rev00 Typical Wheelchair Flats 2
1363-D2700-rev08 Elevation AA: Proposed
1363-D2701-rev07 Elevation BB: Proposed
1363-D2702-rev08 Elevation CC: Proposed
1363-D2703-rev07 Elevation DD: Proposed
1363-D2704-rev07 Elevation EE: Proposed
1363-D2705-rev07 Elevation FF: Proposed
1363-D2706-rev07 Elevation GG: Proposed
1363-D2707-rev07 Elevation HH: Proposed

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 150



1363-D2720-rev06 Porters Way Street Elevation
1363-D2721-rev07 Boulevard Street Elevation
1363-D2750-rev06 Detail Elevations 1
1363-D2751-rev06 Detail Elevations 2
1363-D2752-rev06 Detail Elevations 3
INL19476-11C Landscape Proposals
INL19476-12D Landscape Proposals
INL-E3685-300 Rev M Drainage Strategy

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

2 RES5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until it has been completed in
accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Materials Schedule
Landscape Management and Maintenance Plan
Landscape Specification Rev A

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policies BE13 and BE38
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AMS8 Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management
schemes

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 151



AM9

AM13

AM14
BE13
BE20
BE21

BE22

BE23
BE24

BE38

H4
H5
OE1

OEbS
OE7

OES8

OE11

LPP 2.6
LPP 2.8
LPP 3.1
LPP 3.3
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 3.6

LPP 3.7
LPP 3.8
LPP 3.9
LPP 3.11
LPP 3.12

LPP 5.1
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.7

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(ii) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

Mix of housing units

Dwellings suitable for large families

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated
land - requirement for ameliorative measures

(2011) Outer London: vision and strategy

(2011) Outer London: Transport

(2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all

(2011) Increasing housing supply

(2011) Optimising housing potential

(2011) Quality and design of housing developments

(2011) Children and young people's play and informal recreation
(strategies) facilities

(2011) Large residential developments

(2011) Housing Choice

(2011) Mixed and Balanced Communities

(2011) Affordable housing targets

(2011) Negotiating affordable housing (in) on individual private
residential and mixed-use schemes

(2011) Climate Change Mitigation

(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

(2011) Renewable energy

~— — S S S S

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 152



LPP 5.10 (2011) Urban Greening
LPP 5.12 (2011) Flood risk management
LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage
LPP 6.1 (2011) Strategic Approach
LPP 6.7 (2011) Better Streets and Surface Transport
LPP 6.10 (2011) Walking
LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking
LPP 7.1 (2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities
LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment
LPP 7.3 (2011) Designing out crime
LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character
LPP 7.5 (2011) Public realm
LPP 7.6 (2011) Architecture
LPP 7.14 (2011) Improving air quality
LPP 7.15 (2011) Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes
3 15 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The wider application site was previously occupied by the National Air Traffic Services
(NATS) as the main air traffic control centre for the southern England and London airports.
Since 2008, the NATS operation has relocated to the new London Area Control Centre at
Swanwick, near Fareham in Hampshire. The application site, measuring some 12.6ha, is
now a major construction site that also includes an increasing number of completed and
newly occupied homes together with an increasingly extensive and well landscaped public
realm.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 153



This Reserved Matters application relates to Phase 5, Block A (82 residential units), the
final phase of the Drayton Garden Village development. It is situated in the south-west
corner of West Drayton Garden Village and fronts onto Porters Way to the south. Phase 4
(Blocks B and C) is located north of the application site. To the west lies the Parkwest
residential scheme, by St George, and the east boundary fronts onto the main spine road
into the estate.

The site is located within a PTAL level of 1b.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Outline Planning Permission for the comprehensive, mixed-use re-development of the
former NATS site was granted 1 October 2010 (LBH Ref: No. 5107/APP/2009/2348).

The Committee has already approved a number of reserved matters applications for sites
within phases 1 and 2. This application seeks approval for the Appearance and
Landscaping of Phase 5, comprising 82 flats located within an apartment block (Block A),
85 parking spaces (including undercroft parking) and the detailed landscaping of the
application site.

Proposed Housing

- 2 studio flats

- 27 one-bed flats

- 6 one-bed wheelchair accessible flats

- 25 two-bed four person flats

- 3 two-bed four person wheelchair accessible flats
- 18 three-bed five person flats

- 1 three-bed five person wheelchair accessible flats

Block A would be part 3 and part 4 storeys.

Materials

i) Facing Brickwork - Hammersmith London Stock (Yellow)
i) Render - White and Grey

i) Roof - Flat roof System

iv) Rainwater goods - UPVC

v) Windows & French Doors - white colour UPVC

vii) Galvanised steel balconies - black

viii) Galvanised metal railings - black

Amenity Space

Each unit would be provided with private amenity space and the block would have a
communal garden located on a first floor podium above the rear parking court. Additional
communal amenity space would be provided within this Phase. Phase 5 (Block A) is
located south-east of Spring Green, one of two primary open spaces on the wider NATS
site, which provides a children's play area.

Car Parking Provision

This Phase would provide 85 parking spaces, of which 10 will be for disabled parking. 5
parking spaces would have electric charging points. 84 cycle spaces would be provided
within 3 cycle stores located on the ground floor of the apartment block. The parking would
be located west of Block A and would be partly located underneath the first floor amenity
podium.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 154



Accessible Housing

All of the residential units would be constructed to Lifetime Homes standards. The original
masterplan required a total of 10% wheelchair accessible units to be provided throughout
the whole of the NATS site, which equates to 78 wheelchair accessible units. 10
wheelchair accessible units would be provided within this part of the site, whilst the
remaining wheelchair accessible units would be provided within other phases. The scheme
for Phase 5 would provide 10 disabled parking spaces.

Site Access
All vehicular and pedestrian access points to the site would be via the permanent on-site
roads and pavements linking Porters Way to the separate areas of the development.

Landscaping

A comprehensive schedule of hard landscaping materials has been provided together with
detailed supporting information in respect of the soft landscape planting. These are of an
acceptable quality and range.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

5107/APP/2009/2348 Former National Air Traffic Services (Nats) Headquarters Porters Wa

Proposed mixed-use redevelopment comprising: 773 dwellings comprising 12no. studios, 152 n
1-bedroom flats, 316no. 2-bedroom flats, 21no. 2-bedroom houses, 23no. 3-bedroom flats, 181t
3-bedroom houses, 59no0. 4-bedroom houses and 9no. 5-bedroom houses; Class D1 Primary
Healthcare facility including room for joint community use (up to 1085sqm gea); Class C2 Nursir
Home (up to 3630sgm gea); Classes A1-A3 Shop units to complement Mulberry Parade (up to
185sgm gea, depending on size of Primary Healthcare facility); Class B1 Business units
including site management office (up to 185sqm gea); Energy Centre (up to 220sgm gea) with
combined heat and power unit; foul water pumping station; associated access roads from Portel
Way (and excluding all access including pedestrian and bicycle access from Rutters Close);
1085 car parking spaces; cycle parking; public open space areas; cycleways and footpaths; anc
landscaping works (Outline Application)

Decision: 01-10-2010  Approved

5107/APP/2014/4424 West Drayton Garden Village Porters Way West Drayton

Details of traffic and car parking arrangements, demolition and construction management plan,
access, energy strategy, Bird Hazard Management Plan, waste storage, security measures,
CCTV, ingress of polluted air, levels, rainwater / grey water recycling, foul and surface water,
construction logistics plan, programme of archaeological work, drainage strategy, Ecological
Mitigation and Management Plan, badger survey, and tree protection, in compliance with
conditions 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 13, 14, 17, 20, 30, 45, 48, 50, 51, 52, 53, 61 relating to phase 5 Bloc
A of planning permission ref:5107/APP/2009/2348 dated 19/11/2009 (Mixed development)

Decision:

5107/APP/2015/18 West Drayton Garden Village Porters Way West Drayton

Details pursuant to condition 58 (contamination) for Phase 5 Block A (82 residential units) of
permission ref: 5107/APP/2009/2348, dated 19/11/2009 (redevelopment of former NATS site to
mixed development including 773 dwellings)

Decision: 05-02-2015  Approved

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 155



Comment on Relevant Planning History

The most relevant planning history for the application site is the Outline Planning
Permission (LBH Ref: 5107/APP/2009/2348 granted 1 October 2010), reserving matters of
Landscaping and Appearance.

Condition 2 of this consent relate to the approval of Appearance and Landscaping
'Reserved Matters' while Condition 3 requires the approval of the details of the landscaping
and appearance of individual phases of the development. Condition 3 also prescribes the
extent of the information required.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1
PT1.EM1
PT1.EM6
PT1.EM8
PT1.EM11
PT1.H1
PT1.H2
PT1.T1

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation
(2012) Flood Risk Management

(2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

(2012) Sustainable Waste Management

(2012) Housing Growth

(2012) Affordable Housing

(2012) Accessible Local Destinations

Part 2 Policies:

AM2

AM7
AM8

AM9

AM13

AM14
BE13

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 156



BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24
BE38

H4
H5
OE1

OE5
OE7
OES8

OE11

LPP 2.6
LPP 2.8
LPP 3.1
LPP 3.3
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 3.6

LPP 3.7
LPP 3.8
LPP 3.9
LPP 3.11
LPP 3.12

LPP 5.1
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.7
LPP 5.10
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 6.1

Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Mix of housing units
Dwellings suitable for large families

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Siting of noise-sensitive developments
Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land -
requirement for ameliorative measures

(2011) Outer London: vision and strategy

(2011) Outer London: Transport

(2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all

(2011) Increasing housing supply

(2011) Optimising housing potential

(2011) Quality and design of housing developments
(2011) Children and young people's play and informal recreation (strategies)
facilities

(2011) Large residential developments

(2011) Housing Choice

(2011) Mixed and Balanced Communities

(2011) Affordable housing targets

(2011) Negotiating affordable housing (in) on individual private residential and
mixed-use schemes

(2011) Climate Change Mitigation

(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
(2011) Sustainable design and construction
(2011) Renewable energy

(2011) Urban Greening

(2011) Flood risk management

(2011) Sustainable drainage

(2011) Strategic Approach

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 157



LPP 6.7 (2011) Better Streets and Surface Transport
LPP 6.10 (2011) Walking

LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking
)

LPP 7.1 (2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities
LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.3 (2011) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character

LPP 7.5 (2011) Public realm

LPP 7.6 (2011) Architecture

LPP 7.14 (2011
LPP 7.15 (2011

Improving air quality

~_— ~— N ~—

Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes
5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 29th January 2015

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees
Consultation letters were sent to 250 local owners/occupiers. No responses were received.

Heathrow Aerodrome Safeguarding:

We have now assessed conditions 2 & 3 (Appearance & Landscaping) for phase 5 of Block A
against safeguarding criteria and can confirm that we have no safeguarding objections and that they
can both be discharged from a Heathrow Airport Ltd point of view.

NATS:

The proposed development has been examined from a technical safeguarding aspect and does not
conflict with our safeguarding criteria. Accordingly, NATS (En Route) Public Limited Company
("NERL") has no safeguarding objection to the proposal.

Internal Consultees

Access Officer:
| have considered the details of this planning application and deem the details to be acceptable from
an accessibility standpoint.

Environmental Protection Unit:
| have no adverse comments as these matters are not relevant to EPU.

Trees/Landscape Officer:

This application relates to Phase 5, Block A, the final phase of the Drayton Garden Village
development. Situated in the south-west corner of West Drayton Garden Village this 1-4 storey
development phase fronts on to Porters Way to the south. To the west lies the Parkwest residential
scheme, by St George, and the east boundary fronts on to the main spine road into the estate.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 158



The Design & Access Statement re-iterates the guiding vision and design concept for the estate
which informed the approved master plan and earlier phases. In addition to the communal areas,
soft landscape buffers have been provided at ground level to all boundaries. While linking the building
to the landscape, the boundary planting is also designed to create a degree of privacy and security,
particularly for those residents in ground floor flats. The landscape principles are described in pages
51-55.

ACD's drawing No. INL19476-11C, Landscape Proposals, details the ground level planting plan
around the building edges. This includes 39No. trees, instant hedges, climbing plants, ornamental
shrubs, bulbs and grasses. Hard landscape proposals (surfacing, boundaries and street furniture)
are specified.

ACD's drawing No.INL19476-12D, Landscape Proposals, specifies the hard and soft landscape
details for the communal space on the podium deck. Amendments to the podium deck details take
into account some issues discussed at a pre-application meeting.

RECOMMENDATION
No objection subject to the provision of supporting documentation in the form of a Landscape
Specification and a Landscape Management/Maintenance Plan.

Officer comments:
A Landscape Specification Rev A and a Landscape Management and Maintenance Plan have been
provided. The Council's Trees/Landscape Officer considers these documents to be acceptable.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The development principle was considered as part of the outline application (LBH Ref.
5107/APP/2009/2348) which the Central and South Planning Committee resolved to grant
on 25th May 2010 and the decision was issued on the 1st October 2010 following the
Mayoral Stage Il approval and completion of the S106 legal agreement.

As stated in the outline application committee report, it is noted in the Council's adopted
Porters Way planning brief SPD 2005 that the previous use of the site was predominantly a
single employment use. However, redevelopment provides a good opportunity to create a
mixed, balanced and sustainable community as embodied in the Sustainable Community
Strategy 2008-2011, the Unitary Development Plan and the emerging Local Development
Framework, along with regional and national government policies.

Given the range of planning policy considerations in the outline application assessment,
including the Hillingdon Employment Land Study (2009), Council's UDP Saved Policies,
H8, the Former NATS site, Porters Way, West Drayton SPD (NATS SPD), London Plan
Policies as well as the Mayors Stage 1 response, the loss of industrial and business land is
considered justified and a mixed use, residential-led redevelopment appropriate and
acceptable in accordance with the NATS SPD and UDP Saved Policies LE2 and LE4
which enable consideration of a change of use of industrial/employment uses.

The current reserved matters application, for Landscaping and Appearance as it relates to
82 residential units is sufficiently consistent with the principles and illustrative information of
the Outline Planning Permission. Therefore the scheme for Phase 5 (Block A) (82
residential units) is considered acceptable in principle.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Residential density can be used as an indicator of the overall character and acceptability of
a proposal. The density of the whole site was considered as part of the outline application

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 159



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

(LBH Ref. No. 5107/APP/2009/2348) which the Central and South Planning Committee
resolved to grant 25th May 2010 and the decision was issued on the 1st October 2010
following the Mayoral Stage Il and completion of the s106.

As part of the outline application for the whole site, the provision of 773 residential units
(2585 habitable rooms) on the 12.59 ha site equates to a density of 61 units per hectare or
205 habitable rooms per hectare.

For the reasons set out in the 25th May 2010 committee report the density remains
acceptable and unchanged, and it is considered to comply with the London Plan.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is not located within a Conservation Area, Area of Special Local Character or
Archaeological Priority Area. There are no Listed Buildings on the site.
Airport safeguarding

BAA and NATS have reviewed the application and raise no objection to the Reserved
Matters application from an airport safeguarding perspective.
Impact on the green belt

The site is not located within or near to the Green Belt.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The requirement to consider the proposal's potential future impact on the character and
appearance of the surrounding area is contained in London Plan Policies, Policy BE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Polices BE13 and
BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). In
addition, Policy BE35 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) requires a high standard of design and providing for an attractive view for sites
adjacent to major rail connections into Central London.

In respect of the NATS SPD, the objectives of the site include, among other things, the
promotion of a high quality scheme reflective of the area's general character as well as
reinforcing local distinctiveness.

Phase 5 (Block A) would provide 82 residential units in the form of flats, with 85 parking
spaces located within a rear parking area, part of which would be undercroft. The Layout
and Means of Access to and around the dwellings and parking areas were considered
acceptable at the outline state. Therefore, consideration is limited to the Appearance and
Landscaping.

As part of the outline planning permission the supporting information included a Design and
Access Statement, Design Coding and 3D perspective drawings, and an Environmental
Statement which included a Townscape and Visual Analysis. These provided an analysis
of the scheme from vantage points around and within the development. lllustrative building
elevation drawings were provided as a suggestion of the future detailed design of buildings
to show how these areas would be framed by buildings in the future. The Council's
Principle Urban Design Officer and the GLA were supportive of the scheme at Outline
stage in respect of its appearance and character and no impacts were identified to
neighbours or the area in general in this regard. Along with details of buildings,
comprehensive information pertaining to hard and soft landscaping for the entire site was
considered at the outline stage by a range of consultees including the Council's
Trees/Landscape Officer.

The proposed materials for the residential blocks would be as follows:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 160



i) Facing Brickwork - Hammersmith London Stock (Yellow)
i) Render - White and Grey

iif) Roof - Flat roof System

iv) Rainwater goods - UPVC

v) Windows & French Doors - white colour UPVC

vii) Galvanised steel balconies - black

viii) Galvanised metal railings - black

These materials, along with the proposed hard surfaces for the parking area, access roads
and footpaths are considered to be acceptable.

Overall, the scheme is considered to result in an acceptable character and appearance to
this part of West Drayton, thereby complying with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Polices BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

This application provides supporting information pertaining to 'Appearance' and
'Landscaping’, and in particular, building elevations and sections, as well as plans of the
hard and soft landscaping arrangements.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

It should be noted that the consideration of potential impacts upon neighbours formed part
of the assessment of the outline application (LBH Ref: 5107/APP/2009/2348) which the
Central and South Planning Committee resolved to grant 25th May 2010 and was
subsequently approved on 1st October 2010 following the Mayoral Stage Il approval and
completion of the S106. Matters considered include the following: construction impacts;
traffic and car parking; noise and general disturbance; overlooking, outlook and
overshadowing.

The reserved matters are consistent with the details and principles considered at the
outline stage, and as such, it is not considered that there is a significant change in impacts
on neighbours as to warrant refusal of this reserved matters application.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The outline application considered living conditions for future occupiers. The London Plan
requires all new developments to provide adequate levels of internal floor areas. It is
considered that the proposed scheme provides adequate floor space for the units.

Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
requires residential developments to provide or maintain sufficient external amenity space
to protect the amenity of residents. The Council's guidelines state that studios and one-bed
flats should be provided with 20sg.m, 25sq.m for two-bed flats and 30sqg.m for three-bed
flats. As such, the proposal would need to provide 1970sq.m of external amenity space.

396sg.m of communal amenity space would be provided on a podium on the first floor,
whilst each individual flat would be provided with private amenity space in the form of
terraces or balconies. Additional communal amenity space would be provided at the rear of
the car parking area and alongside Porters Way. The external amenity space provided
would exceed the required amount and is therefore considered to be acceptable.

New residential developments are required to provide adequate levels of light and privacy,
and should not result in overdominance through their siting and bulk. The scale, location
and height of the proposed dwellings are similar to the scale, location and height approved
at the outline stage. The dwellings have been carefully laid out to ensure that privacy is

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 161



7.10

711

7.12

713

714

maintained, in compliance with the 21m overlooking distance, and adequate levels of light
are provided to habitable rooms and kitchens.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The Council's Highways Engineer and TFL considered traffic and parking impacts along
with means of access for the entire site as part of the original application (ref:
5107/APP/2009/2348). In addition to a transport assessment and travel plan, the outline
application provided drawings detailing access, turning (refuse vehicle swept paths) and
parking (cars, bicycles, car club, motorcycle allowance, 10% accessible parking provision
allowance). Transport was also considered as part of the Environmental Impact
Assessment, particularly in chapters 5, Construction and Phasing, (which contains the
framework Construction Management Plan) and 9, Transport Accessibility and Movement,
of the Environmental Statement. The outline consent imposed appropriately worded
conditions of approval in respect of traffic management, parking numbers and allocation.

Matters relating to access and layout were approved as part of the outline consent. The car
parking locations, road layout and widths as well as access are consistent with the outline
proposal. The proposal would provide 85 parking spaces in total, ten of which would be
disabled parking spaces. It is considered that the amount of car parking spaces provided
would be acceptable for the proposed development.

Urban design, access and security

Issues of access and security were considered as part of the outline planning application.
Secure by Design principles, such as defensible space around the dwellings, visual
surveillance and secure parking areas, were a key component of the original masterplan.

It should be noted that appropriately worded conditions relating to CCTV and security
measures were imposed on the outline permission and are being dealt with through a
concurrent details application.

Disabled access

The proposed dwellings would comply with the Lifetime Homes standards and ten
wheelchair accessible units would be provided, along with ten disabled parking spaces.
The Council's Access Officer considers the proposal to be acceptable in terms of
accessibility.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The proposal seeks permission for reserved matters 'Landscaping' and 'Appearance’.
Accordingly considerations relating to affordable or special needs housing are not relevant
to the application. Planning obligations are secured by legal agreement.

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

This application seeks approval of the landscaping which was part of the reserved matters
under condition 2 of the original planning permission. Approval of the details of the
landscaping and appearance of individual phases of the development were required as part
of condition 3, which also prescribed the extent of the information required.

The proposed landscaping proposals are considered to fully comply with the concepts and
design objective indicated at outline stage. Additional tree planting and soft landscaping is
shown in appropriate locations around the site, to benefit the public realm.

Communal amenity space would be provided on a podium located on the first floor of the
apartment block. The landscaping on the podium would comprise of hard and soft
landscaping, including grass, trees planted within wooden planters, hedges, shrub planting
and 1.25m high metal railings around the podium edges.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 162



Overall, the development would provide for an appropriate landscape setting. The Council's
Trees/Landscape Officer considers the proposed landscaping to be acceptable.
7.15 Sustainable waste management

The sustainable waste features of the proposed development were considered as part of
the outline application (LBH Ref: 5107/APP/2009/2348). In the course of considering the
outline scheme, the Highways and Waste teams confirmed that waste arrangements could
be suitably accommodated on the site.

Phase 5 (Block A) would provide 82 residential units. Waste would be stored in 20
Eurobins located within two bin stores on the ground floor of the apartment block. The
number of Eurobins proposed for Block A would exceed the minimum requirement and is
considered to be acceptable.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

The renewable/sustainable features of the development were considered as part of the
outline application (LBH Ref. No. 5107/APP/2009/2348) which the Central and South
Planning Committee resolved to grant 25th May 2010 and the decision finally issued on 1st
October 2010 following the Mayoral Stage Il approval and completion of the s106 legal
agreement.

The renewable and sustainable measures imposed were considered acceptable by both
the Council and the GLA and appropriately worded conditions and s106 undertaking agreed
accordingly. 116 PV panels would be provided on the roofs of Block A.

The subject application for reserved matters of Phase 5 is consistent with the principles
established at the outline stage, and the permanent energy centre is now approved and is
nearing completion on a separate part of the site.

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

Whilst the application site is in an area of low risk (Flood Zone 1), a Flood Risk
Assessment (FRA) was submitted as part of the Environmental Statement and flooding
issues were considered as part of the outline application.

The assessment demonstrated that the proposal would not have an adverse impact to
neighbouring properties as it will not increase flood risk through increased surface runoff.

The Environment Agency reviewed the application and raised no objection subject to a
condition to ensure the development be carried out in accordance with the FRA.

Consideration of Flood Risk was satisfactorily addressed as part of the outline permission
and is not relevant to this landscape and appearance Reserved Matters application.
7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Phase 5 (Block A) is located in the south-west corner of West Drayton Garden Village and
fronts onto Porters Way to the south. As such, at outline stage, consent was granted
subject to conditions to ensure the development was not adversely impacted upon by road
traffic noise or by air quality issues.

It is considered that these detailed design aspects would be controlled through the
discharge of conditions and, as such, there are no issues to consider in the subject
application for reserved matters.

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

No responses were received during the public consultation.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 163



7.20 Planning obligations

Not applicable to this reserved matters application.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this reserved matters application.
7.22 Other Issues

None

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 164



proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this reserved matters application.

10. CONCLUSION

Conditions 2 and 3 of the outline planning consent (ref: 5107/APP/2009/2348) required the
provision of details of the landscaping and appearance of individual phases of the
development. This Reserved Matters application for Phase 5 (Block A) considers the
Appearance and Landscaping to be acceptable, and in compliance with the relevant
policies and planning guidance for the site. Therefore, the application is recommended for
approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (July 2011)

National Planning Policy Framework 2012

Contact Officer: Katherine Mills Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 165



.
To---- -~
I
=
I
L

'
e
'

E}:j z

GE AVENU

LOD

Il
o
&

11036
rlington House-

Jefferson House

od 1to 46
Lexington House

1to 60

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address
West Drayton Garden Village

Porters Way
West Drayton

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services

Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
5107/APP/2014/4304 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
Major Page 166 | March 2015

MNILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda Item 12

Plans for
Major Applications
Planning Committee

5th March 2015

www. hillingdon.gov.uk




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 88-94 LONG LANE ICKENHAM

Development: Demolition of 5 existing dwellinghouses and redevelopment of the site for a 8%
unit Class C2 care home for the elderly of 1.5 to 2.5 storeys in height with
associated landscaping and car parking (40 spaces in total), stopping up of
existing vehicular accesses on Long Lane and construction of new vehicular
access onto Long Lane.

LBH Ref Nos: 52129/APP/2014/2996

Date Plans Received: 20/08/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 20/01/2015
Date Application Valid: 15/09/2014 20/08/2014
21/10/2014

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 168



10z Aew ajep
szl - b 8jeos
Jayoayg  paoauo

Lo0Z/8LERYY

ou Buimesp

Aoy je a3y o3 aeyd syl

w_Eo:@_m

joyny  umesp Bunsixz ueld ayg i e c Cmv_o _
[ I8¥a8BIOUINE/UCISIAGY | Al | Biep |
- \\/

s wez 0

oscl: )

062 1-1 Bunsix3 ueld eyg jo AdoD

Page 169

ﬂ_ /__



E iz S S i uejdiaysey adedspuel | WYHNINOI ‘INYT ONOT ¥6-88
_____ £ WY A watip | A ID0RLEYTY  oU Bap

syuepd Buiquip yim ejobisag

o

Bupged k3 Wousg/ainies) IsEm vaxuﬁsﬁzﬁzaa.ﬁ_ﬁﬁ_

AR N/ Buneas wapiet paedunoy saquua/doy pjofuad yim 21015 wg

PlERIO | (000 JouIu aIngea) e 2UNSOPUS ushesgng

ysodwoy aoeua Buwung waue Buppeg

YU uapael HOEIahan usLyIN/eRIE Aoy saau) pue 3bpay usaibians Buryied pajgqesia

abeiojg/asnoy usary anEl puE Buiduaj preaq 350)3 Jaqui bunsig ©aie 2e3 10OPING

uapieb liosuag auaped 1apuane| fqgo/eurnus uey

uied jaresb punog usay - P sk A o e biisapad man

_ s9an pup 36pay jea] proIG ey pue s Lk s vz
AU By w18 guend Buiguay i

i—iniwiq‘wiw'nldai




E :o«M_“ e-_“_.. ”“_ .Eh”-““._“” B A3Y ZOD/BLENTY U Bap _GmUQO._nm h._mmz.___._om SR _ PRI DY SRR

Ajuo sasodind aanensnii Jo, ue|d Aay

A _co.uumm Jjem jeadAp | __Muwm“ AN = s6uljtel jo doy
2 y e saan) pue abpay o1 paddy> aipay jea| peoig aaneu

" Jea| peoiq anieu pue Sijja.3 Jagug pue j|em Jano Bulpes Jyblay w4

l1em sano Buyjier wBiay _..__._«Fn . WBiay we'| ysureBe syueyd Buiguyy | | ;ebman 9

] 41— ) oned a1eald 0| J0s g g

‘_, auayed ||em Adepunog youg b

Lo Uediooy 1apuane| pue sseib [BlusWeUI) 6 abuan umow g

Mgnd saal} ssanoe asueuayew/aeb may 7

¥ pue sBpay uasifiana anjeu pue yedjooy |

= Buinuaj preoq asop2 Jaqui Bunsixy g Aay

& abpay jes| m _“<ca_n_ ) ok
g e s
% & E
1 o 7
aad & i 8
= @
o !
- v
»
= - A - - &
™ o
& | Jd
(Ajuo sasodind anzeiysn)|| Joy) B L0135 =
: . —L il 0 _M. mv.ﬁ ;. |
= — DI esee| ov'9E ;
£ (f _ _
. . i L
. ) F E )
aue| buo ~P. abpay aneu pue N e
sijfau) JaquiL pajueld LS .
! ol
\.f.% = (auayied 1apuane| _ - e
e pue sseib) uapieb "
1 ’ > |EIAIEWIO Ul 9 | )
G
3 0 [
o g & i
_M, v & e 4 e
= H @ g
I3 i %
i H
ﬂ f ;
PaLIE}a) 53303 r. / ‘ﬂ
fiepunoq Bupsig 77w / 3 T ranaand
e E P.l..rm.
w. _‘_ = - i
bt N :
% /
e /
N).\._J..)‘J L LY
arl.../.:. " e @
- Ce \
.._\r..




checked  Crecker
sl
ﬁ' DRI

Lo | omw ]
e Figure Ground W Suthor

Signature eever



r MBS nhqmibng ] dr N

B A P Ao umsag
880°S65C ' smmm | o
sy Bussarag ey £v @ spog

SHIOM AYMHDIH 3LIS-440
03S0d0dd HLIM SAY1dS ALITIBISIA
ANV 8§300V 3118 d380d0Hd

a1 | Buimeig as0|0 suojsuin| o)

aue| wn) 6y Bunsix3

WYHNIXOI 'SINYT ONOT #6-88

o " \.\.
aL713TALSIHIT HOINIS IHNLYNDIS @«o -
) o
OW - =
e S B paejjog aanosyes pue pue(s) Bunsixgy 2% : s
SEEPTL0 [L450) wikag Wy U BH PutuARRY |2 &w ) - -
SJUB)MSUO) SUlISsUISUME JIIFeL], s - 2 =

e ue odsuea ; "
P FuTUUB[d 3L 5 A 0 5 Z /__nm_n_m Auqisia

gEm FH@HHannmm” ‘saianacuew wny Jubu Joj mojje o}

. A W6 X W'
sBupyew peos Buiyojey (enuso sroway : , - \\\ B /. 3
SUBAH J9719d N
L & ; : <P . ; o
shumew pRos Auep pue sswey  dr PLEZ090 W ARy . : N
sBusew peos moja, BlgRog ppe s /
@ sliunuew suey wn jyu o) sussel  dF SLZ0PL B ARy Jepi0 uonenBey siyel | o) palgns ; ../.
sBuryiew mojja A ajgnoQ pasodold - Bunsixa as0j9 A /
; /. |
e
sue| wn b Bunsix N
Kemjooy pasodoid b

2o
o \ p
cnov % ‘Buined ajnoe) pue squey paddosp
: . > ‘HpeJ JBLI0D WY U)iM SSB00R
— “ . -~ ajis apim wg mau pasodold
" 1 » -
:mEm.men_ mﬂwwﬂw ’ (| “_ 7 &t $8558008
nsi / \.\m [ 1 - - Bugsixe 8son
- -~ N
| s P ¥ -t
| __ 1 < WA
N\ 7 N
1 U & Aeds Aynaisia sin Nk
P P WEY X Wp'g ~
__ | Py S8
l _\ - b 4 :
A \.7 SN
A
&7\ p - N
&>/ ) SO K
& # %
fejds Aypaisia 9
Wpg X Wy'g Y,
| N
N
‘Japs0 uonenBay oyel) o1 palans N )
Aoy Aemubiy yum pasibe aqg o Juaixe pue II
ABAREIIPUL UMOUS SBUI| MO|ID A BIAN0Q Pasodold (310N “
‘PLOOEL POIEP £O'Z0' LO-9S0LPEL Ou Bp W
suounjog fanng Ag Aawns odol vo peseq Bumesg N

Page 173

0 HOSSIAL 34E LI AT AT 3L 00 (RGICHAI 0N




e = seamer B

we |
uswesen

Page 174




Na GODETRERYY O Dlaweip
e ay 0y anewt o

weyuexo| WQEOCU;

MH § pUnOaT} £




FoZAN  GOR 3 A GOOCRLEHVY O Buie




POZREN e 3 A JODERIEHYY  Ou Busep
el ewes

HE P

s e 10014 PUOIDE o

" p—— ¥ W
) g L3

i 2 po
" o

- - bl
Y, |

s

£y




o

p i .

P

drwng o AMITR00E  rev D dole L]

SiquEng Ickenham



ced

S3HO1ld 400Yd 40 WvHOVIA NY1d

LB LUSYD| @—ﬂ——mvc*b_w

._. ‘ : | - ;._._..
/
____.. J.
E ./..
] G
il -
.. == ,../
\
\
{
_... _
__
_.. — ..lnuu.llll.k.i..l = S ..__ J_
| . - ._ ,,
) | % : | "_. = % - . o .__.
- . — .r.. e St ._._
400¥ 334930ty | — ~ __
EINEENGEREL | _ . ,
400y 33893009 [

A3



i, panboy

QW ﬁ~ ik, i a2 suoneas|3 saiuadold Bunsixg

suoneag Sugsng

o O weyuayo| ‘sue] Buo

g8 sue Buoq
Z1 uoneaa3

S uoneARg Fi UONEART3 £l uoneas3

06 sue Guo
& OF voneasg 6 UoHesa|3 g uonens|3 1 uonessy3

268 6 aue) Huo
O uoness|3 § uoHEAa)3

ssnoy Audog
 UDHEARIT £ uonBAal3

Zuoness|3g | UonEART

v ¥ ATN

Page 180



pEpE o P o
AR ad SLOERIERYY Eitsttip ——
W oS
"e paaau
" — | S RS s

— %Eo:v_w

HE dr3 ¥ SLOT-LO6l

suE Buo) USHRAN HINGS - £ USIRASIZ

Page 181

PIRALINGD 3UAUT 1593 - | UOHEAS




Dz alap A QLOEMRLERYY  ou Buanp o ¢ o 0 50 s
mwm amyorr DAOUDIG
ord Uz L wags E] 2

WS drd ¥ SLOT-LO6L

G VT T
-.l_-.l. -.l_ .—r

Page 182

R 7 WY N R A SR €

g
P 5 BT U OO U e B 7 % N 9 W g

ONKTYHLSITV ¥ S0

paRdunog YuoN - £ vonesn3

i o o
A KA
FARGPY] ML T BEPL ANWAR] B i BRI
T G D 1 O R N MRARE Ay BN U 3 D A
WA fATE T AR L e e B DA W
TV
o

SO0

e

Ol B T8 PN PO s L] DB T R I AT 33
) N A SIS N 00 DA S W) YN SN OP0N

1o

A3N

ooak L

ueid Aay







Aa BTV o D

AR 5 WIS AR £

) 0 aveyd .

weyorp; | OIM)DU

preAune) sauRnU3 1583 - T} VONEAST

Page 184

v_m



W oyrys
5 P
drd e
L]

WS drd ¥ SLOT-LO6l

A
R
L)
-
7
-
Py a? R L s i G v ¥
o
W Of B (U GO0 W e O AT S DN 0 8 g
THRTILEN TV ¥ A
sy W
o -
B
I
e g @ = AEEAR] B I
- .
g Ll -
Bl
)

] A 0 LN DA LYY s SRS e B A 5
g, s Bt g0 P s sl ne Sy BT

.

A3

oool &
uejd Ao

A QLOE/LERYY  Ou Buswap

i

o) i 0 3T 4

- anp_v_w

Page 185

unpIRD Uy YLON - § uoneang

uapien AI0SUSS ISaN - § UOIEASIT

T

N
ii M omiom W




e e B

ignatyre  ‘emem



/ ¥
ot i

&

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

88-94 Long Lane
Ickenham

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services

Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
52129/APP/2014/2996 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
Major Page 187| March 2015

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address HAYES AND HARLINGTON STATION STATION ROAD HAYES

Development: Application under Schedule 7 of the Crossrail Act 2008 for the approval of
Plans and Specifications associated with the erection of a new station building
external lift shaft, footbridge with lift shafts, extension of platforms 2/3 and 4/5
with canopy modifications, new waiting room to Platform 4/5 and associated
lighting.

LBH Ref Nos: 10057/APP/2014/4338

Date Plans Received: 09/12/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 09/12/2014

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 188






TR i s

£0V  0.2000-Y3V-OHO-TIV-BLNSM
oy | S B
[ 3 3

£ s ey

vow

CT T, o NOLIVAISF| sy

L. !.. NoLS | o

LTI = ey e,

e s, INSBUAE| gt
NYId LINFWIDONYHEY TVHINID
SHHOM WHOH1Y1d d3S0d0dd

IWAOHddY HO4 NYId
NOILVYLS NOLONITHVYH 2 wm>.<r_..._..l.

(ALY3d0Yd ® ONYT) S3LVLST
H3INNIHILNO - SNOILYLS 1S3IM
FLNSM

e

inemengng;

|/

11eg}10MI3N

£8 | MIINTY V¥ WHOd HOd |

DETO00- Y IV-DUC-ADT BINGA
N ONIMYED MO WYLS0 B3d SV 12437 WHOALY Y
AND1EE WGGE 38 OL WS0-41Y1d N SNOLLYONNOS TV 40 401 ¥

SIS TV 0L INTHALSAYOD
AN ML 00 3AYH DU SNOILLYONNOS 3DOEI004 TV ©

HOLIVEINGD L1 30 ANINLNIDtery
NN 38 04 oM
AR HOALWONND S "Lid MO SOVOT SHOIBNSINID Lid 197 2

NOULDTHLISNGD 40 3
¥ 03/0Md ONY G3NVITD 38 0L FDYNVEO MOVHL DNUSHS |

5 ) T K s 1 A Bty |

005 I35

N¥1d NOILYDO1 31IS

Page 190

0/2000-Y3¥-980-TTIV-8LNSM

gy Buvaacy




S LIRGSIDS o) pribay @anddy
e = S— [
....._“n_. s ...f.r..l.. ¥

|
|




1 S2000-¥-HOQ 00HD-00-66656-DLNSM HD|
— ——— —|
— o

o o oo
T " s ..lul...
— — i -
- — e

NOILYLS NOLONITHYH ONY S3AVH

FENLILIHOHEY - ONIHAINISND
SHAULAE - SUOHEIS 1STR) 1esEs0I0
DENSM

NV Id 00H 03S0cNG

Page 192




TR i s

20V LZZ000-V3V-940-1TV-8LNSM w0z TS [ p——

[ 3 3 b
ety ety

onE-E

!

N ik
s NOLLYMIS £ 3!81
. o, LI I 00T L IS
- e - Q3NNILNOD NY1d
33 .-.w@.d:.. e
NOISN3LX3 (aN3 NOaNGT)
€/2 WHO41Y1d d350d0dd £%2 WHOALYd DNILSIXT
IVAOHddY HO4 Ny 1d - —

NOILVYLS NOLONITHVYH 2 wm>m_.“_..! -

8 INAHOLVIN

(ALY3d0Yd ® ONYT) S3LVLST -
H3INNIHILNO - SNOILYLS 1S3IM
FLNSM

e

8 3NIMHOLYIN

1 00TL ITWDS

A3NNILNOD NYd

|/

j1ey)iom3ap i [ — o e e )

g ININMHOLYW

£8 | MIINTY V¥ WHOd HOd |

|
. '
¥ INITHO LY

Page 193

TWHOALY

WSS 254 = WOL- MOL DN

¥ ANITHOLYW

]
Mﬁ
/_ 2 NHO41Vd
|
|

IWHOLY I ONILENE

E
]
'
E
i
H
£
!
Y ANITHOLYI

~ {on3 AHINNOO)
E9Z WaO41vd ONILSIX3

B0 PRI O AU MORH) SOOI 1Y

o b \q

I
i
@@%
il
<zj v__a_wm;Fm______

gy Buvasacy

1/2000-Y3¥-O8a-TTV-8LNSM




TR i s

20V €.2000-¥3V-DHa-1TV-8LNSM
- | Ay B

(3
P i
n . NOLIVMISF|  passisny
LT !.2 WoLS T [,
T - il AVHD N [
B mas| 9081| g
NOISNILX3
S /¥ WHO41V1d 03S0d0dd
IVAOHddY HO4 NY1d

NOILVYLS NOLONITHVYH 2 m..m>m_.“_..l.

(ALY3d0Yd ® ONYT) S3LVLST
H3INNIHILNO - SNOILYLS 1S3IM
FLNSM

e

|/

11eg}10MI3N

£8 | MIINTY V¥ WHOd HOd |

Ay,

Aoy | oncy | | St o ] [ |
L AR} AHATY WO OATES) Sinow 0w
& e W3NS 0 OIESI TS 20w

ERLLE ] mllllt

b el

s [
S —

ON3oT

I

D [ 1 L () [ U S L

B W e sueryso Buegl o vosuemniu)  w
A iy 9% o o wes D

ELEPRSE
oy S Sdusy s Sussom 0 Alquiss 0
]

PO IV HH-ADT BINEM Moty
¥ SOUBISR SN G F AU MO0 SOLRII Ty

i 0 i) S e ROORER Bt
FIRTIUITY O FUOHDIE B ORG SN

L] ETHRLUTAAYS DAL GIROH A

[
sy urwey |

¥ INMHOLYW

000

Py—pe—

e L IS wmsred
F— —_—
gz a 2 3 * °
il ooz IWoS
Nvd =
HIDNTT GLONELSNGD 3 s i - .ﬂn. = WG 25 = HOL H0L SNILEE F NSOV ——r
-
e WO T =OVBLNS 40 HIDNDT = gt | o
Z
m
>
. . . =
. L] . . . . . . .
..... —
5
o
-
NeYONNGS Avoonoay =
o1 10 w1 2
e w36 SMESHA | )
= WGERT = TV G PHOALY I MEN >
Wil 00 & ITVOS
Q3NNILNOD NYTd M.u
G W U SR WO - -
aney BSOS (@)
T R LSS [
o
m
i
e e e s i el R e ——— .
P WHOILY * i e e hed
-] # F . om ), . al
L] L] - L L i 1y *
¥ 5
il | L LS L]
" ,
'S WHOALYd
=
o
0
LT, |  oaowmIeor
e TYA ONE DRLEIES N, OO
i DNULSIXE ONNOHY
=z OFTIVLENI TINNHD O
3 -
>

U L6 = 30V S NEO ALY I 3N

gy Buvaacy

€12000-Y3¥-O8A-TIV-8LNSM




R

80V 1 L0000-V3V-Oua-"vI-GLNSM
u— sty B
Lol

T o @
Lt - E L
hment - aRYHIER —
im0 pa— e NYRAADES p—
B P s I

NYdS TvOIdAL
AQNLS AVE 03S0d0Hd
IVAOYHddY HO4 NY1d

39081004 QUVANVLS

5 sy

FUNLIILIHOYY - ONIYIINIONT
HINNIEILNO - SNOILYLS LS3IM

FINSM -
WA

jeyyiomispn

£s M3IIAZY ¥ WNHOS HOd
”-"B —— S ) RO !i!
RIS —ras

BAdadde TR 16 WK 43 o1 UBROP 2N WIBORT) ML) B0
woowm | ¥
. il -

Buaopam 008 g VIR JEPERELL

ShOu Tl Ui weed Al wep e,

005 ¥ 005 ) BULAD 0T 0 Wi L iy s N

SR Tkl s et Gl A L ARG, PUR BAUNT) BHE v

Uy N periode ]
IOk B3NS SyDads sys
10; sbuwp £ j00ubiea

-

o a

ny st e 4§

[ S ) e

0000

o pee——pey e

NOWUYAZTS

Page 195

gy Buvneary

LL0000-YIV-2H0-HV3-GLNSM




e S 3w
i LN G«.Iﬂ.l....lll wog L] Wb
— T e
gr’.in g FANOIEST Pr—
LU, e L= J—
L. b Footy e
3SVOHIVLS WOIdAL
AGNLS AVE 03S0d0¥d
~ WAOHddY ¥O4 NYd s
NOILVLS NOLONITHVH ® SIAVH
FUNLOILIHONY - ONRIIINIONT
H3NNIHILNO - SNOILYLS 1S3M
FINSM
) Gl
Wi
jeyyiomionN
,.m....a HLNY Q W§O4 (¥9) - OFUVHS

Page 196

_‘”L.w.s.u.umﬂl.._..mq MHq_u.uq_.ﬂru i1 =

£

o sy aswu ‘ol samEnng PER Y

i
E
k
!
S
=
=)
B

e
"
ey o W
N
0
il
i . ) o iy
Aupqesd) e
k] £
) ol wnged q %
e oy :
uogannsuag

oy PutTR 0} 0T MOR SE0UGRRI Y

ety Buvaiagy

HYI-BINSM




ity o4 snnag Hasd B 405 g mm
i!!%ltﬂl

——
......







—
L ] ] * 2 L

i Bapwng Ampory man =

m reis v 4 -~
S Lempayds o} paunbay enoiddy L | 7 R
Lot e e [ [ A

T m T | L Pt #
S i = [ 7 A"I_.:

u'_ﬁw

(o))
o

-

" o)
©

o




" Eé
S o

ol o .
- T

T 3sunoonoo

MY Id DNITTING 0350d0Nd

WAOHAY HO4 NYd

NOLLYLS NOLONITHYH  S3AVH

FENLIALIHIEY - ONIHIINISNT
SHSULBE - SUBHEIS 1S IBIESET)
DLNSM

Page 200







—_——
L ] * z L3




TR i s

€0V 8.2000-VIV-DUQ-TTIV-EINSM
(5]

mmmmmm o o NOLLYALS 3!81
B | !x.. ..P:rs.a“_ —
(T = e =
LT Iia -23..!__” w—
SNOILLYDIJIa0W AJONYD
€ /2 NHO41¥1d 3S0d0ud
IWAOHddY HO4 NYd

NOILYLS NOLONITHVYH 2 wm\rMIi

(AL¥3d0Yd ® ONYT) S3LVLST
H3INNIHILNO - SNOILYLS 1S3IM
GLNSM

e

|/

11y} 10MISN

£8 | MIINTH ¥ WHO4 HO4
s il

LI ,
'Rlﬂ_ﬁ_g.
g9

[=a
AT 0 ST EURoR
A3 W0 TNGEI TRGT

-
[
2l
AT bl (RS SO0

Bl 10 Dol RS pascidn U Buren
A ) 10 B SO [N P
Py 0 T ) 0 i i S S

B
i) uowtwst B

Aawssianu 5o Pk oq o ddoued £
uBSAREGT)

L0000V I -HIE- OB NEM i

0 POGSEtT TRELT TSR & B SRR Y
kg i)
A o W ) N S ST
P Rty 4 AR S e LA
S TN o o R S e
P s B TSI By s g |

vl oz VS

-8 NOILO3S

L4

OLlOHd 3LIS

==
L\

év

B os L Tvos

¥-¥ NOILD3S

£ WHOALY Y

1wl 00z L TVOS

NY1d AdONYD ONILSIXT NO NOILYDIJIQ0W a3S0d0Hd

2 NHOAY

Page 203

iy Bumanicy

8/2000-¥3V-O8A-TIV-8LNSM




00s4 ' A
wnt ¢ W E A NYId WHOS1Y1d 03S0d08d

annay Adoul) Buisag )0 )

i pu i Bugsacy : g oy

T

.rw.x [ ] ] - ] [ ] ] - ]

émﬁ&.& ilﬁ ”_




TR i s

€0V 08Z000-Y3IV-OUQ-TIV-BLNSM o2 w08
......_...w E ] g e L o

!3

oo
o

s st B ..
NOLIVIST| gy
A

)

——r

Tum0i

Timis
T
TB0LE

ia
NI psng

LNOAVT ONILHOI
WHO41¥1d d350d0dd
IWAOHdAY HO4 NYId
NOILVYLS NOLONITHVYH 2 S3IAVH

14
1§33

(ALY3d0Yd ® ONYT) S3LVLST
H3INNIHILNO - SNOILYLS 1S3IM
FLNSM

e

|/

j1eyyo0miapn

£8 | ;mm._;m.m VWHO4 HOd

Ay,

m.
i
i
i
5
i
g
e
Z!
m

SNOHDOLYW

it i ] I.._ [

.q.q.g.
| ¢ slg

tuswe.-oauttn_«.‘! 3
SN W04 INE81 LB oo

| |nad

L Wdod g

D — N T ,_ﬁ!‘ﬂﬁ_rﬂqﬂﬁ
I o —

u\
&

— (e e —— =y
— — = o 0 P e - - —
—— i gl W, e 017y I

CANIVLTH 38 CL SHANI0D BNILHD BNLSTHS -] ¥ WSO4iTig _. ,. Hhxw:mouuﬁ._q = — L ___“___&___!ﬂs__: e

- w

SNINIO0 DNLLHDITOVEH MWL M3N EX o b 1%

L "
T 3
Qa0s SHAMOD SNuHEn TVaN TN AR T e i — _”_.nx X 2x ¥ WHOALYIg e |
i LY oy Pt
30vas SNNTI00 Ot TOVAN L TS 1K @ - ’ -

Bt 0 futs i e pancdie ur fusn

BIGUIGRD [0 B8N G| U BISED AT SN0 R0

]

gy Buvaacy

§
d&&;!!!gdé

|

3NIMHILYN

082000-Y3¥-98a-TTV-8LNSM













Hayes

and Harlington |
tation

Vantage
Building

Building

Navigation

Skeffington Court Y

e ;

=)

/
AT
3
I
P

- "’af-’

i

[ “
Squirrels

Trading
Estate

[3 Mast Telecommunication}

Sloping masonry

Factory

[
‘

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Hayes and Harlington

Station Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Major Page 209

Hayes Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale
10057/APP/2014/4339 1:2,000 A
Planning Committee Date ‘ ’!t-
March 2015 | L] LINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address PRONTO INDUSTRIAL ESTATE AND 585 - 591 UXBRIDGE ROAD HAYES

Development: Change of use of B1(c) floorspace to provide 12 additional residential units an
associated ancillary works. (Amendment to planning permission ref:
4404/APP/2011/2079, dated 30-03-2012 (Application to replace extant plannir
permission ref: 4404/APP/2008/3558, dated 23-03-2009); Redevelopment of
site to provide replacement Class B1(c) light industrial space and 34 two-
bedroom and 9 one-bedroom flats with associated car parking, landscaping
and amenity space).

LBH Ref Nos: 4404/APP/2014/2506

Date Plans Received: 16/07/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 17/07/2014

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 210



Putting Green

B Pronto Trading Estate, M Project TPH
Uxbridge Rd, Hayes M Dwg Nofrev. PL-100
1 Site Location Plan Page£4 1 1:1250

M Date Dec 08

jsa architects



sjuawdojaaag wieq E..Ehl

NY1d 3LIS | __ 7 I

e _ # |
sakey 'py 3bpLagan) L | ;
‘Bieis3 buiped] Syuolg | o | |

s 01 WOzt §0

N4 0

mraytc clc




FLOZ MY b 2 4200
¥ enena o soheH P SOPUGA ‘SIEIST BUIDEI] ONOId
£02-1ed  mawon . !
¥HAL el gﬁﬂégugl

]
o el

uolpAa3 UolDAS|3
apIs pasodold 108y pasodoid

up|d 1004 punois) pasodold

Page 213

uoloAa)3 uolLAS3
apIS pasodold juol4 pasodold




L ] 8 ¥ag
WBo0LL .ﬂwl i .ci-ius!sm_.wi._uuiug -
e sakey ‘py abpugxn ‘ajeis3 ﬁu._.___ Ojuod
oo sjusludDBAS] Wie 4 L=

, lh 3 ¥OO0714 ANOD3S H0O014 ANNOYD
L :
r 4

NOILYAZ3 3AIS NOILLYAINZ Yv3y
ﬁ < = ] =] E
= Om o | i .
g %.U Nvd 400Y ¥0O074 1SHld
7 7 | M .. = - d
NOILYAZ13 30IS NOILYAZ 13 LNOM4 ? w— 4 r
| . oo 1 : - 1t i
—— [ __ | L1 T3 m | L i 5 sl
S — -} - T L
Frp— s _ :
T] | T3 .
eed L1 Ll | LL & [} B
v
——— = LS
5 u L I —————a

Page 214



WA g peseynm
‘ﬁo«gl‘ﬂ i ] ﬁi!f‘sgoi.
Loz Seom |
e R T -

uolyAs|3 IDey pasodold

uouDAS|3 SIS pasodold

I
Uraxwonn]

es




Q wog
SUCHILNALY Pt ) 004 PNy Pt @
2021 ravow Snom saeH ‘P SOPUGKN ‘91EIST BUIPE: | OlLOi
- g&gng -

UO|DAB|3 BPIS pasodold

O —2]

e

"

=

uolpAs|3 apIs pasodold

H

LT LH
| |

|

|
il
___ —k
|

E—q

{H
}

el

) [H

............

[ 1] | -~

UO|DAB|T J0BY PBsSOdold

M_I. P
_ﬁ._. =




Ashwood
Care
-~ Centre

~ i x R s
El Sub Sta O/& ) a1

Putting ¢

Play Area

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

Pronto Industrial Estate
& 585 - 591Uxbridge Road

Hayes

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services

Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
4404/APP/2014/2506

Scale

1:1,250

Planning Committee

Major Page 217

Date
March 2015

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 1 NOBEL DRIVE HARLINGTON

Development: Conversion and extension of existing office building to form a 200 bedroom
hotel with banqueting suite, conference facilities, and rooftop restaurant,
including a seven-storey extension to rear, a three storey addition at roof level
and single-storey side extension, together with the creation of a new vehicle
access, and alterations to car parking and landscaping.

LBH Ref Nos: 46214/APP/2014/2827

Date Plans Received: 08/08/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 19/02/2015

Date Application Valid: 03/09/2014 08/08/2014
23/02/2015

Major Applications Planning Committee -5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 218



D0 L M g ML AT Koy
oo pmgPos  pewra A (SR ] A - FO
MES TR RIEL0  suoydan b aucoda| po Al

rl-cvcl uojbuigeH ‘aAuQ |2qoN |
wipid ou Gimg apa o

e uejd uoieso do] moiyjeaH

st fiussp

2101221121y e -
£ — — — == —— oy Blaminip o gl
B DO g T o ey Buiuueld &.z_ p—

Siaa
} b
0oL 08 09 oy 0¢ 0 0¢
g
wgzes0s Q M W9zes0s
".T
‘ ‘ ¥
3
g
=
x H
:
= A
— -
Ww9z060s W920605

69L

Page 219




- a| o non
- vt | e w——
O | S w Ol N
o e e [
] [ —

ueld o Bupss

ot

uegBUINRH ‘AT GO 'L

do) meuyieeH

o

Bupuuey

b ——] ol

avoyd HLlvd

200d + 100d-0-ZEG0VIN SONIMYHD 335

FINVHINT NIV —

500d-0-ZEBOVIN SONIMYED 335
SHIHHVE IINVHING -

%

3
Aldd 1380N'L

17 3 8 O N

P00d + £00d-0-ZEE0YIN SONIMYAEA 335
SNOILYAITI




- ey —— i —
o et s
ey —

Ans s
————"1
u.::uo:au._(-
L " -
9 " W T

BATH ROAD




o am Wt LA ey
0 RO e

€0

ool I £ < vi-cvel uojBuipeH ‘eAuQ [9GoN |
2IN12211Y21Y — - _ Eézﬁ ..EEH — ueld 100|4 punois Bunsix3 do] moiyjesH
payRLa aess | e waus fap Ao e s s B B a0 qol
£ e | we fonng ]l sl A

Page 222



:z::ﬂ:.ﬁ__ 07—

L2 L IR

i | o -
" ﬁn— W O PO -
R it PR .o Ry —
e
il J00(4 punaig) pesodosg

———

wefape SAd IDON L

19904 oy z
AN

|
)

ue|d Joo|4 punolg)

Page 223




v0 - vl-gvel uojBuipeH ‘eAuQ [9GoN |

—] o do] mosyies
00zt o o ueld Joold jsii4 Bunsix3 | modyiesH

2IN12211YY21Y
£ paaRa s | eovs weus Bwp AT I s B G
SuDiSSIWO 20 S1018 AUk Ladey @ sPoly Aaning e Y

‘Wi U0 KON PUR SUCISUBWD (IR %I04 T e St S §¥ isap S.E.Esw.ﬁ o e

Y

L

" . 5

=<4

a0
1<d r.

e

i

(1]

i
_'. l:;ﬂg ————
AP i

o a T d"!b '..

i

“tlae
_.\. _4§?

T
|
r
]

Page 224



"

—N

[ |[ == |[=] ue|d J00|4 }sii

Page 225




A O3 nan Mot JAT Anon
a0 g e R g e dsde -
USRS MIMD oudea a3 sua | w0 w0

S0 - pL-Z¥el uojBuipeH ‘eAlq [99oN |
T — ueld J0oj4 puooag Bunsix3 do] moiyjesH

O QAN Baap
9d
RS

0IN12211Y21Yy - %
paaRa : _ s s fwp AT I s B G o ol
SUDIESILID 40 SI0US AUE Lodey @ sewy .a&?:.__m sfuep

7 A A S—
®

B U KGN U SUBISUBLE 18 204D Y ee sones Busmasp os.SL ufisap S LoSIAG o e
‘0 ie.
L kl
L} kl

e s senden s

[1E _ o o [ .”.w e N ]
_ | . | o= Dy :
_ oL i
_ mﬂw ] .H.lm_ oy _
| T3] D _
! i = |
_ = : - |
| e S Y
| = =& .

Page 226



—N

ue|d J00|4 puodas

Page 227



WO T Mk AT R
e g ews

O6% SR D AN Al s | D) a1

90

LI AP

= vl-evcl uojBuipeH‘aauq [2qopN |
el ol g apaa ol

do] moiyieaH
- _ % 5 ueld 100|4 paiyl Bunsix3y 1

HeIs s peaus fmp A e NSS! s

0IN12211Y21Yy
R i Buisig: oy qol
SUDISSILIOD J0 Sioua AU Uoday @ SRy >ma=m
‘4 U0 KUB PUR SUCISUBWID (1# ¥204D R Ry

L
sms umesp | peyoois|  usep

SAROU UOTSIAGY

83— Wi

Page 228



Page 229

Third Floor Plan

1 ?
Proposed Third Floar Plan




Fourth F(.!oor Plan

Page 230



Page 231

Fifth Floor Plan

Proposed Fifth Floor Plan

[t
fit:
%fhi:ééii



|A

e 208
M2 14
.Ar:hitecturc

Tk S
P iy

- -u-t-n
Al 10

Proposed Sixth Flocr Plan
Sy

Sixth Floor Plan

Page 232

g
o Ty
et

Comen. 1448 et

1:200



WO nam CETT ]

ol o el £ L0 < vi-cvel uojBuipeH ‘eAuQ [9GoN |
2IN12211Y21Y — - _ Eéi” e ._,_M“ _— ue|d Jooy Bunsixg do] moiyieaH
[ owos | eows peous Bwp e R P s o Buismp ot ok
E ———ree | ® = I . = g

e s B

— = ~ =

Page 233



L

a2 Z

[ A

._ § iHete =
I! [!i;%i
g

m <
-
| E
|
! ——
= o1
il i
TR
_.. ! :.::- D
§~iizil _ I
EeEEsEaEEE 3"
i
i (- =l L |
ﬁﬁ ol |21 |21
: | oo
i
B3 1
R &
E= o
‘ Al § I
_—E‘_’_‘ 14 z
om <

Page 234



Wy e, .
Ao yegop s
65 505 HUSHD s

u.::uo::u._<.

A L

L1 OO [

2 80 pL-Z¥eL uojbuieH ‘eAuq [99ON |
UCHSIE] saquinu Guwep ayend] gul Bmp apas gol
oo o ou suoneas|J 1se3 pue ynog bBunsix3 doy moiyreaH
papays Hes s 1S Bap A umeip PANGS! sy o) BUMER @y qol
o © ey Roning o L] 2] ] oo
NOILY¥A3TI HLNOS
Y0
iI_ T I T I i
I :
I ‘ o
I ‘ -
[Nancal RnnnncalNRNERG LRI [
.
| | _Vk
NOILYATTI LSV3
 — % | - s
1 :
! = s
m -

aERENNRGEN

T I T

[T T

Page 235




UoReAs|3 tinos

uofieAs|3 i1seg

I |T. —
| | poe
o H g —_—
- I . ——
A ’ |
e - — S A4
T i -
- T

LIOOWE PEIEINGLT PRI .

99 [EINENS U XIS PAIEFISLS D' o

D@

11 B ==z--c---oc

Wiililifiif

8l FewRRaay AL L TV

IRERRRT

Page 236



il o T Bl - 60 vL-crel uoyBuINeH ‘@AuQ [9qON |
2IN12311Y21Y o oo Es.a.ih aism._“ R suoneAs|J 1S9M @ UMON Bunsixg do| moiyesH
£ paRaN omss | oo ways Gmp A umeip panSS! IS e Busmesp o gol
o T s o o ey Ronng o L] ] o

NOILYATTI3 LS3IM

&

L J-1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

2 [ I I e Y I o A R 2 I A T Y

0 0 O O O | oo _-

I =] | 5

NOILYAIT3 HLYON

v

I N N N N N |

12 I I 1 O I 2

| N— | - | I Ll | - - -m
COCCOT | OO (T f LT CIOTELT | (T )
LS

\

Page 237




.... 5

" i
SBION

ueld Aey

-

BRAAAA[EAAAAA[poa0 oooo Hool & ™
S e

LU

{11

|

[l

]

[T

_

i)

|

Page 238



02 U nam Mk AT R
00 mgRoRs ewe o gy e dsde
069 565 U510 AN AN St (e

u._zmuu_m:uh<.

oL vl-gvel uojBuipeH ‘eAuQ [9GoN |
e NI SRR i ol fisap apoa gol
e 2 = g-8 ® V-V suonosg Bunsix3 do] moiyieaH
IR e s peaus fmp A i NS g B B i
e o Zvey T . = el

s e et e e e e et St et el

w.:uW;__ﬁ5|ght||LFprrh:_hhh:;

W_1|@H DLW (CCCH [CCCO T

oob olo old O o

i !

=:ppprtppih_r|LFb|thL:_

LTIl 0oL L o (o o

HALCC

ooldo oo bod]

s

i

i

—r

Page 239



IRRRRRI

Page 240



11

INERRT

-
-
-

IRERRRCR

Page 241

M Tag Hotel

1 Nobel Drive, Harlinglon
=




20-6r¥1av

i

3AIEA 1380N

3230 0074 1SL OL
AD3LVHLS 3dVISANY

MO DU DODDUDM ALIDMSIEONSIIUD 1T
26rLL9 EL640 Maow

FliTer 54910 AL

MY Z 9 WYHBNTWTIE
TOHEI0D

TIWS =09 v 1 3G SHYAT INY

-

SBG v )

sjue|d
Ll WOOY NOILONNA —
W Em:.c%
9 AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAANAN 9 PUIM UM
W Tﬂdﬂ_ﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁmﬂdd_ﬂﬂﬂﬂ_aﬂﬂd_ pa||ly sybrey
9 . Buipuaose ul
B _3333_33DDhDDDD_DDD.J_DDDD_ 'y siojue|d peasiel
" !
W WP AT AW AW AW A WA AW AW AW AW AR W sse|baiqy/uisay
B
e e e
B
B a
B <
B _3333_3333_3333_ nn/_u
W\ wiwiwawiwiw wiw|wiwis) %

pieOqIN
Aq uiesb uapjoB paoueyug Ba ‘Bunjoap aysodwoD

Buipessnjeq
paze|b6 jedeied |

juelsisal
ybnoip

8 puIm ypm
pa|ly sybno.y
sse|Baiqu/uisay



pobys y o P o by i L L0 vlL-zvzl T T—
21n10311Yyd1y o o EE?M .EEH st S - trgbeenicha
£ [T a.w: s janis fap A e pansss sy afi Bumep i qol
- O Aeuwnpld | ﬁﬂ_ —
4 -

EF
=
‘

L T

g v O H

Page 243



e g e s s ey
s g L

vi-cvel

b e 2 L0 uojbullel‘8ALQ [89ON |
21N12311421Y il EEEM ._.s._..e..“ i ueld inoke ayg do| moiyesH
£ [T a.wm Az s Bap A e pansss sy afi Bumep i qol
dicnﬁ!!i!gﬁﬁw - -_.-_u._!_ha_& &Wﬂ_::_ﬂh& T u__sa....e_ au..i“_ - ”“ﬁ
- -
m
=
-
z
n
[=]
B
L=}

Page 2



108138 Xej} puejesz mau ‘agay .Ewﬂﬂ EE
. ‘sooquieq ‘sasselb ‘xog eweyos adeospue| Jo} ssivads pajsalibng

A3yuns
NOLONITEYH

AIAMNS ITYL HLIM
ADILVHLS IJVISANYT

--. -- »..__... .. Cugaribisey axds &2 )1
—— _L." rﬁlﬂ .l.!!l. s!‘ jejo)-aoeds _ i

Qn!.....-

T A
! 0
* <
i ]
M AP kg g %
@©
4 - o
rE BT

whany ndkacqin ¢

- 4

v

¥ i

o mpn pmb
vy -

st
b
; >0wk<w_.rw 3dVOSANY1 30VdY3L 400y

S [Jpreoami 4 Ba s s P

e

SANIS B S UMUaES PR § 1A0T PEnnif

pevuRUe BULEL] URET U0 UMOUS ST S881 OUS WG Y JER0E 1
i abeuon o Sueed ou-Bunued pes puno o) Bugs



H Vv 8

a v od

- it v uojBuIPeH'3ALIC [SGON |
s BN g i 0w g e ol
004 o i ueld 1noke ayg do] moiyeay
POl opns | e jeeis fep e s pansss s g G B a0l
U B 8 e Aeuunpyg sis_ ﬁﬂ_ i

einejsey |/ =
_ 0 )

Atrium
AN
Coach parking

Page 246



" 2NN

ayvy owH

Atrium

- it v uojBuIPeH'3ALIC [SGON |
" AN PR gl ou e o gol
004 ov i ue|d noke aug do] moiyeay
s Az s Bap A e pansss sy afi Bumep i qol
- — 5 Aeuunpld 32_ ﬁﬂ_ ——
= -
e —r
LI
oy .
pieA oINS Bupyed yoso) D
JuBINEISaY I/
) .
= o \ -
E_Hﬁ_x ! H A\;
U3

Page 247



Holiday Inn
Hotel

18

Multi-storey Car Park

Bowling Alley

, PRI

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the

Site Address

1 Nobel Drive
Harlington

LONDON BOROUG
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services

Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

H

Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Planning Application Ref: Scale
46214/APP/2014/2827 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
Major Page 248 | March 2015

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address WEST DRAYTON GARDEN VILLAGE PORTERS WAY WEST DRAYTON

Development: Reserved matters (appearance and landscaping) in compliance with condition
2 and 3 for Phase 5 (Block A) (82 residential units) of planning permission ref:
5107/APP/2009/2348, dated 01/10/2010, for the proposed mixed used
redevelopment of the Former NATS Site.

LBH Ref Nos: 5107/APP/2014/4304

Date Plans Received: 08/12/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 11/12/2014

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th March 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 249



metropolis ]

architectural” studio u-

PNy OGSy

'-Filanning

—

W,
iy

|II b o
L ] J,' W S
o Il'/ A
___"f f’_d"q




T 24 s
- l]—ls.ﬂj‘”n oy l!
DT
OH POpEy gy e
DUI-OLKGTIND o S
IVBIOOT:1 e
b1 2900 aep
pesodong sdesspuen] S
SAUIG PUE(] 1)
aduit, uSpeny nodeig]
B s dme e i
R i |
ol ann
R iasls BL
435 5100 Ve el s
e, Ry e
HLETE (I BL
A LY ] G oo
..... o
R L
S0 NS A Mep—y
W] A ) SR (Y Ay
g L7 o sty Sl i
aampsaaay adusspue- .- {adeaspue| Jjos wiyim)
AAMNILI0GIY ud san pesodolg
— ey
QU _ . R SN O FL
— oo I, W Histieh sl S e
L ] v o T T liiid Hi — | o
g oy T b {
WY ewmem— i e iy 0 i el Wactentry, KR o [ _
B T SUMNS 00U SN e sl oNE— 4 IAFUOYS SO oM ||
) U ) sy 0 IR e o Buran) Qe avaaniiey; ik Mo o B2t a0 0N
| - R - oy —_ m |
—————— o ik S i TR _ | 1._ _. F —._ | u | —_
| o : - - p— b 1 ST SN O
s s e w _-xlrll..ss { _] - o
' — — _ 1 oM ST
bbbl ekl -
P i - A T i ]
TG DI I WS 1 PIUK 30 0 Bligued Qg pasodoly P | | T8
B ot vesngs wase om . | | | I ._.!..ifc..ﬂ-i g oN B B
i eyt PR s | I i = 1 it s oo
- . POCHSIDONY, ES0IIU DRILH0 ON S 3 — [ B 3= | O Sy g o 4
- —- — T h ; L
BOGMELO0EY, PSCONR EEILAO ON | . — .!uu!.ﬂilu.l-oz i
Bused pac onws BaSDdoL L A0, eSS e oM 3 ~r o e onsh (S
1 b
: p— - — EeE I LA Sl PURISOUEY O 6L
| saaods e 04110 500l ﬁ = [ byl oy
OCASIOTY, SO EUR0S 0N b A B TS R R S RN (T R T by o % rOte e S { + T e ey oN 2
e e L | AL, o
LBANG) BOWATL, SSRGS IPUD RS | =)
B i 0 s e o w5 0 N - i | s s NN B O 62
o — ~ - L2
- & T L
MRS 4 A 5T Sl 1003 005 [0 wOeIDN Bosodous. | ) A1 ;1 Hm Faanams on 11
_ usuaE oM AL I, FUIISOUNY 339H TN GF
H«u ARSI, EMIEISO Sl O 5t ] G0, SASRSICIY S ON |
S - it s
W R i L A, SunssEnad ed 08 P
woponnsuoy [ 8 1 x T mm prege:rigon. s U ST W
Brasnp papasesd pur paumsas 30 o saas Buys i e s
s mEeTE S
Esadian) sisoddond adesouEt oS e | i i 9N 59
[HIEE] 34 I —] |
™3 2 e s E 3
BN BRIt DR it
BOOWHOGTY, PRODIAY EEIN0G ON 91 { voganbiuy, ey o
MO S BN SH T, SR FUSHES O T !..._T
o0y Eyhisad pasndog ] “ﬂﬂ!ﬁiﬁ‘}w! - o —
i i e ey 4] .1|_
PEEE 20 0090 . 0 DU SUOSHET Al P = . L o
O S . e Sl A e ¥ . nsiins ﬂ iii-ﬂn!s. _ OB, BUDSUR B O 15
A R | T sal RIS, IESSE O {F
MUV P ATYIS LON 00 10K S0 SR 1 J———— R TR =3 T
U TSN DU S O ORI DX PR Uy D1 9 Wl e T I M =f o .
DOt RS g D1 WIS 0 009 DZOC SRR 00 3 TEITH WAl PdTs se waz g 1 S —i=f =3 R S| TN
1 plagrigond i o Sl puR S B ry w51 eaw 4 s O 0T .q. Shg = = pec L BRI S N PR AP, EIMAIANS RN DN T
St AL 10 S U L U Aoy Gl ‘ﬂ%ﬁhﬂﬂ.ﬁ”“ ! i .M !H"’!!!ﬁf&- W v B Mo O 1
2unw fuom papass o0z T bed Z0it 571 iy o g e gy g P byt oo o4 i ks q [ ave1 fuod eursema oS o
s ety | 4 b £ e 3 YocHBbi s 01 oo R . e e TR Eh L] 3 At GO e 2
i s bl st e 5 o 1 S mEHT On
] s A A R i ORI PUS 9690/ GNE oy . | - t
g g eeigrorl L S T e S — 35 RIS @ :: LB M7 o EocrouUISEAE o 73
22 10 v ot oul Supued o U U0 | s - i - - o
M K oD ra— = 5 < o w0 N
IR 0] B30 UMD (0 A4US0 3L SREAD) DAOUNOW. J 1
e Ut OARIAN DU 500 1 U ] ueSeNy BOOOR) e M. e v T sl || ————— i grigon i o SO ED
e e | e e b R A g I 1 {
O I DU L A o ARt e, By D 8 OaREN TR AR ST SR 0N o ¢ o i N - i u.a”»!n J.hs
AN DR S0 I RORE CROY S0 O DaWRR PEGL DUE SSR ONE UOMEIN SUDQHULISY o D 20 0] s e - L i peamainlivin
4 Wl SE5E S uaw ARD 0) SOTULS PUE S5 Y 0 D0S DEOT GFB0 OU .4 HISUSIEN WOR pddrm st Aaif i i
o5, 3007 g Bund M, IS SRE OM 08
AEAT U SOOI W A EROUS AOUEEHUNTL
I N U 1 TS DU S S BRI e pasoding
- Aoty peni. ﬂ:i had e "!._S P,
il s
— N ——— i ik ou Sasricns o 31 WG4 244 sy, EURBUT ST o 1P
I GG (IS 0 (BN SO U S00 w2 SR PR 08 L MRS, Exodtn eaEnds oN 19 s
DaEs W (XN B DS SO0RdS B Ty ! smgﬁg! e g
B AU B LORSAL) AP0 | P — tnwm n...._._. prtiopgrmin o e
NOLVILD IS il B, wauodel pandey oN L




e e ] S s
e S e
SOH Pty @Y gy
CEI-9LF6TIND o Smaen
IVTioal:1 apes
F1L 29010 e
spesodong sdesspuen] S
SAUCH puequ] st
SBEYILA wapaen) uodi]
W OPOLH 10014 I A

..........

2121;

-

Dnpungs e of s §8 S i 06 Sty
o

epoliend ings i sermnd

i 0 umtegh W 00 0 mofind pasediy.

s 0 it ] 44 amddes w pnueg
e - ————

GOREOE ERLID OO 4 s
i ARy f pedkios v waa e o

VEET BOT D00 ou @y
E s 0 D SRS AG Pl
sy e yiap o o oy i | 041

20 poom, = 0
pesdug
e e oty g s K g € sy Yoo o
s | st 50 g A e e ) 0 et i e w0 of Buped
LA s e —— PO i i o el
e ptinnand oy
g a0, woamumy L a1 A e sy

" Buqurd pie (i Bt
s P by
e o b Eupes
4 AT A AU ) 1 P
o T B OO (g T | S O — D _ g

NV OHY VIS LON OO0 10N

A il L A8 B

DA R 0SSR
W PR B RS D)

) U Aund e Wb

A (0] e

unesher 1 3mendosd adesepu | B S ) wreodon edete ) g

._.._@x%:n_ OO, sNsei220ing| w_...::._n_ .QZ r— &
HY2YOA ESES ON G

Ollody, wnijojinbe eluoye oN ¢ Al

,9100pIH, eljosnBue enpueae o g 0}

JuayhnT op, SNSEIS00INE| SNUNIH ON + [@))

IYoN=A BSES ON ¥ ©

o

suanatediuas snxng oN
suasmsduies snxng oN /|
seplouiwsel wnuuadsojayael] oNZ
npuellE seWajS 'oN |

B100pIH, BljojsnBuE EnpueAET ON -
Eiebaue, Jolew eoulp "oN §
1Iyo)aA BSES ON

[ElloA, BIUENISN] SNUNIE ON 6€

[ojjody, wniojinbe eluoYe ON ¢
UayAn opQ, SNSEIS00INE| SNUNId ON +

HUOYIBA BSESTON 9 1umpeBaiep, xeus) Wniuwotd oN | 3w

Slie] Auod, ewissinus) edig oN §
8100pIH, Eljoysnbue enpueae oN 9
Sltel Auod, ewissinus) edis oN §
[ejefisuey, Jolew eauip oN L

BT F ok feyoieds, iy eiopal ON |

S0 inosewe| JaiysuBlaWY ON 7

” saplouiwsel wnuuadsojayoel] ‘o |
R~ 1j011aA BSES ON 9

__ e puELLIE SEWS|D ON Z

st Auogd, ewnssinus) edig ‘oN €
2100pIH, BljoisnBue ejnpueae oN §
_ 1I42)BA ESES ON ¥

ppei4 uely, snaindind snsig oN §

; Joiaqg, eluabiag oN

= BIOJIUA, BDIUEYISN| SNUNI ON §
i Reymjeds, xijay e19paH ON |




pasodoid

i ammne || mF—_::m—m

#102 senbiry 5o ‘aieg
WL WS spmep o) sBupaeip ueyNsUSD
adesspue 0 isjey aanedipu; 51 Buideospue]

BLOCK E

60M21-001€0-€9€E)

pueu| n

SBLOH pueu|

advaAaINoeg

10}

W %oolg ‘sBei
uspies uolelg

L R L T
: B Tl !

@ % oo o o9 ow

s

New raised table in accordance

with Engineers details

ik i IR (I S | M | i

1

[ 13800 i -

T weman S
T s

L 4 = * 3 de

(ABeyens sbewesp
0} jo8lgng) wed JjeD) o) seuue |

(ABsjens
aBeuweip o) 108lgng) Bumed yooig
[euapIsay aleald

Ay

metropolis:.
|

Page 253



=== Buiuue|d

BLOCK E

nBiry g aseg
v @00zt ewag spap so) sBupmelp ueynsue]
adeaspue o) 12jey aaneaipu; 51 Buideospue
LA2I-LOLET-E9EL
Ta]W
pueu| 4
H ! ayva3aTINCa
10}
a

d
S
reen

Page 254

[RuIpISaY erld

metropolis:



ueid Joo}) puooss
#102 1unbry 5o e
v @00zt ewag

sawoy
pueju|

SBLIOH pueju|

v 0018 ‘sBelin

Bujuued

spe1ap 10 sBuimElp JElNsUOD

sdesspue o) s3jey saneaipu; 5t Buideospue

metropolis:..

|

BLOCK E

ayvyA3INCs

n accordance

New raised table in 2
with Engineers details

Page 255



==l SUIUUe]d

102 snbry go ‘a0
WL WS spmep o) sBupamip ueynsUED

adeaspue o) 12jey aaneaipu; 51 Buideospue

0LAal-g012a-€9€L

Saluoy
pueu

sawoH puelu|

v %o0ig “abefa

metropolis:..

BLOCK E

ayvyA3INCs

Page 256



Sl

metropolis:.. |

&

\

e | s

]

I | EaC e i)
88 Amartoter Vil Y Paein THE.

| - -
1‘ 23800

New raised table in _accordanc.e
with Engineers details

Page 257

BOULEVARD

Inland
homes

1363-D2104-rev09

Landscaping is indicative.Reter to Land
gs for delails scawn 120 @ a0

Fourth floor plan:
Proposed

Dato: 05 August 2014

Planning

BLOCK E



metropolis:...

&

E

|

il

Dale: 04 Septemier 2014

Stale: 1100 @ At

Elevation AA:
Proposed

Planning



metropolis::..

|

.‘! L_L | Al
/|
|

|
i = -
e e |

Elevation BB
Proposed

Stale: 1100 @

1
At
Date: 04 Septermier 2004

Planning



metropolis:...

Stale: 1100 @

At
Date: 04 Septermier 2004

Planning

Elevation CC:

Proposed



metropolis:...

Wy3uE NOILYATT3

&

E

At
Date: 04 Septernier 2014
Proposed

Stale: 1100 @

Planning

SRl BEN B§

)

Page 261




e m:_::m_n_

TR D] l.. &
f_ EC BT l nm

Page 262

m :
| |

AHYONNOS 3SVHd

W&WJ
@)
o
i
S
=



pesadaid
‘44 voneas|3
- DUIUURI
SNRBOR). | ——

}
: iD

§
i

|
. K

i

SI
E

metropolis:..

Page 263




o m:_::m_n_

O0K:L eeas

@)
o
s
S
=



metropolis:..

buiuue|d

03 sajon anpEpuI 51 BuidedspuE]

AHYONNOS 3SYHd

BE

Page 265



1 sue|d Loy
== Bujuueld
.&“ﬂ. i .’a—%ﬁﬂ WOn) IS 'ifi‘lt.‘t&l«i'ﬁiil - Pirous Bunsde e
834 MBS € Ui 39 PINOUS SICALDS BOUISS SIOLUOT SIS JO LOGEDD - ¥ samy 9 llliilg‘!ﬁl! lrlh!:!n
s/ Ulo 6] (58S M DINDUS SHOPLIM aney pnous B LD 0 e e ‘ssa00e ur of sejiiue 12 8 yoesidde
W08 el JauBiy ou WBSq PIRoUS Buel wapuw. B B 10 UgpL D B aney Bnous Buwede syl api LAUOOT | ISEH e SN
T . " — iilﬁ“ti!cii!,iii.&
5 eSEOIIdE 59 PINOUS — PG HA U SABNICOP SDRLY, PAAU Ji SEURUE|
ispﬂ'lﬂ“ﬁi“‘ilhtiﬁl ‘l‘ii“ﬁﬂcii‘iii.!.‘.
: B é : 19 spve fapgow Busn svou; B o o wlues (Sap Syl O JuBnEs a0
10} 53 tuooy Bunnl) 31 Ayedy) 9| B4 Ly Samop ii.’ ONIMTNG 335 e i . # 2 by it
v oolg sbeiin Formmp— Busiowp Asana vl papiasd !._....,llilll!.._..l. o ii.....‘l.i-l.l.!
‘uspses uoikeiq ONIMYMG 335 .l.__l.o.- v M.-lv b — g - ke 11“ s34 208 S0 213 PUE SSFIOE ASES FPINGK PINGUS SIBIS EUNILILIS - SIEIS (PURLGD 5
WIDCUUTET B P WOt S| Bumpuey
UBBAEG BN HTEUOSER B SpIn0ud PIPoys uBSap Su) puk SISy Buied Buliodons jo sigedes LIS |34 € SnEy pue ey 2ny OSIE PINOYS ey
DHIMYEG 338 aq shuiyaa pug ¥ SADQE SIS < WODIPSE BN T i
‘pry uouSIS Buiijsses woougjes “;‘i;i‘_iii'i‘.ﬂ
 pue 6 00 A240|3 € O |203) SOLERUS Bl W0y Y Jooysui-finoi € oy ‘Inlli.lﬂ.‘"-!!i!‘!i
idﬁi.iili!i;lil l,““!iil!ll lllti!xgl‘ﬂhﬂll
o o e e by ST L O SIIOD B Buipes; sy jo sands UHGOE 89
1. o S - S o PINOs aiay) Smag0; SE SQU DU SuEp Bueds /eeD aAgdaye sABy PNOuS Ky DIoYSRE
{mimne saendn siies geufl 58 yans suogeidepe Jo; Loddns pue Suiy wuy o s34 | HBAD STIT0E |BN| SAEY PUE PACLALN BG DINOUE SIOURLLS |y - SEIURILT BUIMX] Y
S S S sy oA FHAS 55 RO S 00 TSI N I Y —— s34 ‘Butors fiusd X0 248, 39 PIrous e 4L - ypeonddy
W HBG O LT [SER I
Pmous L SBEMDY Ly w0 papnod WOTLEg “Buidors Apual 40 a8 pue aigesiaRd
f'-nﬂ!lll}-lallhniﬂi SE LDUS S 3 DINOUS SA0UBNUS e 0f Buniied siopsis by acumisip ay) Buiders igueb
U BAEY PINOYS [BAB] SDUBNUS BU JBUIR/LSLDYY Sur pue Lwoos Buiay uew By of uopppe o (a2 8 PUK WNLARLL B Of jday 26 PINTIYE (2400 it 40 SIURIILS ¥I0ID JUBASRI 40 BoURuS
L] U SLUORU SIGEPTEY OvY LY 240U DU PUE ‘SARIGIS SO JO Sy YU SEUNIBVE U1 - IM 04 s34 Bujang au; o soeds Supwed e Sul Woy SOUREP BUL - BUIIRg e UMY SEDY ¢
g ® 58 pasn g pinee WILGGZL I WP BB WINUAEW B UETUEW PIFOUS (3509 I 4] ‘Bunjed
sy U sveds .M!I EER] e d LSRR JO FSET MY w10} pue Buprd au §8I00€ AL
i ou i shaiogs Qg Ui Spueiwasinbes 481018 810w 10 oML § -
s 20URLLS I8 87 PINOUS Wool Bty 8u | - woey Buar 5,630 OER (0] 3500 J0) 20 pinays UALODEY X 8P WALOOEE Soeds
s34 By L] - oL = s34 Buiyed auo 3 feg £ pepmod s Bunued s, - Buned 1) |
oNIMYNT 335 5322 Burup  neresum & Eunuin) o) 23005 29 BOUS 3524 - ANIQISSEI0Y HEUIIOUM ©
(o]
spiepuels awoH swneit eyl 9
()
(@)
TRl WS | SRS T ©
o

w'bs 0°0¢ 1214 peg-| |eaidA |



C Sueid SUIoH
auwmay feaidA |

8001 1 iv0s s wess
00MN9F10220-€9¢ 1

SaluoH puejul

v yoolg abejn
uapren) uolfeig

metropolis:...

HIPI PUB JUBLAAOLS PRIIULED

30 PNoys SELES WOCIIES FUE WOOIPE] LIELL ¥ 31008 SINSNIS - WODPEE Wi ‘T|
4 UOUSILET BuikjSyes woaies

10 UIPIM 183D B 3a8y Pnoys Buiiede syl api LAIOOZ | eS| Je ANl

IS I Ul SAENICOP IR, PIAU Ji SEUPLE|
P SARY JavoiEy ..l.!..-ll“ﬂl S12k0 1URD 4O Sanpling Buinous S80u PuE

spe Aiygow Bussn B o o wlues (Sap Syl O JuBnEs a0

e 3q phous ufinoug pue sy W - SREmiE ¥ SARMIOOQ (eS|
“2IqIS5300 AN 5a PINOUS U i ¥ £Q PIYDESI

I8 SAUOY MA PUE SS3IIE ASES FPIKGST PINDES SIRIS BUNLILOT - SIEIS [OURWLGD §
Buspe|

IBuIBE jarE) & aney pue ayes aney osiE pF ey

wbs G'v6 1e|4 peg ¢ |leaidA |




== FUIUUR|d

ﬁ:ﬁﬁ

metropolis:..

wbs z'gL |
1814 Jleydjeayp peg Z |edidA )




y

wbs 6201 "

metropolis ]

Page 269



| suoness|] pedq .
L2 JSqusndEG ) SR m:-::m—m
L 2 0504 eEog -

90n81-0S420-6981

saloy

pugju)
SBWOH PUE|U|

)

¥ o0ig sbeyin
uopes uoiieig

L
¥ 9GS0 OF £0

metropolis:.




2 suoneas(3 iea
L2 JSqusndEG ) SR m:-::m—m
b 0504 eRog -

90n8s-15L20-69E1

saloy
pueju|
SBWOH PUE|U|

10}

v yooig sbejin
uapseg uolkeiq

Ll
1 9GNS0 OF €0

metropolis:..




£ suopeA@(3 eeq

e DUIUUR|H

v 05 L e

Loy

Wk BGIS0 OF

metropolis:..




WO0E/S898a NI _.__
r— ) ——

ADILVHLS
o | g8

Al felH E

megreezeEs

VIHY SIHL HOJ ADIIVHLS
FOVNIVH S ISVH
- LOGIZ065 N 04 HA4 3

jiz persEERecREzRaEEES
E&i gEZsgEIEREZgERIEZE

fEastansaiaaaniaeags

%

el o1 pendsp - =
i e oy ulrsop Buuseuibue Jusousp eyl o pelgTs e -
na nbesis is-&_-.m.uli _ .
iluil .Il_.!-n. ot St e, s
I.'!“—ﬁ"’i’! ..dﬂ & = L]
IO g W o s by o

Page 273




uoneaa3 pang
Aep sisuiod

¥10Z Jequisides ag el
o @ 0021 oS

90ARI-02L20-€0E1

Saway
pusju)

SSLWOoH pueu|

W yooig abejip
uapieg uojieig

metropolis:...

Aeu

Jwijaid

0f J3joH PMENP & DusdeospuT

bl il

| L] L ] IE -.aaq - L B §
L DL E TR

g RINN S




s Em:_E__...:n_

100122206901 O J3jSH SANENPIS B DuIIEDSPUTY

|
|

IENGI NN mER R ERE
Eoomoom onen, WOREREMCI W ey

.__= = T
.““ “.. “.“ u_az_a_._“

u_..“.u..“ﬁ"::“ﬂ:ﬁa I TRET B T R _.“_“
»" B =i §um iy N :“___"“_m
' G SRR BT RC RS M = !
¥ .
: WMeowewm iiom o omeon [
¥

w
W

metropolis:..



1to 34
urlington House,

s
1

L

GE AVENUE

K LOD

1to 36
Flington House- |

© PAR

Lexington House ‘

BOULEVARD

Brecon Lodge

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address
West Drayton Garden Village

Porters Way
West Drayton

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services

Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
5107/APP/2014/4304 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
Major Page 276 | March 2015 | YN
LONDON




	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the meetings held on 21 January 2015 and 10 February 2015
	Minutes 10 February 2015

	6 88-94 Long Lane, Ickenham 52129/APP/2014/2996
	7 Hayes and Harlington, Station Road, Hayes 10057/APP/2014/4338
	8 Pronto Industrial Estate and 585 - 591 Uxbridge Road, Hayes 4404/APP/2014/2506
	9 1 Nobel Drive, Harlington 46214/APP/2014/2827
	10 West Drayton Garden Village, Porters Way, West Drayton 5107/APP/2014/4304
	12 Plans Pack - 5th March 2015

